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Mational Service Centers

Albuquerque, New Mexico
Ann Arbor, Michigan
Atlanta, Georgia

Baton Rouge, Louisiana
Columbus, Ohio

Dallas, Texas

Des Maines, lowa

Ft. Lauderdale, Fiorida
Houston, Texas

Jackson, Mississippi

Las Vegas, Nevada

Qahu, Hawail
Raleigh, North Carolina
Reno, Nevada

Rockville, Maryland

By collaborating with clients, plan participants, physicians and pharmacists, our dedicated teams of account manage-

ment, clinical and customer service personnel ensure client satisfaction, and improve overall medication management

and quality of care. With offices located throughout the country and fully integrated national call centers, Catalyst Rx has

become the first choice for organizations interested in parinering with a benefit manager that understands their needs

and implements solutions customized to meet their goals.

W Corporate Office @ Account Management and Clinical Centers of Excellence




Company Profile

HealthExtras, Inc. is a provider of pharmacy benefit
management services and supplemental benefits.
The Company's pharmacy benefit management
services are provided by its wholly owned subsidiary,
Q/:);Q (Wagtanlysatd 2

Our clients include managed care organizations, state
and local public entities, self-insured employers, union
groups and third party administrators. These groups
contract with Catalyst Rx to cost-effectively administer
the prescription drug component of their overall health
benefit plan. In addition, Catalyst Rx offers comprehen-
sive workers’ compensation and hospice-related phar-

macy benefit management solutions.

In support of our programs, Catalyst Rx provides access

to a national network of more than 59,000 pharmacies

and maintains an electronic point-of-sale system of

eligibility and plan design verification. Additional ser-
vices include drug utilization evaluation, benefit design
consultation, formulary management, drug data analy-
sis services, mail order and specialty pharmacy pro-
grams, and rebate management and reporting services.
These services provide our plan participants with timely
and accurate prescription claims adjudication while
controlling pharmacy spending trends through innova-
tive plan designs, physician orientation programs,
member education and clinically based utilization

management initiatives.

Cur common stock is listed on the NASDAQ Global
Select Market under the symbol HLEX.




Financial Highlights
(% in '000s, except per share data}

As of and for the years ended December 31,

2003 2004 2005 2006
Revenues $384,094 $521,325 $694,519 $1,271,006
Operating Expense 367,066 496 366 659,685 1,223,291
Cperating Income 17,028 24,959 34,824 47,715
Shareholders’ Equity 70978 147,650 185,292 240,047
Total Assets 141,768 244252 286,012 436,024
Net Income 10,317 16,383 22,980 31,574
Net Income Per Share, Diluted 0.30 0.45 0.56 0.75

Total Assets Net Income Per Share, Dlluted
($ in mifions) (%)
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To Our Shareholders,
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Without question, 2006 was a stellar year for HealthExtras.
The Company's growth was driven by strong sales and the
successful implementation of new business. During the year,
we added a number of new clients, which collectively repre-

sent more than $800 million in annualized revenues.

Highlights from 2006 include:

* Reported record results for the year:
» Net income was $31.6 milfion, an increase of 37% over the
previous year,
= 2006 revenues increased lo $1.27 billion, an 83% increase
over 2005 revenue of $694.5 million;
s Qperating income increased 37% to $47.7 million,
= Earnings per share increased 34% to $0.75.

* Completed the acquisition of R/x* Pharmacy Solutions, Inc.,
expanding our geographic reach to the Hawaii market;

* Realized more than 98% year-over-year client retention and
all key clients with first quarter 2007 renewal dates have
been successiully renewed;

2 HealthExtras

Received top rankings in all rmafor areas of salisfaction mea-
sured in an independent customer satisfaction survey con-
ducted by the Pharmacy Benefit Management Institute (PBMI);

Invested in the infrastructure to support a 100% increase in

the Company's operations;

Successfully implemented Wellmark Biue Cross Blue Shield
of lowa, as well as many other groups including multi-
employer Taft-Hartley Funds, managed care clients and

public government agencies;

Processed more than 29 million prescriptions, demonstrating

the scalability of our operations.

in addition to driving record growth, the new clients added
during 2006 have greatly expanded our sales opportunities.
The successful implementation of Wellmark Blue Cross Blue
Shield and other large clients during the second quarter rep-

resents a major milestone for our organization. Successfully
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implementing more than one million covered lives in a quarter
expands our marketing opportunities; indeed, our sales pipe-
line has never been stronger. We are positioned as a credible
player across the competitive industry landscape.

We are pursuing business expansion in new geographies where
we have not previously had a strong presence. In addition to
organic growth, we have made a series of acquisitions since
2000, expanding our markets and product porttolio. Our 2006
acquisition of R/x* Pharmacy Sclutions, Inc., a pharmacy
benefit manager (PBM) with a focus in the Arizona, Nevada
and Hawaii markets, met our stated goals of complementing
our organic growth through selective acquisitions and strategic
investments, and extending our services and capabilities
deeper into our targeted market segments. As with previous
acquisitions, we will take a long-term view that focuses on
taking advantage of the Company's solid reputation, continu-
ing investment in our systems and expanding our marketing
initiatives. Cur objective is to grow the revenue base while
improving operating efficiency and profitability. Hawaii, with
its significant government and union business, represents a

major growth opportunity for us.

Our approach to managing pharmacy benefits continues to
gain momentum. It is an approach driven by local commitment,

full disciosure and client collaboration. Although we are a

national company, our clients are concenirated in specific
geographic markets. We understand that efiective pharmacy
berefit management is a local phenomenon, and thus we
maintain offices in each of these important geographic areas.
Cur Centers of Excellence are staffed by senior level Account
Managers and Doctors of Pharmacy who are dedicated to
providing locally based solutions designed to meet the
needs of clients and members in their communities.

Our clients and prospective clients are increasingly seeking
innovative approaches to effectively control their drug costs
without compromising patient care. They seek a benefit
manager with whom they can collaborate, and demand an
increased understanding of the economics of their pharmacy
benefit program through transparent and *pass-through”
pricing. Because we are a leader in transparency and
disclosure, our clients can select a program that properly
aligns financial incentives for their plan and gives them the
full benetit of an unbiased pharmacy benefit solution.
This, no doubt, has been a powerful factor in our ability to

maintain a 98% annual client retention rate.

Within each year of our history, the size of our largest client
has increased and 2006 was no exception. While we are con-
sistently focused on and responsive to the needs of the middle

and small market segments, we have also demonstrated that

LT
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we can meet the sophisticated needs of a variety of market
sizes and segments. In addition to larger clients, we are also
pursuing new types of clients. Blue Cross Blue Shield plans,
Taft-Hartley Funds and employer coalitions represent terrific
sales opportunities for our organization.

Strategic investments in 2006 have also positioned us well to
take advantage of growth opportunities in 2007 and beyond.
We made substantial investments in our claims processing and
telecormmunications systems, as well as in cur data analytics
and reporting capabilities. We reengineered our operational
platiorms and expanded our senior management team.

We were pleased to be recognized by our clients in the 2006
Pharmacy Benefit Management Institute (PBMI) PBM
Customer Satisfaction Report, which is an independent
industry client survey that benchmarks PBM performance in
overall customer satisfaction. Catalyst Rx received top rank-
ings in all major areas, including overall service and perfor-
mance, delivering promised services and delivering promised
savings. We view the PBMI survey resuits as additional vali-

dation to our approach to managing pharmacy benefits.

2006 marked our seventh year as a publicly traded company
and since 1999 we have experienced a significant amount of
growth. This past year, not only did the Company meet its
growth and profitability objectives, but more importantly, we
improved our long-term competitive outlook. In addition to
strong financial results, we continued to invest in our Company
infrastructure and technology, and positioned the Company
to deliver exceptional earnings growth in 2007.

In closing, | would be remiss if | did not acknowledge the
contributions of our employees, whose expertise, dedication
and commitment has enabled us to maintain our growth rate
and continue to exceed the expectations of our clients and
their member populations. And, as always, | appreciate the
support of our Board of Directors and investors and | logk
{forward to keeping you apprised of our progress throughout
the coming year.

Sincerely,

D9

David T. Blair
Chief Executive Officer

2006 Annual Report J




Achieving Growth #rougt; Enxcellence

During 2006, HealthExtras and our pharmacy benefit management (PBM) subsidiary, Catalyst Rx, have achieved record growth,
increasing our customer base to more than four million custormners. By providing unprecedented, client-focused services and
delivering excellence across all functional areas, Catalyst Rx has become the first choice of many government, managed care,
third party administrator (TPA) and employer group clients. Catalyst Rx is not just another PBM; Catalyst Rx understands the
needs of, and collaborates with, our clients to form aligned incentives and programs that are customized and developed with

our clients’ interests in mind.

Catalyst Rx's account management, customer service, clinical, and business praclices are a step above the ordinary. In fact,
much of our growth is a result of word-of-mouth referrais from clients who are highly satisfied with our services. Catalyst Rx
was also one of the first PBMs to offer our clients full transparency—another reason our clients have a high regard for the Company,

which focuses on enhancing the client’s ability to better understand all aspects of managing their pharmacy benefit programs.

¢ HealthExtras



BUSINESS PRACTICES

Catalyst Rx's consistent growth is largely attributabte to our
philosophy of building client relationships that have aligned
incentives and are founded on trust. Catalyst Rx also delivers
service excellence in dealings with our clients, members,
pharmacies and physicians. Catalyst Bx has always sirived to
enhance our clients’ understanding of effective pharmacy
bensfit management. We ofier our clients full transparency that
is supported by audit rights and perfermance guarantees.
Catalyst Rx also conducts comprehensive claims data analy-
sis and provides meaningful, customized solutions that are

focused on quality, clinical efficacy and lowest net cost.

Catalyst Rx works to establish best practices that are aligned
with the needs of our cltents. For example, our account man-
agement staff respends 1o all client inquiries within two hours
and all client, member, pharmacy and physician calls are
handled by nationally certified pharmacy technicians.
Catalyst Rx is rising above its competitors by consistently

achieving excellence.

CLIENT SERVICES

Catalyst Rx is in tune with the dynamics of a changing market,
resulting in a 98% client retention rate. While effective pharmacy
benefit management is achieved through the collaboration of
many parties, including plan sponsors, physicians, pharmacists,
and pharmacy benefit managers, ptan participants also play
an important rofe. Consumerism is becoming more dominant
in the industry, and individual plan members are important
constituents for a pharmacy benefit management company.
In addition to receiving top rankings for Overall Service and
Performance in the 2006 Pharmacy Benefit Management
Institute (PBMI) Customer Satisfaction Repori, we received

high satisfaction ratings from our clients’ individual members,

Qur firm commitment to our clients is to place their needs
first. Catalyst Rx provides dedicated account management
and clinical teams that are focused on designing and recom-

mending solutions that are custemized for each client.

2006 Annual Report 7



CUSTOMER SERVICE

Catalyst Rx delivers service excellence through our fully
integrated call centers that are staffed with nationally certified
pharmacy technicians who have the education, experience,
clinical training and up-to-date knowledge to provide answers
to complex inquiries 24 hours per day, seven days per week.
This standard ensures superior service to members, provid-
ers, pharmacies and clients, by experienced professionals
who thoroughly understand the industry and the prescription

dispensing process.

In addition to the hands-on pharmacy technician experience
our customer service staff possess, they are also provided
with extensive client-specific training and state-of-the art
reference tools that allow them to promptly and accurately
address the callers' requests. Based on their expertise,
pharmacy background and the use of state-oi-the-art tools,
Catalyst Rx consistently achieves stellar first call resolution
rates and provides superior member education. This results
in enhanced member, pharmacy and provider satisfaction,
and overali efficiency, all of which contribute to achieving

lowest net cost for our clients.

CLINICAL SOLUTIONS

Catalyst Rx maintains a clinical philesophy of providing
unbiased pharmacy benefit management solutions that
promote clinically appropriate, cost-effective medication drug
therapies. This is particularly demonstrated in the management
of our formulary, which focuses on quality, clinical efficacy
and lowest net cost. Equally important are Catalyst Rx's
sophisticated, customized educational programs targeted
at clients, physicians and members. By providing unbiased
clinical and economic drug information, Catalyst Rx
empowers physicians and members to make fully

informed decisions,

Catalyst Rx conducis extensive physician visits that
provide client-specific education and information to assist in
promoting the most clinically appropriate and cost-effective
drug therapies for our clients and members. Members are
also educated on the value of lower cost drug therapies.
Through these educational efforts, Catalyst Rx has achieved
significant improvement of generic prescribing rates. Catalyst
Rx also promotes the use of over-the-counter medications as
part of the prescription drug benefit, which adds substantial

cost savings to both Catalyst Rx’s clients and their members.

& HealthExtras
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549
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Special Note Regarding Forward Loeoking Statements

This Form 10-K, including the documents incorporated by reference, contains certain forward-looking
statements, including without limitation, statements concerning HealthExtras, Inc.’s operations, economic
performance and financial condition. These forward-looking statements are made pursuant to the safe
harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. The words “believe,” “expect,”
“anticipate” and other similar expressions generally identify forward-looking statements. Readers are
cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which speak only as of their dates.
These forward-looking statements are based largely on HealthExtras, Inc.’s current expectations and are
subject to a number of risks and uncertainties, including, without limitation, those identified under “Risk
Factors” and elsewhere in this Form 10-K, including the documents incorporated by reference. Actual results
could differ materially from results referred to in the forward-looking statements. In addition, important
factors to consider in evaluating such forward-looking statements include changes in external market factors,
changes in HealthExtras, Inc.’s business or growth strategy or an inability to execute its strategy, including
due to changes in its industry or the economy generally. In light of these risks and uncertainties, there can be
no assurances that the results referred to in the forward-looking statements contained in this Form 10-K will
in fact occur. HealthExtras, Inc. undertakes no obligation to publicly revise these forward-looking statements
to reflect any future events or circumstances.




PART ]
THE COMPANY

ITEM 1.  BUSINESS

The following description of our business should be read in conjunction with the information included
elsewhere in this Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006. This description contains forward-looking
statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Our actual results could differ significantly from the results
discussed in the forward-looking statements due to the factors set forth in "Risk Factors” and elsewhere in this
Form 10-K. References in this Form 10-K to “we,” “our,” “us,” or the “Company,” refer to HealthExtras, Inc.

OVERVIEW

HealthExtras, Inc. provides pharmacy benefit management services, referred to as PBM, and supplemental
benefit programs. Our PBM segment, which operates primarily under the brand name Catalyst Rx, accounted for
97%, 94% and 91% of our revenue in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, and is expected to be the primary source of
our growth and profits in the future. Qur PBM clients include more than 1,000 self-insured employers, including
state and local governments, third-party administrators, referred to as TPAs, and managed care organizations, who
contract with us to administer the prescription drug component of their overall health benefit programs. Total claims
processed increased to 29.3 million in 2006 from 17.1 million in 2005. Our PBM segment revenue increased by 89%
to $1.2 billion in 2006 from $650.9 million in 2005.

We also offer supplemental benefit programs developed by us, under the brand name HealthExtras, which
include lump sum accidental disability benefits, accidental death and dismemberment benefits, and emergency
accident and sickness medical benefits. We contract with insurance companies to underwrite the insurance
components of these programs. As a result, the financial responsibility for the payment of claims resulting from a
qualifying event covered by the insurance features of our programs is borne by the third-party insurers. Our
supplemental benefits segment accounted for 3%, 6% and 9% of our revenue i 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.
Individuals are the major purchasers of these programs,

We were incorporated in Delaware in 1999. Qur principal executive offices are located at 800 King Farm
Boulevard, 4* Floor, Rockville, Maryland 20850. Our telephone number is 301-548-2900.

Our Internet website is www.healthextras.com. We make available free of charge on or through the website
our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and any
amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934 as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file such material with, or furnish it to, the SEC. This
reference to our website is for the convenience of shareholders as required by the SEC and shall not be deemed to
incorporate any information on the website into this Form 10-K or our other filings with the SEC.

PHARMACY BENEFIT MANAGEMENT

Our PBM segment provides our clients access to a contracted, non-exclusive national network of more than
58,000 pharmacies. We provide our clients’ members with timely and accurate benefit adjudication, while
controlling pharmacy spending trends through customized ptan designs, physician crientation programs and member
education. We maintain an electronic point-of-sale system of eligibility verification and plan design information,
and offer access to rebate arrangements for certain branded pharmaceuticals. When a member of one of our clients
presents a prescription or health plan identification card to a retai! pharmacist in our network, our system provides
the pharmacist with access to online information regarding eligibility, patient history, health plan formulary listings,
and contractual reimbursement rates. The member generally pays a co-payment to the retail pharmacy and the
pharmacist fills the prescription. We electronically aggregate pharmacy benefit claims, which include prescription
costs plus our claims processing fees for consolidated billing and payment. We receive payments from clients, make
payments of amounts owed to the retail pharmacies pursuant to our negotiated rates, and retain the difference,
including claims processing fees.



The Industry

The PBM industry has developed and grown in response to the increased utilization of pharmaceuticals,
increased unit costs and broader application of prescription drugs to various conditions. These factors have
combined to create a significant and recurring escalation in the cost of drug coverage offered by managed-care
organizations, self-insured employers and TPAs. In order to understand, manage and mitigate these trends, many of
these payor organizations have contracted for the specialized services offered by PBMs. According to the journal of
Health Affairs, overall pharmacy expenditures in the United States are expected to be approximately $237.0 billion
in 2007, an 8.1% increase over 2006. While pharmacy expenditure increases have moderated since a peak petiod
from the late 1990°s through 2002, average annual increases of more than 8.0% are expected through 2015.
Utilization and intensity are expected to contribute about half of the total of those expected spending increases, with
the remainder resulting from price increases.

Factors contributing to the increase in pharmacy spending include:

»  greater reliance on drug therapy by the physician community,

* increased “preventative prescribing” to manage high cholesterol levels and digestive disorders,
« efforts by drug manufacturers to increase market share and extend single-source brand use,

+ the introduction of improvements over existing therapies, which normally carry higher unit prices than
existing formulations,

» increased patient demand and education as a result of direct-to-consumer advertising and other
pharmaceutical marketing or promotional efforts,

»  an aging workforce,
+  increased obesity among all age groups, and

«  improved techniques and technology to detect and diagnose diseases.

PBMs are responsible for implementing and administering benefit plans that seek to lower overall prescription
spending by encouraging generic utilization, increasing the proportion of brand drugs dispensed from the preferred
category and encouraging, where appropriate, non-prescription therapy and treatment alternatives. These objectives
are accomplished through a combination of administrative, educational and technology initiatives directed towards
pharmacies, physicians and members.

Over the past several years, plan design has increasingly focused on the use of three-tier co-payment
structures. Co-payments represent that portion of the cost of a prescription paid for by the member at the time the
drug is dispensed. The purpose of these designs and the use of drug specific formulary lists is to create financial
incentives for members to utilize generic drugs where available and to select the most cost-effective brand drugs
indicated for a specific diagnosis or condition. In general, these plans incorporate the lowest member co-payments
for generic drugs, with increases for preferred brand drugs and reaching their highest level for non-preferred brands.
Typically these categories might require member co-payments of $10, $20 and $35 respectively. The use of these
tiered plans has increased significantly over the past several years and now applies to approximately 70% of
employer-sponsored members. In recent years, both the levels of member co-payment and the differential between
tiers have continued to increase.

Competition

We believe the primary competitive factors in our PBM business are price, quality of service and scope of
available services. Market share for PBM services in the United States is highly concentrated, with a few firms
controlling over 70% of prescription volume, These larger national and regional PBMs, such as Medco Health
Solutions, Express Scripts and Caremark, have significantly greater financial, marketing and technological resources
at their disposal, to expand client base and grow their business. There are also large health insurers and certain
HMOs which have their own PBM capabilities. Qur competitors also include drug retailers and physician practice
management companies.

Scale is a particularly important factor in negotiating prices with pharmacies and drug manufacturers. Though
we have other advantages to ofiset our comparatively small scale, we could face more pricing competition in the
future,




Some of our PBM services, such as disease management services, informed decision counseling services and
medical information management services, also compete with those being offered by pharmaceutical manufacturers,
specialized disease management companies and information service providers,

We have demonstrated our ability to serve a broad range of clients from large managed care organizations to
employer groups with fewer than a thousand members. We believe the following are our principal competitive
strengths;

Flexible and Customized Services. Because we are not affiliated with any pharmaceutical manufacturer, and
because we do not own a full-service mail-order pharmaceutical facility, the formulary and plan designs we suggest
to clients are highly flexible and not influenced by manufacturer relationships. Our larger competitors that have
manufacturer affiliations or mail order assets are often in a position where they may benefit from increasing the
volume of drug utilization generally or that of certain specific drugs. These conflicts arise where revenues from
pharmaceutical manufacturers may support the inclusion of certain drugs on formulary which would not otherwise
be included or may result from mail order utilization serving as an important source of profit for the PBM.

Local Market Presence. Qur local market presence in Florida, Georgia, Iowa, Louisiana, Mississippi, Nevada,
New Mexico, Ohio, Oklahoma, Pennsylvania, Texas and the Carolinas allows us to offer attractive benefit pricing
based on local pharmacy network rates and formulary design. We support our local markets from our primary
operating facilities in Ft. Lauderdale, Florida, Des Moines, lowa, Rockville, Maryland, Las Vegas, Nevada and
Raleigh, North Carolina. These offices provide account management, customer service and clinical support
programs including dedicated clinical pharmacists with expertise in plan design, treatment protocols and various
cost management initiatives.

Information-Based Cost-Containment Methods. Through the use of our customized information technology
systems, we believe that we provide our clients and members with access to information on a rapid basis that allows
us to work with our clients to manage the costs of prescription drugs. For example, our Web-based systems ailow
our clients to choose which metrics are most important to them for the purposes of evaluating their pharmacy benefit
management program. We then provide customized reporting solutions for these key performance indicators. In
addition, members can access our Web-based programs to evaluate the costs and benefits of the options for
prescription drugs, including over-the-counter alternatives, to which they have access through our benefit programs.
We believe these services allow us to further differentiate ourselves from our competitors.

Our Business Strategy

We seek to continue to increase our client base, revenue and profits. We intend to accomplish this by
capitalizing on our competitive strengths and helping to address the challenges confronting payors.

Increasing our PBM Client Base by Targeting Certain Market Segments.

We have identified four segments of the market that provide us with the greatest opportunity for growth. We
intend to focus our sales and marketing efforts to target these segments in order to gain new clients and increase our
membership base and revenues. Qur analysis of our market opportunity by segment is as follows:

» Large Employer Groups (Self-Insured): Representing over 12 million lives, employers in this segment
are large enough to need a full-service PBM solution to manage their increasing prescription benefits
costs, but are not Fortune 500-size companies that typically are only served by the largest PBMs. By
utilizing our information-based cost containment strategies, we offer these clients favorable results
compared to larger PBMs, and a greater tevel of customer service.

»  State and Local Governments: State and local governments are also employers who provide health
benefits to their employees and retirees. Some state governments have a workforce and retiree population
of comparable size to that of a Fortune 1000 employer. These clients are seeking the same customer
service, attention to detail, and bottom line results as private sector employers. Because the vast majority
of members in this market segment are geographically concentrated, we can analyze the prescribing and
utilization trends associated with a state and local government entity and actively influence physicians’
prescribing practices in a particular region. These physician interactions draw on peer-reviewed clinical
studies, generic drug utilization patterns, and the insights offered by the physicians themselves to deliver
better care at lower costs.




*  Third-Party Administrators (TPAs): There are hundreds of TPAs in the U.S. that focus primarily on
administering the health benefits of their clients. TPAs provide services to over 17 mitlion employees,
dependents, and retirees, paying over $17 billion annually in total health claims. As the TPA market
continues to consolidate, and TPA clients increasingly seek out complete health benefits solutions from
their TPA, we believe an increasing number of TPAs will be seeking a PBM partner to administer the
prescription benefits of their clients. We acquired EBRX, Inc. in December 2003, in part due to its focus
on serving the TPA market.

»  Mid-Tier Managed Care Organizations (MCOs): There are hundreds of MCOs that each provide
coverage to fewer than 200,000 lives. These MCOs collectively represent more than 20 million lives and
$8.5 billion in annual drug spending. We believe that MCOs of this size are increasingly dissatisfied with
the level of service and results they are receiving from larger PBM companies that devote most of their
attention to MCOs that have more than one million members. We have demonstrated that we can provide
these MCOs with a complete, full-service PBM that includes all of the features that larger PBMs offer,
with superior customer service, market-specific retail networks and customized benefit plans.

Leveraging Local Market Dynamics to Build Customized Networks and Manage Drug Spending.

Although clients contract with us to provide PBM services nationwide, capitalizing on local and regional
market dynamics is an effective way to manage drug spending and differentiate our PBM services from those
offered by our competitors,

»  Customized Pharmacy Networks: In order to obtain greater pharmacy discounts for our clients, we
work with clients to identify pharmacies that will agree to deeper prescription discounts in a specific
locality, based on the concentration of client members in that area, and the resulting store traffic those
members represent to a drug, grocery, or retail chain’s non-pharmacy business. We have established
customized pharmacy networks in Florida, [owa, Georgia, Louisiana, Mississippi, Nevada, New Mexico,
Ohio, Oklahoma, Pennsylvania, Texas, and the Carolinas and intend to develop similar networks in other
parts of the country.

*  Data Analysis and Reporting to Improve Cost Management and Quality of Care: We perform client-
specific data analysis to monitor trends and develop insights and conclusions that result in improved care
while reducing costs. Many PBMs offer a varicty of data analysis techniques from both a clinical and
financial perspective. We differentiate ourselves by using the information we derive from our systems to
obtain regionally favorable prescription pricing, to actively influence the drivers of prescription drug
utilization and to monitor clinical formulary and disease management trends.

+ Extensive Use of Internet Facilities to Enhance Account Management Effectiveness: We provide our
clients Web-enabled decision support for prescription benefit plan management, clinical evaluations,
disease management, and compliance monitoring. These data analysis and reporting capabilities allow
clients to assess top-level trend information for total population management and to analyze detail for a
particular drug, physician, member, or pharmacy. This functionality enables our clients to measure
successes relative to formulary and disease management initiatives and assists in the identification of
specific patient populations that may benefit from specialty pharmacy programs.

Offering Our Clients a Variety of Specialized Services Focused On Improving Health Outcomes.

Clinical and Other Services. Qur clinical service teams work closely with clients to design and administer
pharmacy benefit plans that use formularies and other techniques to promote clinically appropriate and cost-
effective drug usage. We are often able to influence physician prescribing patterns by comparing individual behavior
to physician peer groups and encouraging change where practices differ from peer group norms and medical best
practices. Because we operate with significant geographic focus, the consultations between our clinical pharmacists
and local physicians tend to have higher levels of effectiveness compared with less concentrated initiatives.
Similarly, our programs with retail pharmacies support therapeutic interchange programs that encourage the
evaluation of cost-effective drug alternatives where appropriate. We also offer consulting services to assist clients in
designing education and comtmunication programs designed to support cost-effective prescription drug programs.

Disease Management. We assist clients in managing the cost and treatment of specific chronic diseases in
order to improve medical outcomes and lower the overall cost of health care. These disease management programs




monitor the contracted population and intervene when individuals demonstrate symptoms of a specific disease or
high risk indications.

Qur disease management programs are the responsibility of a dedicated team of clinicians and have been
developed around three-key approaches:

»  Data Analysis and Integration. We evaluate and identify medical, laboratory, pharmacy and other
relevant data within an identified population.

»  Case Identification. We identify patients who have a specific disease and evaluate the appropriateness of
targeted interventions.

«  Clinical and Program Interventions. We communicate with identified patients and offer enhanced
education about their condition and effective management tools. We also integrate our recommendations
with those of physicians, including treatment guidelines, patient profiles and patient management tools.
Case management intervention programs are coordinated with other care-givers to monitor outcomes and
improve overall care.

Pursuing Selective Acquisitions.

Consolidation has been, and may continue to be, an important factor in all aspects of the pharmaceutical
industry, including the PBM segment. We will continue to evaluate additional acquisition and joint venture
opportunities to enhance our business strategy.

We have successfully integrated five strategic acquisitions over the last five years. Our acquisitions have
provided us with a more diverse and complete set of products and services to sell to a larger customer base. For
example, Catalyst’s previously developed demand management, generic substitution and other clinical programs
have significantly enhanced our ability to serve larger and more sophisticated customers. The acquisitions have also
allowed us to better capture efficiencies in corporate overhead and information technology investments. In each of
these acquisitions, we achieved our objectives by integrating operations, realizing operating efficiencies, improving
profitability and growing the revenue base of the acquired businesses. Most recently, we acquired EBRx, Inc. in
December 2005 and R/x* Pharmacy Solutions, Inc. in November 2006. We integrated the EBRx operations in 2006.
We will continue to look for acquisition opportunities that complement our existing operations and have
characteristics similar to the companies previously acquired. These characteristics include geographic membership
concentrations, opportunities to improve profitability and a base from which to generate revenue growth.

Customers.

One of our customers, Wellmark Blue Cross Blue Shield of lowa, accounted for 13.9% of our PBM segment
revenue and 13.5% of our consolidated revenue in 2006. Another of our customers, the State of Louisiana,
accounted for 12.1% of our PBM segment revenue and 11.7% of our consolidated revenue in 2006. We commenced
providing services to Wellmark Blue Cross Blue Shield of lowa on July 1, 2006. Also, our ten largest customers,
including the State of Louisiana and Wellmark Blue Cross Blue Shield of lowa, accounted for 54.5% of our PBM
segment revenue and 52.7% of our consolidated revenue in 2006.

PBM Services

We provide our clients the tools, information, and specialized expertise needed to offer the best drug therapy
to their membership, while simultaneously working to lower the costs associated with a pharmacy benefit plan. Our
PBM services involve managing member prescription drug utilization to ensure high-quality, cost-effective
pharmaceutical care through a combination of managed care principles, advanced data analysis and technologics,
and the management of client specific cost control initiatives. Our PBM services include:

«  Benefit plan design and consultation: Our pharmacy professionals work in conjunction with our clients
to design benefit plans that meet the needs of our clients and their members. We seek to maximize the
quality of care members receive while controlling the cost of providing prescription pharmaceutical
coverage by, among other efforts, creating financial incentives and reimbursement limitations on the
drugs covered by our plan, offering generic utilization incentives, and imposing reimbursement
limitations on the amount of a drug that can be obtained in a specific period.



*  Formulary administration: We seek to maximize the clinical appropriateness of all drugs covered by
our plans. In doing so, we actively seek to promote the use of drugs that our clients identify as the
preferred prescription alternative for certain clinical conditions, thereby reducing unnecessary overuse of
new drugs or reformulations of old drugs in inappropriate circumstances.

*  Formulary compliance and therapeutic intervention programs: We seek to encourage compliance
with the formularies established in conjunction with our clients for our plans by instituting guidelines that
create financial incentives both for our clients” members and our pharmacy networks to comply with the
formulary. For example, we design plan features such as tiered co-payments that require a member to pay
more for a non-formulary drug. At the same time, we also encourage the appropriate use of prescription
drugs through prescriber education programs. Finally, we seek to encourage the use of generic
formulations of branded pharmaceuticals, thereby lowering the cost of prescription pharmaceuticals
without compromising efficacy,

*  Retail pharmacy network contracting and administration: We contract with more than 58,000 retail
pharmacies nationwide at competitive discount rates which allow our members to access their benefits at
a broad array of locations. We may offer clients access to sub-networks where higher discounts are
available when offering a limited network of retail pharmacies to their members. We work with our retail
pharmacy network providers to achieve the goals of our clients: quality, responsible and cost-effective
prescription drug coverage for their members.

= Advanced decision support and data analysis services: We are able to help manage the expansion in
the cost of providing prescription drug coverage through intensive analysis and review of utilization data
of our clients” members. By recognizing inappropriate use or dispensing of certain prescription drugs for
certain member groups or at certain network pharmacies, we are able to help Llimit rapid inflation in
prescription expenses.

*  Flexible, customized reporting available via secure Internet connection;: We provide our clients’
members the ability to compare options available to them for certain prescription drugs through our
comprehensive Web site. For example, on our Web site members can compare the various options
available to them for allergy medication, such as branded prescription pharmaceuticals, a generic
alternative, or an over-the-counter formulation.

+  Contracted mail order pharmacy: We arc able to help control the costs of providing prescription drug
coverage for our clients through the use of mail order distribution capabilities to which we have access
through contractual arrangements. We have negotiated favorable rates for our clients that aliow them to
maintain desired clinical outcomes while limiting prescription drug costs.

SUPPLEMENTAL BENEFITS

Supplemental Benefit Programs

We currently offer, under the brand name “HealthExtras,” supplemental benefit programs developed by us,
which include lump sum accidental disability benefits, accidental death and dismemberment benefits, and
emergency accident and sickness medical benefits. Our supplemental benefits segment accounted for approximately
3%, 6% and 9% of our revenue in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Our supplemental benefit programs are marketed and sold to individuals primarily by American Express,
Citibank and Stonebridge, who incur the marketing expenses. Accordingly, the generation of supplemental benefit
program revenue from new members is primarily dependent on the extent and timing of marketing campaigns
funded by these three companies and the success they achieve.

We confract with insurance companies to underwrite the insurance components of these programs. As a result,
the financial responsibility for the payment of claims resulting from a qualifying event covered by the insurance
features of our programs is borne by the third-party insurers. Al of the insurance and service features included in
our programs are supplied by third-party insurance companies or other vendors, and the programs are distributed
through an independent, licensed and non-affiliated insurance agency.




Our agreements with the program marketers are typically for a term of 12 months, with automatic annual
renewals unless cancelled upon written notice 30 or 90 days prior to an anniversary date. Some contracts also
provide for termination by either party without cause upon 30 or 90 days prior written notice.

Competition

Our supplemental benefit programs compete with the traditional distributors of disability and accident
insurance, such as captive agents, independent brokers and agents, and direct distributors of insurance, and with
banks, securities firms and mutual fund companies that sell insurance or alternative products to similar consumers.
We believe that the principal competitive factors in our supplemental disability and accident benefits markets are
price, brand recognition, marketing expenditures and customer service. Many of our current and potential
competitors have longer operating histories, larger consumer bases, greater brand recognition and significantly
greater financial, marketing, technical and other resources than our own. Certain of these competitors may be able to
secure products and services on more favorable terms than we can obtain.

Any of the distributors described above could seek to compete against us in providing supplemental benefits
through traditional channe!s or by copying our products or business model. Increased competition may result in
reduced operating margins, loss of market share and damage to our brand.

GOVERNMENT REGULATION

Various aspects of our business are governed by federal and state laws and regulations. Because sanctions may
be imposed for violations of these laws, compliance is a significant operational requirement. We believe we are in
substantial compliance with all existing legal requirements material to the operation of our business. There are,
however, significant uncertainties involving the application of many of these legal requirements to our business. In
addition, there are numerous proposed health care laws and regulations at the federal and state levels, many of which
could adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition. We are unable to predict what
additional federal or state legislation or regulatory initiatives may be enacted in the future relating to our business or
the health care industry in general, or what effect any such legislation or regulations might have on us. We also
cannot provide any assurance that federal or state governments will not impose additional restrictions or adopt
interpretations of existing laws or regulations that could have a material adverse effect on our business or financial
performance.

Some of the state laws described below may be preempted in whole or in part by the Employee Retirement
Income Security Act of 1974, “ERISA,” which provides for comprehensive federal regulation of employee benefit
plans. However, the scape of ERISA preemption is uncertain and is subject to conflicting court rulings. We also
provide services to certain clients, such as governmental entities, that are not subject to the preemption provisions of
ERISA.

Federal Laws and Regulations Affecting the PBM Segment

The foltowing descriptions identify various federal laws and regulations that affect or may affect aspects of
our PBM business:

Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement, and Modernization Act of 2003.

The Medicare voluntary outpatient prescription drug benefit, “Part D,” established under the Medicare
Prescription Drug, Improvement, and Modernization Act of 2003, or “MMA,” became effective on January 1, 2006.
The MMA also created new guidelines for Medicare HMOs, termed Medicare Advantage Plans, which offer both an
outpatient prescription drug benefit and health care coverage.

Medicare beneficiaries who elect Part D coverage pay a monthly premium for the covered outpatient drug
benefit. Assistance with premiums and cost sharing are provided to eligible low-income beneficiaries. The voluntary
outpatient prescription drug benefit requires coverage of essentially the same pharmaceuticals that are approved for
the Medicaid program, although selection may be restricted through a formulary. The new outpatient prescription
drug benefit is offered on an insured basis by prescription drug plans, “PDPs,” in 34 regions across the United States
and by Medicare Advantage Plans, along with health care coverage, in 26 regions across the United States.




We are neither a PDP nor a Medicare Advantage Plan; however, we contract with PDPs and Medicare
Advantage Plans, collectively “Part D Plans,” to provide various PBM services. In our capacity as a subcontractor
with certain Part D Plan clients, we are indirectly subject to certain federal rules, regulations, and sub-regulatory
guidance pertaining to the operation of Medicare Part D. If the federal Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services
referred to as “CMS,” determines that we have not performed satisfactorily as a subcontractor, CMS may request
our PDP or Medicare Advantage Plan client to revoke our Part D activities or responsibilities under the subcontract.
While we believe that we provide satisfactory level of service, under our respective subcontracts, we can give no
assurances that CMS or a Part D Plan will not terminate our business relationships insofar as they pertain to
Medicare Part D.

Among other things, PDPs and Medicare Advantage Plans are subject to provisions of the MMA intended to
deter “fraud, waste and abuse” and are strictly monitored by CMS and its contracted Medicare Drug Integrity
Contractors, “MEDICs,” to ensure that Part D program funds are not spent inappropriately. In April 2006, CMS
issued a final chapter 9 to the Medicare Prescription Drug Benefit Manual interpreting the fraud, waste and abuse
provisions of Part D, referred to as the “FWA Guidance.” Among other things, the FWA Guidance cites the
following examples of potential PBM fraud, waste and abuse risks in connection with Part D: prescription drug
switching, unlawful remuneration, inappropriate formulary decisions, prescription drug splitting or shorting, and
failure to offer negotiated prices. CMS has offered additional sub-regulatory guidance regarding some of these risk
areas, particularly with respect to the Part D formulary decision making process which is highly regulated by CMS.
We believe that we are in substantial compliance with the applicable laws pertaining to these risk areas. However,
no assurance can be given that we witl not be subject to scrutiny or challenge under one or more of the underlying
laws by the government enforcers or private litigants.

Also in 2006, CMS issued guidance to PDPs and Medicare Advantage Plans requiring that such plans
report 100% of all price concessions received for PBM services. This CMS guidance suggests that best practices
would require PDPs and Medicare Advantage Plans to contractually require the right to audit their PBMs as well as
require 100% transparency as to manufacturer rebates paid for drugs provided under the sponsor’s plan, including
the portion of such rebates retained by the PBM as part of the price concession for the PBM’s services. We do not
anticipate that such disclosures, to the extent required by Medicare plan partners, will have a materially adverse
effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition, or cash flows.

Federal Anti-Remuneration/Fraud and Abuse Laws.

The federal healthcare Anti-Kickback Statute prohibits, among other things, an entity from paying or
receiving, subject to certain exceptions and safe harbors, any remuneration, directly or indirectly, to induce the
referral of individuals covered by federally funded health care programs, including Medicare, Medicaid and the
Civilian Heaith and Medical Program of the Uniformed Services, “CHAMPUS,” or the purchase, or the arranging
for or recommending of the purchase, of items or services for which payment may be made in whole or in part under
Medicare, Medicaid, CHAMPUS or other federally funded health care programs. Sanctions for viclating the Anti-
Kickback Statute may include imprisonment, criminal and civil fines, and exclusion from participation in the
federally funded health care programs.

The federal healthcare Anti-Kickback Statute has been interpreted broadly by courts, the Office of Inspector
General, referred to as the “OIG” within the U.S. Department of Health & Human Services, the “DHHS” and other
administrative bodies. Because of the statute’s broad scope and the limited statutory exceptions, federal regulations
establish certain safe harbors from liability. For example, safe harbors exist for certain properly disclosed and
reported discounts received from vendors, certain investment interests, certain properly disclosed payments made by
vendors to group purchasing organizations, certain personal services arrangements, and certain discount and
payment arrangements between PBMs and HMO risk contractors serving Medicaid and Medicare members. A
practice that does not fall within an exception or a safe harbor is not necessarily unlawful, but may be subject to
scrutiny and challenge. In the absence of an applicable exception or safe harbor, a violation of the statute may occur
even if only one purpose of a payment arrangement is to induce patient referrals or purchases of products or services
that are reimbursed by federal health care programs. Among the practices that have been identified by the OIG as
potentially improper under the statute are certain product conversion programs in which benefits are given by drug
manufacturers to pharmacists or physicians for changing a prescription, or recommending or requesting such a
change, from one drug to another. The Anti-Kickback Statute has been cited as a partial basis, along with state
consumer protection laws discussed below, for investigations and multi-state settlements relating to financial




incentives provided by drug manufacturers to retail pharmacies as well as to PBMs in connection with such
programs.

Additionally, it is a crime under the Public Contractor Anti-Kickback Statute, for any person to knowingly and
willfully offer or provide any remuneration to a prime contractor to the United States, including a contractor
servicing federally funded health programs, in order to obtain favorable treatment in a subcontract. Violators of this
law also may be subject to civil monetary penalties.

In April 2003, the OIG published “Final OIG Compliance Program Guidance for Pharmaceutical
Manufacturers,” referred to as “Compliance Guidance.” The Compliance Guidance is voluntary and is directly
aimed at the compliance efforts of pharmaceutical manufacturers. This Compliance Guidance highlights several
transactions as potential risks, including the provision of grants, “prebates” and “upfront payments” to PBMs to
support disease management programs and therapeutic interchanges. The Compliance Guidance also indicates that
the provision of rebates or other payments to PBMs by pharmaceutical manufacturers may potentially trigger
liability under the Anti-Kickback Statute, if not properly structured and disclosed.

In October 2006, Medco Health Solutions, a PBM, entered into a $155 million civil settlement of claims that
Medco destroyed and canceled valid patient prescriptions, solicited kickbacks from pharmaceutical manufacturers to
favor their drugs, and paid kickbacks to health plans to obtain business. The case was settled under the False Claims
Act, discussed below, but many allegations were based on the federal healthcare Anti-Kickback Statute. Similarly,
in September 2005, Caremark, Inc., a PBM, entered into a $137 million civil settlement of claims that its subsidiary,
AdvancePCS, allegedly solicited and received kickbacks from pharmaceutical manufacturers in the form of
excessive administrative fees, over-priced services agreements as a reward for favorable formulary treatment, and
improper flat fee rebates, and that AdvancePCS allegedly paid kickbacks to customers and potential customers to
induce them to contract with AdvancePCS. The case was settled under the False Claims Act, discussed below, but
the crux of the allegations pertained to anti-kickback violations.

We believe that we are in substantial compliance with the legal requirements imposed by such anti-
remuneration laws and regulations. However, there can be no assurance that we will not be subject to scrutiny or
challenge under such laws or regulations. Any such challenge could have a material adverse effect on our business,
results of operations, financial condition or cash flows.

Federal Statutes Prohibiting False Claims.

The Federal False Claims Act imposes civil penalties for knowingly making or causing to be made false
claims with respect to governmental programs, such as Medicare and Medicaid, for services not rendered, or for
misrepresenting actual services rendered, in order to obtain higher reimbursement. Private individuals may bring qui
tam or whistleblower suits against providers under the Federal False Claims Act, which authorizes the payment of a
portion of any recovery to the individual bringing suit. Such actions are initially required to be filed under seal
pending their review by the Department of Justice. A few federal district courts have recently interpreted the Federal
False Claims Act as applying to claims for reimbursement that violate the anti-kickback statute or federal physician
self-referral law under certain circumstances. The Federal False Claims Act generally provides for the imposition of
civil penalties and for treble damages, resulting in the possibility of substantial financial penalties for small billing
errors that are replicated in a large number of claims, as each individual claim could be deemed to be a separate
violation of the Federal False Claims Act. Criminal provisions that are similar to the Federal False Claims Act
provide that a corporation may be fined if it is convicted of presenting to any federal agency a claim or making a
statement that it knows to be false, fictitious or fraudulent to any federal agency.

There have been several qui tam actions filed under the Federal False Claims Act, the Public Contractor Anti-
Kickback Statute and similar state laws, in various federal courts against several PBMs. The complaints allege,
among other things, that such PBMs improperly favored the products of certain pharmaceutical manufacturers over
less expensive products and engaged in improper mail order pharmacy practices. For example, in October 2006,
Medco Health Solutions entered into a $155 million civil settlement of claims under both state and federal false
claims statutes that it destroyed and canceled valid patient prescriptions, solicited kickbacks from pharmaceutical
manufacturers to favor their drugs, and paid kickbacks to health plans to obtain business. Also, in September 2005,
Caremark Inc. entered into a $137 million civil settlement of claims under both state and federal false claims statutes
that its subsidiary, AdvancePCS, allegedly solicited and received kickbacks from pharmaceutical manufacturers in




the form of excessive administrative fees, over-priced services agreements as a reward for favorable formulary
treatment, and improper flat fee rebates, and that AdvancePCS allegedly paid kickbacks to customers and potential
customers to induce them to contract with AdvancePCS. Both Medco and Caremark agreed to enter into 5-year
corporate integrity agreements with the federal government in connection with their respective settlements,

Currently, we do not directly contract with the federal government to provide services to beneficiaries of
federaily funded health programs. Therefore, we do not directly submit claims to the federal government, However,
we do contract with and provide services to entities or organizations that are federal government contractors, such as
Medicare Part D PDPs. There can be no assurance that the government would not potentially view one or more of
our actions in providing services to federal government contractors as causing or assisting in the presentment of a
false claim. We do not believe we are in violation of the Federal False Claims Act and we have a corporate
compliance and ethics program, policies and procedures and internal controls in place to help maintain an
organizational culture of honesty and integrity.

ERISA Regulation.

ERISA regulates certain aspects of employee pension and health benefit plans, including self-funded corporate
health plans. We have agreements with self-funded corporate health plans to provide PBM services, and therefore,
we are a service provider to ERISA plans. ERISA imposes duties on any person or entity that is a fiduciary with
respect to the ERISA plan. We administer pharmacy benefits for ERISA plans in accordance with plan design
choices made by the ERISA plan sponsors. We do not believe that the general conduct of our business subjects us to
the fiduciary obligations set forth by ERISA, except when we have specificaliy contracted with an ERISA plan
sponsor to accept fiduciary responsibility and be named as a fiduciary for certain functions. In those cases where we
have not accepted fiduciary status, there can be no assurance that the U.S. Department of Labor, which is the agency
that enforces ERISA, or a private litigant would not assert that the fiduciary obligations imposed by the statute apply
to certain aspects of our operations.

Numerous lawsuits have been fited against various PBMs by private litigants, whether a Plan participant on
behalf of an ERISA plan or by the ERISA Plan sponsor, alleging that the PBMs are ERISA fiduciaries and that, in
such capacity, they allegedly viclated ERISA fiduciary duties in connection with certain business practices related to
their respective contracts with retail pharmacy networks and/or pharmaceutical manufacturers. For example, in
2004, Medco settled a lawsuit that alleged that Medco was a functional fiduciary under ERISA and violated its
fiduciary obligations by, among other things, failing to make adequate disclosures regarding certain rebates from
pharmaceutical manufacturers and steering clients toward more expensive pharmaceuticals with higher rebates
benefiting Medco and its then-parent company, Merck & Co., Inc. Pursuant to the settlement, Medco agreed to pay
$42.5 million into a settlement fund to be distributed to plan participants. In addition, Medco agreed to implement
and continue certain business practices aimed at increasing transparency around formulary decisions and therapeutic
interchanges. Medco did not admit, and the settlement did not require Medco to admit, any wrongdoing under
ERISA or otherwise.

ERISA also imposes civil and criminal liability on service providers to health plans and certain other persons
if certain forms of illegal remuneration are made or received. These provisions of ERISA are similar, but not
identical, to the federal healthcare Anti-Kickback Statute discussed above. In particular, ERISA does not provide the
statutory and regulatory safe harbor exceptions incorporated into the federal healthcare Anti-Kickback Statute. Like
the health care anti-kickback laws, the corresponding provisions of ERISA are written broadly and their application
to particular cases is often uncertain. We have implemented policies regarding, among other things, disclosure to
health plan sponsors with respect to any commissions paid by or to us that might fall within the scope of such
provisions and accordingly believe we are in substantial compliance with these provisions of ERISA. However, we
can provide no assurance that our policies in this regard would be found by the appropriate enforcement authorities
and potential private litigants to meet the requirements of ERISA, '
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FDA Regulation.

The U.S. Food and Drug Administration, the “FDA,” generally has authority to regulate drug promotional
materials that are disseminated by or on behalf of a drug manufacturer. In January 1998, the FDA issued a Notice
and Draft Guidance regarding its intent to regulate certain drug promotion and switching activities of PBMs that are
controlled, directly or indirectly, by drug manufacturers. After extending the comment period due to numerous
industry objections to the proposed draft, the FDA has taken no further action on the Notice and Draft Guidance.
However, there can be no assurance that the FDA will not attempt again to assert jurisdiction over aspects of our
PBM business in the future and, although we are not controlled directly or indirectly by any drug manufacturer, the
impact future FDA regulation could materially adversely affect our business, results of operations, financial
condition or cash flows.

Antitrust Regulation.

The federal antitrust laws regulate trade and commerce and prohibit unfair competition as defined by those
laws. Section One of the Sherman Antitrust Act prohibits contracts, combinations or conspiracies in restraint of
trade or commerce. Despite its sweeping language, however, Section One of the Sherman Act has been interpreted
to prohibit only unreasonable restraints on competition. Section Two of the Sherman Act prohibits monopolization
and attempts at monopolization. Similarly, Section Seven of the Clayton Act prohibits unlawful mergers and
acquisitions. In addition, the Robinson Patman Act, which is part of the Clayton Act, prohibits a variety of conduct
relating to the sale of goods, including prohibiting practices the statute defines as price discrimination. One section
of the Robinson Patman Act prohibits a seller from selling goods of like grade ot quality to different customers at
different prices if the favorable prices are not available to all customers competing in the same class of trade.
Successful plaintiffs in antitrust actions are allowed to recover treble damages for the damage sustained as a result of
the violation.

Numerous lawsuits are pending against several PBMs and pharmaceutical manufacturers under various state
and federal antitrust laws by retail pharmacies throughout the United States challenging certain branded drug pricing
practices. The complaints allege, in part, that the defendant PBMs accepted rebates and discounts from
pharmaceutlcal manufacturers on purchases of brand-name prescription drugs and conspired with other PBMs to fix
prices in violation of the Robinson Patman Act and the Sherman Antitrust Act. The suits seek unspecified monetary
damages, including treble damages, and injunctive relief. Motions to dismiss are pending in all cases.

We believe that we are in substantial compliance with the legal requirements imposed by such antitrust laws.
However, there can be no assurance that we will not be subject to scrutiny or challenge under such legislation. To
the extent that we appear to have actual or potential market power in a relevant market, our business arrangements
and practices may be subject to heightened scrutiny under the antitrust laws. Any such challenge could have a
material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition or cash flows.

State Laws and Regulations Affecting the PBM Segment

The following descriptions identify various state laws and regulations that affect or may affect aspects of our
PBM business.

State Anti-Remuneration/False.Claims Laws.

Several states have laws and/or regulations similar to the federal healthcare Anti-Kickback Statute and Federal
False Claims Act described above. Such state laws are not necessarily limited to services or items for which
federally funded health care program payments may be made. Such state laws may be broad enough to include
improper payments made in connection with services or items that are paid by commercial payors. Both the 2006
Medco Health Solutions and 2005 Caremark Inc. settlements, discussed above under “Federal Statutes Prohibiting
False Claims,” included settlement of civil claims under several state false claims laws. Sanctions for violating these
state anti-remuneration and false claims laws may inciude injunction, imprisonment, criminal and civil fines and
exclusion from participation in the state Medicaid programs. Additionally, under the Deficit Reduction Act of 2005,
discussed in greater detail below, states are incentivized to pass broad false claims legislation similar to the Federal
False Claims Act and there has been activity in several states during 2006 to do so.




We believe that we are in substantial compliance with the legal requirements imposed by such laws and
regulations. However, there can be no assurance that we will not be subject to scrutiny or challenge under such laws
or regulations. Any such challenge could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations,
financial condition or cash flows.

State Consumer Protection Laws.

Most states have enacted consumer protection and deceptive trade laws that generally prohibit payments and
other broad categories of conduct deemed harmful to consumers. These statutes may be enforced by states and/or
private litigants. Such laws have been and continue to be the basis for investigations, prosecutions, and settlements
of PBMs, initiated by state prosecutors as well as by private litigants.

We believe that we are in substantial compliance with the legal requirements imposed by such laws and
regulations. However, no assurance can be given that we will not be subject to scrutiny or challenge under one or
more of these laws, or under similar consumer protection theories.

State Comprehensive PBM Regulation.

States continue to intreduce legislation to regulate PBM activities in a comprehensive manner. Legislation
seeking to impose fiduciary duties or disclosure obligations on PBMs has been proposed on some states. Both Maine
and the District of Columbia have enacted statutes imposing fiduciary obligations on PBMs. The U.S. District Court
for the District of Columbia has enjoined enforcement of the District of Columbia statute on the grounds that the
statute may cause PBMs to disclose proprietary trade secrets and may be preempted by ERISA. However, in
November 2005, the First Circuit Court of Appeals upheld the Maine disclosure law, but clarified that the law
applies only to contracts entered into in Maine with respect to PBM customers, or covered entities in Maine. Further,
the court held that PBMs are not ERISA fiduciaries, but rather that their relaticnship with their customers is
contractual. The U.S. Supreme Court denied review of this case in June 2006. Among other things, the Maine law
also requires the benefits of certain pharmaceutical manufacturer price concessions to be passed through to PBM
clients. Similarly, both North Dakota and South Dakota have relatively comprehensive PBM laws that, among other
things, increase required financial transparency, and regulate therapeutic interchange programs. It is too early to
speculate what affect, if any, such state laws will have on PBM business operations or our ability to negotiate and/or
retain rebates and administrative fees from pharmaceutical manufacturers with respect to our customers in those
states, Additionally, we can give no assurance that other states will not enact similar legislation and the impact of
such legislation on our business operations is uncertain.

In addition, certain quasi-regulatory organizations, such as the National Association of Boards of Pharmacy,
an organization of state boards of pharmacy, the National Association of Insurance Commissioners, the “NAIC,” an
organization of state insurance regulators, URAC and the National Committee on Quality Assurance, “NCQA,” both
accreditation organizations, have considered or have recently passed proposals to regulate PBMs and/or PBM
activities, such as formulary development and utilization management. On June 7, 2006, URAC announced the
formation of a Pharmacy Benefit Management Standards Committee to advise the organization on the creation of
requirements for an accreditation program addressing pharmacy benefits management in the Medicare, commercial
insurance, and health plan arenas. On October 17, 2006, URAC released draft accreditation standards for PBMs’
commercial business and it is expected to release draft standards for PBMs’ Medicare business in early 2007. In the
summer of 2003, the NAIC adopted the “Health Carrier Prescription Drug Benefit Management Model Act” which
sets forth model provisions for states to regulate formularies and create an exceptions process to provide access to
non-formulary medicines and avoid drug management requirements such as step therapy. While the actions of the
NAIC do not have the force of law, they may influence states to adopt requirements similar to the Model Act.

Many states have licensure or registration laws governing certain types of ancillary health care organizations,
including preferred provider organizations, TPAs, companies that provide utilization review services and companies
that engage in the practices of a pharmacy. The scope of these laws differs significantly from state to state, and the
application of such laws to the activities of PBMs often is unclear,

We believe that we are in substantial compliance with all such laws and requirements where required, and
continue to monitor legislative and regulatory developments. There can be no assurance, however, regarding the
future interpretation of these laws and their applicability to the activities of our PBM business. Future legislation or
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regulation, or interpretations by regulatory and quasi-regulatory authorities of existing laws and regulations, could
materially affect the cost and nature of our business as currently conducted.

Network Access Legisiation.

A majority of states now have some form of legislation affecting cur ability to limit access to a pharmacy
provider network, referred to as any willing provider legislation, or removal of a network provider, referred to as due
process legislation. Such legislation may require us or our clients to admit any retail pharmacy willing to meet the
plan’s price and other terms for network participation, or may provide that a provider may not be removed from a
network except in compliance with certain procedures. Similarly, there are any willing pharmacy provisions
applicable to Medicare Part D plans with which we contract. These statutes have not materially affected our
business.

State Legislation Affecting Plan or Benefit Design.

Some states have enacted legislation that prohibits certain types of managed care plan sponsors from
implementing certain restrictive design features, and many states have legislation regulating various aspects of
managed care plans, including provisions relating to the pharmacy benefits. For example, some states, under so-
called freedom of choice legislation, provide that members of the plan may not be required to use network providers,
but must instead be provided with benefits even if they choose to use non-network providers. Other states have
enacted legislation purporting to prohibit health plans from offering members financial incentives for use of mail
service pharmacies. Legislation has been introduced in some states to prohibit or restrict therapeutic intervention, to
require coverage of all FDA-approved drugs or to require coverage for off-label uses of drugs where those uses are
recognized in peer-reviewed medical journals or reference compendia. Other states mandate coverage of certain
benefits or conditions and require health plan coverage of specific drugs, if deemed medically necessary by the
prescribing physician. Such legislation does not generally apply to us directly, but may apply to certain of our
clients, such as HMOs and health insurers. If legislation were to become widely adopted, it could have the effect of
limiting the economic benefits achievable through PBMs. This development could have a material adverse effect on
our business, results of operations, financial condition or cash flows.

State Regulation of Financial Risk Plans.

Fee-for-service prescription drug plans are generally not subject to financial regulation by the states, However,
if a PBM offers to provide prescription drug coverage on a capitated basis or otherwise accepts material financial
risk in providing the benefit, laws in various states may regulate the plan. Such laws may require that the party at
risk establish reserves or otherwise demonstrate financial responsibility. Laws that may apply in such cases include
insurance laws, HMO laws or limited prepaid health service plan laws. Currently, we do not believe that our PBM
business currently incurs financial risk of the type subject to such regulation. However, if we choose to become a
regional PDP for the Medicare outpatient prescription drug benefit at some time in the future, we would need to
comply with state laws governing risk-bearing entities in the states where we operate a PDP.

State Discount Drug Card Regulation.

Numerous states have laws and/or regulations regulating the selling, marketing, promoting, advertising or
distributing of commercial discount drug cards for cash purchases. Such laws and regulations provide, generally,
that any person may bring an action for damages or seek an injunction for violations. We administer a limited
commercial discount drug card program that we do not consider material to our business. We believe our
administration of the commercial discount drug card program is in compliance with various state laws. However,
there can be no assurance that the existence of such laws will not materially impact our ability to offer certain new
commercial products and/or services in the future.

Combined Federal and State Laws, Regulations and Other Standards Affecting the PBM Segment

Certain aspects of our PBM business are or may be affected by bodies of law that exist at both the federal and
state levels and by other standard setting entities. Among these are the following:
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Deficit Reduction Act of 2005,

On February 8, 2006, President Bush signed the Deficit Reduction Act of 2005, the “DRA,” into law, enacting
significant changes to the Medicaid system, a state and federally funded program, with respect to prescription drugs,
Among other things, the DRA revises the methodology used to determine federal upper payment limits, the-:
maximum amount a state can reimburse, for generic drugs under Medicaid, permits stronger cost-sharing
requirements applicable to Medicaid prescription drugs, and contains provisions intended to reduce fraud, waste and
abuse in the Medicaid program, The DRA’s fraud, waste and abuse provisions, among other things, incentivize
states t0 enact their own false claims acts, mirrored on the Federal False Claims Act, described above, and
appropriate federal funding to increase scrutiny of the Medicaid program. The fraud, waste and abuse provisions
also include a provision intended to strengthen Medicaid’s status as payer of last resort relative to private health
insurance by specifying that PBMs and self-insured plans may be liable third parties. Although we do not contract
directly with any state Medicaid programs, the provisions in the DRA have the potential to impact the PBM industry
by means of increased prosecutorial and private litigant scrutiny of the pharmaceutical industry in general, which
may include PBMs. Additionally, the DRA mandates the public availability of pharmaceutical manufacturer average
manufacturer prices, or “AMPs,” and creates incentives to states to use AMPs for Medicaid reimbupsement,
potentially paving the way for a more general market shift in reimbursement mechanisms from average wholesale
price-based methodologies to AMP-based methodologies, discussed in more detail , below, under “Legislation and
Litigation Affecting Drug Prices.” Additionally, the third party recovery provisions in the DRA may lead to greater
financial recoveries from third party PBMs in cases where Medicaid was not properly a primary payor on a drug
claim, even where a PBM is not financially at risk. DRA provisions regarding pharmacy restocking and double
billing are discussed below in the section titled “Regulations Affecting Mail-Order Pharmacies.”

Privacy and Confidentiality Legislation.

Our activities involve the receipt or use of confidenttal medical information concerning individual members.
In addition, we use aggregated and anonymized data for research and analysis purposes. Many state laws restrict the
use and disclosure of confidential medical information, and similar new legislative and regulatory initiatives are
underway in several states. To date, no such laws adversely impact our ability to provide our services, but there can
be no assurance that federal or state governments will not enact such legislation, impose restrictions or adopt
interpretations of existing laws that could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations,
financial condition or cash flows.

The final privacy regulations, the *Privacy Rule,” issued by the DHHS pursuant to the Health Information
Portability and Accountability Act, “HIPAA™ imposes extensive restrictions on the use and disclosure of
individually identifiable health information by certain entities known under the Privacy Rule as covered entities.
PBMs, in general, are not considered covered entities. However, our clients are covered entities, and are required to
enter into business associate agreements with vendors, such as PBMs, that perform a function or activity for the
covered entity that involves the use or disclosure of individually identifiable health information. The business
associate agreements mandated by the Privacy Rule create a contractual obligation for the PBM to perform its duties
for the covered entity in compliance with the Privacy Rule.

The final transactions and code sets regulation, the “Transaction Rule,” promulgated under HIPAA requires
that all covered entities that engage in electronic transactions use standardized formats and code sets. It is incumbent
upon PBMs to conduct all such transactions in accordance with the Transaction Rule to satisfy the obligations of
their covered entity clients. DHHS promulgated a National Provider Identifiers, “NPL,” Final Rule which requires
large health plans to utilize NPIs in all Standard Transactions after May 23, 2007 and requires small health plans to
utilize NPlIs in all Standard Transactions after May 23, 2008. NPIs will replace National Association of Boards of
Pharmacy numbers for pharmacies, Drug Enforcement Agency numbers for physicians and similar identifiers for
other health care providers.

We are undertaking the necessary arrangements to ensure that our standard transactions remain compliant with
the Transaction Rule subsequent to the implementation of NPI Final Rule. The final security regulations, the
“Security Rule,” issued pursuant to HIPAA mandate the use of administrative, physical and technical safeguards to
protect the confidentiality of electronic health care information. Similarly to the other two rules issued pursuant to
HIPAA, the Security Rule applies to covered entities. We have made the necessary arrangements to ensure

.14




compliance with the Security Rule, as we are subject to many of its requirements as a result of our contracts with
covered entities.

While implementation of the Privacy Rule, Transaction Rule and the Security Rule, the “HIPAA
Regulations,” is relatively new and future regulatory interpretations could alter our assessment, we currently believe
that compliance with the HIPAA Regulations should not have a material adverse effect on our business operations.
Also, pursuant to HIPAA, state laws that are more protective of medical information are not pre-empted by HIPAA. |
Therefore, to the extent states enact more protective legislation, we could be required to make significant changes to
our business operations. Coe

Independent of any regulatory restrictions, individual health plan sponsor clients could increase limitations on
our use of medical information, which could prevent us from offering certain services.

Legislation and Litigation Affecting Drug Prices.

Various federal and state Medicaid agencies, as well as legislators and private litigants have raised the issue of
how average wholesale price, “AWP,” is determined. AWP is a standard pricing unit published by third party data
sources and currently used throughout the PBM industry as the basis for determining drug pricing under contracts
with clients, pharmacies and pharmaceutical manufacturers. Under MMA, AWP no longer serves as the basis for
Medicare Part B Drug reimbursement, with certain limited exceptions. Rather, Part B drugs generally are
reimbursed on an average sales price, “ASP,” methodology. The ASP calculation methodology, which takes into
account various discounts offered by drug manufacturers, may cause some drug manufacturers to reduce the levels
of discounts or rebates available to PBMs or their clients with respect to Medicare Part B drugs. Drugs that are
reimbursed on an ASP reimbursement system by Medicare do not represent a significant portion of our business and
we therefore do not believe that ASP reimbursement for such drugs will have a material adverse effect on our
business, results of operations, financial condition or cash flows. The extent to which ASP will be used in pricing
outside the Medicare Part B context or changes to AWP state and federal programs could alter the calculation of
drug prices for federal and/or state programs. We are aware that at least one state, California, passed legislation in
2004 to implement a system to reimburse for Medicaid drugs using an ASP-based methodology, but such system has !
not yet been implemented. We are unable to predict whether any such changes will be adopted on a larger scale, and !
whether such changes would have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial
condition or cash flows.

As part of a proposed class action settlement in the case of New England Carpenters Health Benefits Fund v.
First DataBank, in a federal court in Massachusetts, First DataBank, “FDB,” has agreed to reduce the reported AWP
of thousands of specific pharmaceutical products by five percent. Additionally, FDB has agreed to cease reporting
AWPs for all pharmaceutical products within two years of the final setttement, with limited ability to resume
publication of AWPs. At this time, the proposed setttement has received only preliminary court approval, and has
not been finalized. We cannot predict the outcome of this case, or, if the settlement is approved, the precise timing
of any of the proposed AWP changes. Except when our health plan clients mandate the use of AWP as reported by
FDB, our contracts with pharmacies in our retail network and our health plan clients generally cite AWP as reported
by Medispan, National Drug Data file, as a pricing source for brand name and certain generic drugs. If Medispan
followed FDB in lowering the AWP reported for specific pharmaceutical products, the reductions could create
disruption in our retail pharmacy network due to the adverse impact on AWP-based retail pharmacy pricing and
pharmacy efforts to negotiate another drug pricing measure, such as AMP or Wholesale Acquisition Cost. Most of
our contracts with our clients and retail pharmacies contain terms that we believe will enable us to mitigate the
adverse effect of any proposed reduction in reported AWP. If the proposed settlement should become final we
would exercise our contractual rights as to mitigate as far as practicable the adverse impact to us. Whatever the
outcome of this case, we believe that payors, pharmacy providers and PBMs will begin to evaluate other pricing
benchmarks as the basis for contracting for prescription drugs and benefit management services in the future. We
believe our business model can utilize one or more other consistently calculated benchmarks but we cannot evaluate
the overall financial impact that the transition to any such alternative benchmark might have. Due to these and other
uncertainties, we can give no assurance that the short or long term impact of changes to industry pricing benchmarks
will not have a material adverse effect on our financial performance, results of operations, financial condition or
cash flows in future periods.
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The federal Medicaid rebate statute provides that pharmaceutical manufacturers must provide rebates on all
drugs purchased by the Medicaid program. Manufacturers of brand-name pharmaceuticals must provide the
Medicaid program a rebate equivalent to the greater of (1) 15.1% of AMP the average price for products sold to
wholesalers, or (2) the difference between AMP and the best price given to customers other than the Medicaid
program, with certain exceptions. We negotiate rebates with and services payments from drug manufacturers.
Investigations have been commenced by certain government agencies which question whether AMPs and best
prices, and thus Medicaid rebates, were properly calculated, reported and paid by the manufacturers to the Medicaid
programs. We are not responsible for such calculations, reports or payments. Some pharmaceutical manufacturers
may view the Medicaid rebate statute and/or the associated investigations as a disincentive to offer rebates and
discounts to private parties, including PBMs and this may adversely affect our ability to negotiate manufacturer
rebates in the future.

Additionally, the DRA, discussed above, directs the Secretary of DHHS to draft regulations further clarifying
the calculation of AMP by pharmaceutical manufacturers and to make AMPs public beginning in 2007. In
December 2006, CMS published draft regulations intended to clarify the calculation of AMP. It is our understanding
that manufacturers have taken varying interpretations of the current law with respect to the treatment of rebates and
administrative fees paid to PBMs in the AMP calculation. The draft AMP regulations and the final AMP regulations,
anticipated in 2007, as well as the publication of manufacturer AMPs have the potential to affect our ability to
negotiate manufacturer administrative fees and rebates in the future, and may affect the rates at which our
pharmacies are reimbursed, but we cannot predict at this time whether the affect of such possible changes will be
positive or negative.

Additionally, some states have adopted so-called most favored nation legislation providing that a pharmacy
participating in the state Medicaid program must give the state the lowest price that the pharmacy makes available to
any third-party plan. Such legislation may adversely affect our ability to negotiate discounts in the future from
network pharmacies.

Voluntary Industry Ethical Guidelines.

The Pharmaceutical Research and Manufacturers of America encourages its members to comply with a
voluntary ethical code titled “PhRMA Code On Interactions with Healthcare Professionals.” This code, which is
generally voluntary, but has the force of law in California, provides guidance relating to several facets of
pharmaceutical manufacturers’ marketing practices, particularly with respect to payments to providers. We believe
that these ethical guidelines do not have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial
operations or cash flows.

Future Regulation.

We are unable to predict accurately what additional federal or state legislation or regulatory initiatives may be
enacted in the future relating to our businesses or the health care industry in general, or what effect any such
legislation or regulations might have on us. For example, the federal government and several state governments have
proposed Patients’ Bill of Rights or other similar legislation aimed primarily at improving quality of care provided
to individuals in managed care plans. Some of the initiatives propose providing greater access to drugs not included
on health plan formularies, giving participants the right to sue their health plan for malpractice, and mandating an
appeals or grievance process. There can be no assurance that federal or state governments will not impose additional
restrictions, via a Patients’ Bill of Rights or otherwise, or adopt interpretations of existing laws that could have a
material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition or cash flows.

Regulations Affecting Mail Order Pharmacies

We operate a facility in Fort Lauderdale, Florida that provides limited mail order services to certain of our
PBM customers. This facility principally fills workers’ compensation and hospice-related prescriptions.
Nonetheless, we are subject to state and federal statutes and regulations governing the operation of pharmacies,
repackaging of drug products and dispensing of controlled substances.
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Regulation of Controlled Substances.

Our mail order facility must register with the United States Drug Enforcement Administration and individual
state controlled substance authorities in order to dispense controlled substances. Federal law requires us to comply
with the DEA’s security, recordkeeping, inventory control, and labeling standards in order to dispense controlled
substances. State controlled substance law requires registration and compliance with state pharmacy licensure,
registration or permit standards promulgated by the state pharmacy licensing authority.

State Licensure Laws.

Qur mail order facility is located in Florida, and we are licensed to do business as a pharmacy there.
Furthermore, many states require out-of-state mail order pharmacies to register with the state board of pharmacy or
similar governing body when pharmaceuticals are delivered by mail into the state. Also, some states require that an
out-of-state pharmacy employ a pharmacist that is licensed in the state into which pharmaceuticals are shipped. We
believe we are in substantial compliance with state licensure and registration requirements.

Other Regulations.

The federal Deficit Reduction Act of 2005, recently signed into law, will explicitly prohibit the restocking and
double billing of prescription drugs in connection with the Medicaid Program. Additionally, the Federal Trade
Commission, referred to as “FTC,” regulates advertising by mail order pharmacies and requires such facilities to
stock a reasonable supply of a product sold, to fill mail orders within 30 days and to provide customer refunds where
appropriate. In addition, the FDA sets standards for the packaging of prescription drugs. Federal and state anti-
remuneration laws also apply to our mail order pharmacy. We believe we are in substantial compliance with state
and federal requirements pertaining to our mail order pharmacy operations. -

Regulations Affecting the Supplemental Benefits Segment

Because our supplemental benefit programs include insurance benefits, distribution of our programs must
satisfy applicable legal requirements relating, among other things, to policy form and rate approvals, the licensing
laws for insurance agents and insurance brokers, and the satisfaction by a HealthExtras member who receives the
insurance benefit of requisite criteria, for example being a resident of a state which has approved the insurance
policy. We believe we satisfy applicable requirements. The underwriter of the insurance benefits included in our
supplemental benefit programs is responsible for obtaining regulatory approvals for those benefits. Independent
licensed insurance agencies are responsible for the solicitation of insurance benefits involved in those programs.

Complex laws, rules and regulations of each of the 50 states and the District of Columbia pertaining to
insurance impose strict and substantial requirements on insurance coverage sold to consumers and businesses.
Compliance with these laws, rules and regulations can be arduous and imposes sigmificant costs. Each jurisdiction’s
insurance regulator typically has the power, among other things, to:

s administer and enforce the laws and promulgate rules and regulations applicable to insurance,
including the quotation of insurance premiums;

+ approve policy forms and regulate premium rates;

¢ regulate how, by which personnel and under what circumstances an insurance premium can be
quoted and published; and

» regulate the solicitation of insurance and license insurance companies, agents and brokers who solicit
insurance.

State insurance laws and regulations are complex and broad in scope and are subject to periodic modification,
as well as differing interpretations. There can be no assurance that insurance regulatory authorities in one or more
states will not determine that the nature of our business requires us to be licensed under applicable insurance laws. A
determination to that effect or that we or the distributors are otherwise not in compliance with applicable regulations
could result in fines, additional licensing requirements or our inability to market the products in particular
jurisdictions. Such penalties could significantly increase our general operating expenses and harm our business. In
addition, even if the allegations in any regulatory or legal action against us turn out to be false, negative publicity
relating to any such allegation could result in a loss of consumer confidence and significant damage to our brand.
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One of the primary means by which our programs are marketed is telemarketing, which the marketers may
outsource to third parties. The Federal Telemarketing and Consumer Fraud and Abuse Prevention Act of 1994,
related state laws and FTC regulations prohibit deceptive, unfair or abusive practices in telemarketing sales. Both
the FTC and state attorneys general have authority to prevent certain telemarketing activitics deemed by them to
violate consumer protection.

In 2003, the FTC established the national Do-Not-Call Regisiry. Both the FTC and the Federal
Communications Commission have adopted rules to enforce restrictions on companies marketing their goods and
services to consumers by telephone. Subject to certain exemptions (such as an existing business relationship with the
called party), telemarketers may not initiate telephone solicitations to individuals that have registered their numbers
on the national Do-Not-Call Registry. Those who disregard the national Do-Not-Call Registry can be {ined up to
$11,000 per call. Companies are also required to maintain their own lists of consumers that have stated that they do
not wish to receive future marketing calls, and must not solicit such consumers by telephone, even if the call falls
within the scope of one of the exemptions to the national do-not-call rules.

The Do-Not-Call Registry has not had a material adverse effect on the sale of our supplemental benefit
programs. We have continued to meet our enrollment targets.

There can be no assurance that federal or state laws regulating telemarketing will not materially impact our
business in the future. In addition, some states have enacted laws, and others are considering enacting laws, targeted
directly at regulating telemarketing practices. There can be no assurance that any such laws will not adversely affect
or limit our current or future operations. While compliance with these laws and regulations is generally the
responsibility of the marketers and subcontractors, there can be no assurance that we would have no exposure to
liability.

EMPLOYEES

As of December 31, 2006, we had 410 employees whose services are devoted full time to HealthExtras and its
subsidiarics. We have never had a work stoppage. Our personnel are not represented by any collective bargaining
unit. We consider our relations with our personnel to be good. Our future success will depend, in part, on our ability
to continue to attract, retain and motivate highly qualified technical and managerial personnel, for whom
competition s intense.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS
Risks Related To Our Pharmacy Benefits Management Segment

Competifion in our industry is intense and could reduce or eliminate our profitability.

The PBM industry is very competitive. If we do not compete effectively, our business, results of operations,
financial condition or cash flows could suffer. The industry is highly consolidated and dominated by a few large
companies with significant resources, purchasing power and other competitive advantages, which we do not have. A
limited number of firms, including national PBM companies sach as Medco, Express Scripts, Inc., and Caremark
Rx, Inc., have an aggregate market share of approximately 70% of prescription volume, Our competitors also
include drug retailers, physician practice management companies, and insurance companies/health maintenance
organizations. We may also experience competition from other sources in the future, PBM companies compete
primarily on the basis of price, service, reporting capabilities and clinical services. In most cases, our competitors
are large, profitable and well-established companies with substantially greater financial and marketing resources
than our resources.

If we lose key clients as a result of competitive bidding for contracts, consolidation of clients or otherwise, our
business, profitability and growth prospects could suffer.

We depend on a limited number of clients for a significant portion of our revenue. QOur top ten clients
generated approximately 54.5% of our PBM revenue in 2006, including approximately 13.9% from Wellmark Blue
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Cross Blue Shield of lowa and approximately 12.1% from the State of Louisiana. Our business, results of
operations, financial condition or cash flows could suffer if we were to lose one or more of our significant clients.

Many of our clients put their contracts out for competitive bidding prior to expiration. Competitive bidding
requires costly and time-consuming efforts on our behalf and, even after we have won such bidding processes, we
can incur significant expense in proceedings or litigation contesting the adequacy or fairness of these bidding
processes. We could lose clients if they cance! their agreements with us, if we fail to win a competitive bid at the
time of contract renewal, if the financial condition of any of our clients deteriorates or if our clients are acquired by,
or acquire, companies with which we do not have contracts. Over the past several years, self-funded employers,
TPAs and other managed care companies have experienced significant consolidation. Consolidations by their very
nature reduce the number of clients who may need our services. A client involved in a merger or acquisition by a
company that is not a client of ours may not renew, and in some instances may terminate, its contract with us. Our
clients have been and may continue to be, subject to consolidation pressures.

If we lose pharmacy network affiliations, our business, results of operations, financial condition or cash flows
could suffer.

Our PBM operations are dependent to a significant extent on our ability to obtain discounts on prescription
purchases from retail pharmacies that can be utilized by our clients and their members. Our contracts with retail
pharmacies, which are non-exclusive, are generally terminable by either party on short notice. If one or more of our
top pharmacy chains elects to terminate its relationship with us or if we are only able to continue our relationship on
terms less favorable to us, access to retail pharmacies by our clients and their health plan members, and our
business, results of aperations, financial condition or cash flows could suffer. In addition, some large retail
pharmacy chains either own or have strategic alliances with PBMs or could attempt to acquire or enter into these
kinds of relationships in the future. Ownership of, or alliances with, PBMs by retail pharmacy chains, particularly
large pharmacy chains, could have material adverse effects on our relationships with those retail pharmacy chains,
particularly the discounts they are willing to make available, and on our business, results of operations, financial
condition or cash flows.

If we lose relationships with one or more key pharmaceutical manufacturers or if rebate payments we receive
from pharmaceutical manufacturers decline, our business, results of operations, financial condition or cash
Slows could suffer.

We receive rebates from numerous pharmaceutical manufacturers based on the use of selected drugs by
members of health plans sponsored by our clients, as well as fees for other programs and services. We believe our
business, results of operations, financial condition or cash flows could suffer if:

»  we lose relationships with one or more key pharmaceutical manufacturers;

s  we are unable to finalize rebate contracts with one or more key pharmaceutical manufacturers for
2007, or are unable to negotiate interim arrangements;

»  rebates decline due to the failure of our health plan sponsors to meet market share or other thresholds;

» lepal restrictions are imposed on the ability of pharmaceutical manufacturers to offer rebates or
purchase our programs or services;

s  pharmaceutical manufacturers choose not to offer rebates or purchase our programs or services; or
s rebates decline due to contract branded products loosing their patents.

Over the next few years, as patents expire covering many brand name drugs that currently have substantial
market share, generic products will be introduced that may substantially reduce the market share of these brand
name drugs. Historically, manufacturers of generic drugs have not offered formulary rebates on their drugs. Our
profitability could be adversely affected if the use of newly approved, brand name drugs added to formularies, does
not offset any decline in use of brand name drugs whose patents expire.
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Changes in Industry Pricing Benchmarks Could Adversely Affect Qur Financial Performance.

Contracts in the prescription drug industry, including our contracts with cur retail pharmacy networks and
with our PBM clients, generally use certain published benchmarks to establish pricing for prescription drugs. These
benchmarks include AWP, AMP and wholesale acquisition cost, referred to as “WAC”. Most of our contracts utilize
the AWP standard. Recent events, including legislation applicable to Medicare, have raised uncertainties as to
whether payors, pharmacy providers, PBMs and others in the prescription drug industry will continue to utilize
AWP as it has previously been calculated or whether other pricing benchmarks will be adopted for establishing
prices within the industry. These matters are discussed in detail in under “Business—Government
Regulation/Legisiation and Litigation Affecting Drug Price,” above. We believe that payors, pharmacy providers
and PBMSs will begin to evaluate other pricing benchmarks as the basis for contracting for prescription drugs and
benefit management services in the future.

Due to these and other uncertainties, we can give no assurance that the short or long term impact of
changes to industry pricing benchmarks will not have a material adverse effect on our financial performance, results
of operations, financial condition or cash flows in future periods.

If our business continues to grow rapidly and we are unable to manage this growth, our business, results of
operations, financial condition or cash flows could suffer.

Our business has grown rapidly since 2000, in part due to acquisitions, with total annual PBM revenue
increasing from $4.9 million in 2000 to $1.2 billion in 2006. Qur business strategy is to continue to seek to expand
our PBM operations, including through possible acquisitions. If we are unable to finance continued growth, manage
future expansion or hire and retain the personnel needed to manage our business successfully, then our business,
results of operations, financial condition or cash flows could be adversely affected. Our growth in operations has
placed significant demands on our management and other resources, which is likely to continue. Under these
conditions, it is important for us to retain our existing management, and to attract, hire and retain additional highly
skilled and motivated officers, managers and employees.

If we are unable to manage potential problems and risks related to future acquisitions, our business, results of
operations, financial condition or cash flows could suffer.

Part of our growth strategy includes making acquisitions involving new markets and complementary products,
services, technologies and businesses. If we are unable to overcome the potential problems and inherent risks related
to such future acquisitions, our business, results of operations, financial condition or cash flows could suffer. Our
ability to continue to expand successfully through acquisitions depends on many factors, including our ability to
identify acquisition prospects and negotiate and close transactions. Even if we complete future acquisiticns:

¢ we could fail to successfully integrate the operations, services and products of an acquired company;

e there could be inconsistencies in standards, controls, procedures and policies among the companies
being combined or assimilated which would make it more difficult to implement and harmonize
company-wide financial, accounting, billing, information technology and other systems;

e we may experience difficulties maintaining the quality of products and services that acquired
companies have historically provided,

s we would be required to amortize the identifiabie intangible assets of an acquired business, which
will reduce our net income in the years following its acquisition, and we also would be required to
reduce our net income in future years if we were to experience an impairment of goodwill or other
intangible assets attributable to an acquisition;

e we could be exposed to unanticipated liabilities of acquired businesses;
¢  our management’s attention could be diverted from other business concerns; and

s we could lose key employees or customers of the acquired business.
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In November 2006, we acquired R/x*. We expect to integrate the operations of R/x" during 2007. There are
risks associated with integrating and operating newly acquired businesses. We can give no assurance that we will
successfully operate this new business in the future.

_ Many companies compete for acquisition opportunities in the PBM industry. Most of our competitors are
companies that have significantly greater financial and management resources than we do. This may reduce the
likelihood that we will be successful in completing acquisitions necessary to the future success of our business.

If we become subject to liability claims that are not covered by our insurance policies, we may be liable for
damages and other expenses that could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations,
Jinancial condition or cash flows.

Various aspects of our business may subject us to litigation and liability for damages, for example, the
performance of PBM services and the operation of our call centers and Web site. A successful product or
professional liability claim in excess of our insurance coverage where we are required to pay damages, incur legal
costs or face negative publicity could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial
condition or cash flows, our business reputation and our ability to attract and retain clients, network pharmacies, and
employees. While we intend to maintain professional and general liability insurance coverage at all times, we cannot
provide assurances that we will be able to maintain insurance in the future, that insurance will be available on
acceptable terms or that insurance will be adequate to cover any or all potential product or professional liability
claims.

Disruption of our point of sale information system and transaction processing system, which relies on third
parties, could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of aperation, financial condition or cash
Sflows.

Our operations utilize an electronic network connecting approximately 58,000 retail pharmacies to process
third-party claims. This system is provided by a third-party adjudication vendor. Because claims are adjudicated in
real time, systems availability and reliability are key to meeting customers’ service expectations. Any interruption in
real time service, either through systems availability or telecommunications disruptions can significantly damage the
quality of service we provide. Our PBM services also depend on third-party proprietary software to perform
automated transaction processing. There can be no assurance that our business will not be harmed by service
interruptions or software performance problems.

The failure by our health plan clients to pay for prescription claims or a delay in payment of those claims could
have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operation, financial condition or cash flows.

Our contracts with retail pharmacies which participate in our network generally obligate us to make payments
for prescription claims even if we are not reimbursed by our clients. If our clients delay their reimbursement
payments or fail to make payments for prescription claims, it could have a material adverse effect on our business,
results of operations, financial condition or cash flows.

If we fail to comply with complex and rapidly evelving laws and regulations, we could suffer civil and/or criminal
penalties, lose clients, be required to pay substantial damages or make significant changes to our operations.

During the past several years, the U.S. health care industry has been subject to an increase in governmental
regulation at both the federal and state levels. We are subject to numerous federal and state regulations, 1f we fail to
comply with existing or future applicable laws and regulations, we could suffer civil or criminal penalties. We must
devote significant operational and managerial resources to comply with these laws and regulations. Although we
beligve that we substantially comply with all existing statutes and regulations applicable to our business, different
interpretations and enforcement policies of these laws and regulations could subject our current practices to
allegations of impropriety or illegality, or could require us to make significant changes to our operations. In
addition, we cannot predict the impact of future legislation and regulatory changes on our business or assure you that
we will be able to obtain or maintain the regulatory approvals required to operate our business.

Among the legislation and government regulations that could affect us as a provider of PBM services are the
regulatory matters discussed in detail in under “Business—Government Regulation,” above.
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Government efforts to reduce health care costs and alter health care financing practices could lead to a
decreased demand for our services or to reduced rebates from manufacturers.

Efforts to control health care costs, including prescription drug costs, are underway at the federal and state
government levels. Congress is also currently considering proposals to reform the U.S. health care system. These
proposals may increase governmental involvement in health care and PBM services and may otherwise change the
way our clients do business. Our clients and prospective clients may react to these proposals and the uncertainty
surrounding them by cutting back or delaying the purchase of our PBM services, and manufacturers may react by
reducing rebates or reducing supplies of certain products. These proposals could lead to a decreased demand for our
services or to reduced rebates from manufacturers.

In addition, both Congress and state legislatures are expected to consider legistation to increase governmental
regulation of managed care plans. Some of these initiatives would, among other things, require that health plan
members have greater access to drugs not included on a plan’s formulary and give health plan members the right to
sue their health plans for malpractice when they have been denied care. The scope of the managed care reform
proposals under consideration by Congress and state legislatures and enacted by states to date vary greatly, and we
cannot predict the extent of future legislation. However, these initiatives could greatly limit our business practices
and impair our ability to serve our clients.

MMA creates a voluntary outpatient prescription drug benefit, which subjects us to certain regulations and
scrutiny, even in our limited role as a subcontractor to Part D Plans.

There are many uncertainties presented by the MMA, which is one of the reasons we opted not to participate
under the interim endorsed drug discount card program or to directly sponsor a PDP. However, we do contract with
Medicare Part D Plans, as described under “Business—Government Regulation,” above. In the limited capacity of a
subcontractor we will be subject, indirectly, to certain regulatory requirements, as more fully described in the
detailed discussion of the MMA and its potential implications under “Business—Government Regulation,” above.

Risks Related To Qur Supplemental Benefits Segment

The National Do Not Call Registry under FTC rules may have a material adverse effect on the marketing of our
supplemental benefit programs.

Over 50 million consumers have registered on the Do-Not-Call Registry established by the FTC, which
became effective on October 1, 2003. This Registry limits the ability to telemarket our supplemental benefit
programs. Although we do not believe the Registry has had a material adverse effect on sales of our supplemental
benefit programs to date, it could have such an effect in the future.

If we lose one or more or substantially change any of our marketing relationships, our access to potential
customers would decline, and our business, results of operation, financial condition or cash flows could suffer.

A significant majority of all of our supplemental benefit program sales is attributable to our marketing
relationships with Stonebridge Life Insurance Company, a member of the AEGON Group of Companies, and
American Express Travel Related Services Company, Inc. If we lose one or more or substantially change any of
these relationships and are unable to replace them with other marketing outlets, our access to potential customers
would decline and our business, results of operations, financial condition or cash flows could suffer.

Ifwe lose our relationships with the providers of the benefits under our programs, we could have difficulty
meeting demand for our programs.

We are dependent on third party providers for the benefits included in our supplemental benefit programs.
Those benefits are provided pursuant to arrangements with National Union Fire Insurance Company of Pittsburgh, a
subsidiary of American International Group Inc., Unum Life Insurance Company of America, and others, which
may be terminated on relatively short notice. If we were to lose these relationships and were unable to replace them
quickly and cost effectively, we would not be able to satisfy consumer demand for our programs.
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If the providers of the benefits included in our programs fail to pay or otherwise provide accrued benefits, or the
extent of those benefits is deemed to be greater than the providers are obligated to pay, we could become subject
to liability claims by program members.

The benefits included in the member programs are provided by other firms. If the firms with which we have
contracted to provide those benefits fail to pay or otherwise provide them as required, or are negligent or otherwise
culpable in providing them, or if it is determined that the level of benefits to which members are entitled exceeds the
obligations of the providers, we could become involved in any resulting claim or litigation.

If we fail to comply with all of the various and complex laws and regulations governing our products and
marketing, we could be subject to fines or additional licensing requirements or lose the ability to market in
particular jurisdictions.

Complex laws, rules and regulations of each of the 50 states and the District of Columbia pertaining to
insurance impose strict and substantial requirements on insurance coverage sold to consumers and businesses.

Compliance with these laws, rules and regulations can be arduous and imposes significant costs. The
underwriters of the insurance benefits included in our programs are responsible for obtaining and maintaining
regulatory approvals for those benefits. If the appropriate regulatory approvals for those insurance benefits are not
maintained, we would have to stop including them. An independent licensed insurance agency is responsible for
solicitations regarding the insurance benefits involved in our programs.

State insurance laws and regulations are complex and broad in scope and are subject to periodic modification
as well as differing interpretations. There can be no assurance that insurance regulatory authorities in one or more
states will not determine that the nature of our business requires us to be licensed under applicable insurance laws. A
determination to that effect or that we or our business partners are not in compliance with applicable regulations
could result in fines, additional licensing requirements or the inability to market our programs in particular
jurisdictions. Such penalties could significantly increase our general operating expenses and harm our business,
results of operations and financial condition. In addition, even if the allegations in any regulatory or legal action
against us turn out to be false, negative publicity relating to any such allegation could result in a loss of consumer
confidence and significant damage to our brand.

Telemarketing is one of the primary means by which our programs are marketed. Telemarketing has become
subject to an increasing amount of Federal and state regulation in the past several years. For example, such
regulation limits the hours during which telemarketers may call consumers and prohibits the use of automated
telephone dialing equipment to call certain telephone numbers. The Federal Telemarketing and Consumer Fraud and
Abuse Prevention Act of 1994 and FTC regulations prohibit deceptive, unfair or abusive practices in telemarketing
sales,

Both the FTC and state attomeys general have authority to prevent certain telemarketing activities deemed by
them to violate consumer protection. The FTC has adopted regulations which prohibit most telemarketers from
calling a number listed on a National Do Not Call Registry. Violators are subject to a fine of up to $11,000 per
violation. Under those FTC regulations, telemarketers can continue to call consumers with whom a company has an
existing business relationship and consumers who request information about a company’s products can be called for
three months. In addition, some states have enacted laws and others are considering enacting laws targeted directly
at regulating telemarketing practices, and there can be no assurance that any such laws, if enacted, will not adversely
affect or limit our current or future operations. While compliance with these regulations is generally the
responsibility of the marketers and subcontractors, there can be no assurance that we would have no exposure to
liability.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
Not applicable.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

In June 2004, we entered into a ten-year lease for approximately 37,000 square feet of office space in a new
office building located in Rockville, Maryland and moved our headquarters to the new location in the third quarter
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of 2004. In June 20086, this lease was amended to add an additional 7,000 square feet of office space in the same
building which we occupied in February 2007. We also have satellite offices in Florida, Georgia, lowa, Louisiana,
Mississippi, Nevada, New Mexico, North Carolina and Texas,

Ten of our eleven satellite offices, with a tatal of 55,000 square feet, are under leases that expire over terms
through August 2013 and the other office is under a month-to-month lease. We believe that suitable space on
commercially reasonable terms wiil be available as required.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

From time to time we become subject to legal proceedings and claims in the ordinary course of business. Such
claims, even if without merit, could result in the significant expenditure of our financial and managerial resources.
We are not aware of any legal proceedings or claims that we believe will, individually or in the aggregate, materially
harm our business, results of operations, financial condition or cash flows.

We entered into formal arbitration proceedings to recover funds owed to us by a former service provider. We
are confident that the amount we recognized in our financial statements represents the true and valid amount due
from this service provider. Nonetheless, the counter party is contesting the amount due and there is risk that a
determination resulting from the arbitration process could differ from the amounts recognized in the financial
statements. We do not expect the ultimate outcome of this proceeding to have a material adverse effect on our
financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.

ITEM 4.  SUBMISSION OF MATTERS FOR A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

There were no matters submitted to a vote of security holders during the quarter ended December 31, 2006.
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PART II

ITEM 5, MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our common stock is traded on the NASDAQ Global Select Market under the symbol “HLEX.” The
following table sets forth for each period indicated the high and low sales closing prices for our common stock on
the NASDAQ Global Select Market since July 3, 2006 and prior to that date on the predecessor NASDAQ National
Market:

High Low

2008

FAISE QUATTET oottt ass e sss b e st st sa b b e b b nbebesbse s babnbasa b be bt ntaranserin $17.87 $14.48
SE0ORA QUATIET ..ottt e et se e st e e $20.29 $15.82
THIT QUATTET .vovveeeeereriiri st ieesessereosrssessesrsroreinessensensasmesessesmasesessesessesmnsssnessennsneses D224 $18.99
FOUMH QUATTET ..ottt se e e e e e e e e e $25.35 $18.28
2006

FAISE QUAITET ...ttt enes s aenesencsnenenerererenes D IO.89 $27.23
SECONA QUATTEE. ....veveeiriererereaesreeerstsissiteressserssee s ere e e e essrnsssesss s enererssereensaneresesesnsnnas $34.90 $27.05
TRITA QUATTET . .ceeeeee ettt e et stttk ettt seberer et et escrenen $31.05 $25.69
FOUM QUATTET ...t $27.85 $20.26

On February 16, 2007, the closing sale price of the common stock, as reported by the NASDAQ Global Select
Market was $24.89 per share. As of February 16, 2007, there were approximately 14,000 holders of our common
stock either of record or in street name.

Dividend Policy

We have never paid a dividend on our common stock and have no present intention on commencing the
payment of cash dividends. It is possible that the Board could determine in the future, based on the Company’s
financial and other relevant circumstances at that time, to pay dividends.

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

The Company issued 25,000 shares of its common stock in 2006 and 2005, respectively, to a non-employee
pursuant to a previously executed consulting services agreement. This issuance was made in reliance upon
Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933,
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected financial data has been derived from the audited financial statements of the Company.
The selected financial data should be read in conjunction with “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations™ and the audited consolidated financial statements, including notes thereto.

For the Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

(In thousands except per share data)

Statement of Operations Data:

REVENUE......coovovririesissivessesecssessss s esssnssanens $1,271,006 _§694,519 _ §521,325  §384,094 $ 248,407
Direct EXPENSES (1)eveereimrierierreierinsieierisneeesienens 1,176,877 627,194 471,948 348,666 214,872
Selling, general and administrative (1)............. 46,414 32,501 24418 18,400 30,135
Total operating €Xpenses ..........co.eeeren. 1,223,291 659,695 496,366 367,066 245,007
Operating iNCOME .....cvvvviveveicvernrveraeereraesenne 47,715 34,824 24,959 17,028 3,400
Interest income (expense), Net........ccocvovererennns 4,374 1,231 (762) (443) (82)
OUhET IMCOMIE 11t ee s 141 87 2,100 — —
Income before income taxes and
ININOTILY INLETESt ... crererereirervncererareenes 52,230 36,142 26,297 16,585 3,318
MinOrity IEIESt.....rvreerceereceeeeeressenesenrerensens 248 — 45
Income before income taxes ......c..o....... 51,982 36,142 26,297 16,585 3,273
Income tax (benefit) expense ........ccccceevneennene. 20,408 13,162 9,914 6,268 (10,205)
Net iNCOME.....vucveeererrirereraeisere s serienaenes $31,574  $22,980 $ 16,383 $ 10,317 $13.478
Net income per share, basic. ..o, $0.78 $0.59 $0.49 $0.32 $042
Net income per share, diluted.......................... $0.75 $0.56 $0.45 $0.30 $0.42
Weighted average shares of common stock
outstanding, basiC ........cceveverrerevrerrsrerernreenes 40,270 38,648 33,642 32,447 32,234
Weighted average shares of common stock
outstanding, diluted .....ccccovvnirvricrireininnens 42,319 41,353 36,407 34,454 32,420

Balance Sheet Data:
Cash, cash equivalents and marketable

SECUTIHIES ...eeeeeveieeeeeeee e e ee e $91,701 $ 55,625 § 67,068 $ 28,877 $17,531
TOtAl ASSEES .vvvvvrvveersieereerrereeeeeteeeeeeereeeeneeenes 436,024 286,012 244,252 141,768 120,002
Long termdebt.......cocooveviiviiiiine — 7,500 20,500 10,000 18,000
Total liabllities .....ccccccoeeiiirvrevrreeree e 194,729 100,720 96,602 70,790 60,477
Total stockholders’ equity ........cooveverninrerennnes 240,047 185,292 147,650 70,978 59,525

(1) — Certain reclassifications were made to prior year amounts to conform to current year presentation. Specifically,
certain selling, general and administrative expenses, such as third-party commissions, client and member services
costs, and information technology costs have been reclassified to direct expenses. Amounts reclassified from selling,
general and administrative expense to direct expense were $13.9 million, $11.2 million, $7.5 million and 3$5.3
million for the vears ended December 31, 2005, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. We belicve this presentation
better reflects the nature of these costs as being more indicative of the direct effort to manage and process our client
revenue. These changes have no impact on our previously reported revenue, total operating expenses or operating
income.
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ITEM7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

This Form 10-K may contain forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 21 E of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934. These forward-looking statements involve a number of risks and uncertainties including,
without limitation, those identified under Item 1A, “Risk Factors” and elsewhere in this Form 10-K. We undertake
no obligation to revise any forward-looking statements in order to reflect events or circumstances that may arise
after the date of this report. Readers are urged to carefully review and consider the various disclosures made in this
report and in our other filings with the SEC that attempt to advise interested parties of the risks and factors that may
affect our business.

OVERVIEW

The Company

HealthExtras provides pharmacy benefit management services, referred to as PBM, and supplemental benefit
programs. Qur PBM segment, which operates primarily under the brand name Catalyst Rx, accounted for
approximately 97%, 94% and 91% of our revenue in the years ended 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, and is
expected to be the primary source of our growth and profits in the future. Our PBM clients include more than 1,000
self-insured employers, including state and local governments, managed care organizations, third-party
administrators, referred to as TPAs, and unions, who contract with us to administer the prescription drug component
of their overall health benefit programs. Our PBM segment revenue increased by 89% to $1.2 billion in 2006 from
$650.9 millicn in 2005. During 2006, we initiated services with several large new PBM clients. As a result, total
claims processed increased to 29.3 million in 2006 from 17.1 million in 2005. In particular, beginning July 1, 2006,
we commenced providing PBM services to over 1.0 million members of Wellmark Blue Cross Blue Shield of lowa.
For the year ended December 31, 2006, this new client was responsible for 5.1 million claims and accounted for
13.9% of our PBM revenue and 13.5% of our total revenue for the year.

We also offer supplemental benefit programs developed by us under the brand name HealthExtras, which
include lump sum accidental disability benefits, accidental death and dismemberment benefits, and emergency
accident and sickness medical benefits. We contract with insurance companies to underwrite the insurance
components of these programs. As a result, the financial responsibility for the payment of claims resulting from a
qualifying event covered by the insurance features of our programs is borne by the third-party insurers. Our
supplemental benefits segment accounted for approximately 3%, 6% and 9% of our revenue in the years ended
2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Individuals are the major purchasers of these programs.

PHARMACY BENEFIT MANAGEMENT
Catalyst Rx

Our PBM segment provides our clients access to a contracted, non-exclusive national network of more than
58,000 pharmacies. We provide our clients’ members with timely and accurate benefit adjudication, while
controlling pharmacy spending trends through customized plan designs, physician orientation programs, and
member education. We use an electronic point-of-sale system of eligibility verification and plan design information,
and offers access to rebate arrangements for certain branded pharmaceuticals. When a member of one of our clients
presents a prescription or health plan identification card to a retail pharmacist in our network, the system provides
the pharmacist with access to online information regarding eligibility, patient history, health plan formulary listings,
and contractual reimbursement rates. The member generally pays a co-payment to the retail pharmacy and the
pharmacist fills the prescription. We electronically aggregate pharmacy benefit claims, which include prescription
costs plus our claims processing fees, for consolidated billing and payment. We receive payments from clients, make
payments of amounts owed to the retail pharmacies pursuant to our negotiated rates, and retain the difference,
including claims processing fees.

Pharmacy benefit claim payments from our clients are recorded as revenue, and prescription costs to be paid
to pharmacies are recorded as direct expenses. Under our network contracts, we generally have an independent
obligation to pay pharmacies for the drugs dispensed and, accordingly, have assumed that risk independent of our
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clients. When we administer pharmacy reimbursement contracts and do not assume a credit risk, we record only our
administrative or processing fees as revenue. Rebates earned under arrangements with manufacturers are recorded as
a reduction of direct expenses. The portion of manufacturer rebates due to clients is recorded as a reduction of
revenue.

Member co-payments are not recorded as revenue or direct expenses. We incur no obligations for co-
payments to pharmacies and have never made such payments. Under our pharmacy agreements, the pharmacy is
solely obligated to collect the co-payments from the members.

If we had included co-payments in our reported revenue and direct expenses, it would have resulted in an
increase in our reported PBM revenue and direct expenses of $477.0 million, $279.2 million and $213.0 million, for
the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Our operating and net income, consolidated
balance sheets and statements of cash flows would not have been affected.

The following table illustrates the effects on the reported PBM revenue and direct expenses if we had included
the actual member co-payments as indicated by our claims processing system (in thousands):

December 31, December 31, December 31,
2006 2005 2004
Reported PBM revenue.........couieceiececaraerevsinrans $1,229,144 $ 650,911 $475,229
Member CO-PaymMENtS.......c.cveererrereerirrerereaseraenenrnne 476,983 279,238 213,014
TOAL e $1,706,127 $930,149 $ 688,243
Reported PBM direct eXpenses .....cccoovvvcvveeciairneninns $1,149,233 $ 594,251 $436,305
Member CO-PaYMENtS......ccouvveereirviesreinireirsin e e 476,983 279,238 213,014
TOtAL e $1,626,216 $ 873,489 $ 649,319
ACQUISITIONS

We have supported the growth of our PBM segment through acquisitions.

On November 3, 2006, we purchased all of the outstanding common stock of R/x* Pharmacy Solutions, Inc.
referred to as “R/x™”, an Arizona corporation, for $16.0 million in cash and $0.7 million in related transaction costs.
The acquisition provides for an additional cash consideration payment of $2.0 million subject to certain client
retention criteria. R/x* is a provider of pharmacy benefit management services with a strategic focus on clients in the
Arizona, Nevada and Hawaii markets. We have also established a business development marketing relationship with
an affiliate, Pharmacy Benefit Consultants, Inc., referred to as “PBC”, and have agreed to purchase PBC if requested
by its shareholder on terms determined by PBC’s success in generating new business. The acquisition of R/x*
resulted in goodwill of $13.4 million and intangible assets of $5.6 million. The allocation of the purchase price to
the net assets acquired is preliminary and may be adjusted upon completion of a valuation study which is currently
in progress. Consequently, the allocation of purchase price to intangible assets is subject to adjustment. Additionally,
the cost of the acquisition may be increased depending on the resolution of the contingent consideration

On December 16, 2005, we acquired the common stock of EBRx, Inc. The acquisition was structured as a
merger between a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, HCEM Corp., and the parent company of EBRx, with
the former parent as the surviving entity following the merger. Consideration consisted of a cash payment of $27.9
million and $0.8 million in related transaction costs. HCEM was funded by us with a $4.0 million equity investment
and the remaining consideration was provided in the form of subsidiary debt. As contemplated by the original
structure and terms of the transaction, a separate entity owned by former owners of EBRx and its management team,
purchased a 20% ownership interest in the parent of EBRx through a $1.0 million equity investment, on January 3,
2006, This equity investment was made in the form of a note receivable and is recorded in the current other assets
category in our consolidated balance sheet. The note receivable was collateralized by certificates of deposit having
an aggregate principal amount of $1.0 million. The note bore interest of 4.38% per annum and had an indefinite due
date. In addition, the terms of the transaction provided that we may purchase the remaining 20% minority ownership
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interest beginning after twelve months and ending after fifteen months from closing at specified amounts based on
the financial performance of EBRx. On February 6, 2007, we acquired the minority ownership interest in the parent
of EBRx through the acquisition of a separate entity and transferred the shares in the operating subsidiary to HCEM,
The transaction resulted in a cash payment of $30.3 million prior to the repayment of related transaction debt and
accrued interest.

The acquisition of EBRx also provided for an additional contingent payment of up to $3.0 million subject
to performance based standards including certain specified client retention and gross profit criteria for the twelve
months ended December 31, 2006. The contingent consideration earned in 2006 was $2.4 million.

Based on a valuation report of the allocation of the purchase price to the net assets acquired, the acquisition
of EBRx resulted in goodwill of $27.3 million, inclusive of the $2.4 million contingent consideration payment, and
customer relationship intangibles of $7.4 million and non-competition agreements of $0.2 million. The customer
relationship intangibles are being amortized on a straight-line basis over an 11-year life and the non-competition
agreements are being amortized on a straight-line basis over a 3-year life.

On June 18, 2004, we acquired 1 00% of the common stock of MHS for a cash payment of $37.3 million and
100,739 shares of our common stock valued at $1.5 million. In addition, we agreed to issue $4.0 million principal
amount of non-negotiable promissory notes, warrants to purchase up to 300,000 shares of our commaon stock at an
exercise price of $15.45 per share, and to pay $2.0 million in cash, all subject to performance-based standards and
certain revenue and gross profit criteria attributable to MHS. The acquisition of MHS was accounted for using the
purchase method of accounting, and we recorded goodwill of approximatety $30.4 million and intangible assets of
$8.4 million. In July 2005, subject to the various revenue and gross profit performance requirements, we paid the
additional contingent cash consideration in a total amount of $6.2 million and issued 100,000 common stock
warrants at an exercise price of $15.45 per share. Also, in July 2006, subject to the various revenue and gross profit
performance requirements, we issued an additional 100,000 common stock warrants at an exercise price of $15.45
per share. Each of these warrant issuances were valued at $1.0 million and were recognized as additional goodwill
as a compenent of the acquisition accounting. The remaining 100,000 warrants remain potentially issuable subject to
future revenue and gross profit performance based requirements.

We have successfully integrated MHS and EBRx into our financial, organizational, management and
technology structure. As a result, we achieved cost savings from the consolidation of certain corporate activities and
the elimination of certain duplicate components of our corporate operations. We expect to integrate the operations of
R/x* in 2007.

SUPPLEMENTAL BENEFITS

Our supplemental benefits segment generates revenue from the sale of supplemental benefit programs, which
inctude lump sum accidental disability benefits, accidental death and dismemberment benefits, and emergency
accident and sickness medical benefits. In recent periods, cur supplemental benefits programs have been marketed
and sold to individuals primarily by three nationally-recognized companies, which incur the marketing expenses.
Accordingly, our supplemental benefit revenue from new members is primarily dependent on the extent and timing
of marketing campaigns funded by these three companies and the success they achieve. Correspondingly, these
companies are compensated with an increasing percentage of total program revenue, which is accounted for as direct
expenses by us. All of the insurance and service features included in our programs are supplied by third-party
insurance companies or other vendors, and the programs are distributed through an independent, licensed and non-
affiliated insurance agency.

The primary determinant of revenue recognition for the supplemental benefits segment is monthly program
enrollment. In general, program revenue is recognized based on the number of members enrolled in each reporting
period multiplied by the applicable monthly fee for their specific membership program. The program revenue
recognized by us includes the cost of membership features supplied by others, including the insurance components.
Revenue from program payments received, and related direct expenses, is deferred to the extent that they are
applicable 1o future periods or to any refund guarantee we offer.
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Direct program expenses consist of the costs that are a direct function of a period of membership and a
specific set of program features. The coverage obligations of our benefit suppliers and the related expense are
determined monthly, as are the remaining direct expenses.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended December 31, 2006 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2005

Revenue. Revenue from operations for the year ended December 31, 2006 was $1.3 billion, consisting of $1.2
billion generated from the PBM segment and $41.9 miltion from the supplemental benefits segment. The PBM
revenue increased by $578.2 million, including $510.2 million from increased prescription volume, which includes
increases associated with the Wellmark Blue Cross Blue Shield of Iowa contract, a full year of EBRx operations and
two months of R/X" operations; $43.4 million from an increase in unit prices; and $24.6 million from the
proportionate amount of prescription costs paid by the plan sponsor. Total claims processed increased to
approximately 29.3 million in 2006 from approximately 17.1 million in 2005. A significant contributor to the
increase in revenue and prescription volume was a new contract with Wellmark Blue Cross Blue Shield of Jowa
covering over 1.0 million members, which commenced on July i, 2006. This contract generated 13.9% and 13.5%
of our PBM and total revenue, respectively, The supplemental benefits revenue for 2006 remained largely
unchanged from 2005. Revenue for year the ended December 31, 2005 was $694.5 million, consisting of
approximately $650.9 million and $43.6 million attributable to the PBM and supplemental benefits segments,
respectively.

Direct Expenses. Direct expenses for the year ended December 31, 2006 were $1.2 billion, consisting of $1.1
billion in direct expenses from the PBM segment and $27.6 million in direct expenses from the supplemental
benefits segment. PBM segment direct expenses increased by $555.0 million, while the supplemental benefits
segment direct expenses decreased by approximately $5.3 million. The PBM segment’s increase in direct expenses
is related to the $578.2 million increase in PBM revenue. The decrease in direct expenses in the supplemental
benefits segment was largely a result of a modest decrease in membership and the negotiation of lower costs for
certain of the benefits in our programs.

Direct expenses for year ended December 31, 2005 were $627.2 million, consisting of approximately $594.3
million and $32.9 million attributable to the PBM and supplemental benefit segments, respectively. The direct
expenses of $1.2 billion and $627.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 represented 96.2% and
95.1% of operating expenses for the respective periods.

Gross margins, calculated as segment revenue less segment direct expense, in the PBM segment are generally
predictable based on client contract terms and vendor/supplier contracts. Other factors that can result in changes in
gross margins include generic substitution rates, changes in the utilization of preferred drugs with higher discounts
and changes in the volumne of prescription dispensing at lower cost network pharmacies. None have materially
changed in 2006 in a manner that would meaningfully affect current or anticipated results. In 2006, composite gross
margin percentages were reduced by the addition of several new large contracts including Wellmark Blue Cross
Blue Shield of Iowa, which are more competitively priced due to their size. These decreases were somewhat offset
by gross margin improvements resulting from an increased level of generic substitution and higher network discount
rates.

Gross margins in the supplemental benefits segment are generally consistent on a per transaction basis. During
2006, we enhanced one of our telemarketing programs and modified one of our contracts with a partner. Both of
these changes had a positive impact on our 2006 gross margin when compared to our 2005 gross margin.

Selling, General and Administrative. For the year ended December 31, 2006, selling, general and
administrative expenses increased by approximately $13.9 million over the prior year to $46.4 million or 3.8% of
operating expenses. This increase was primarily associated with PBM segment growth and the associated personnel
and vendor costs to serve and implement new clients.

Selling, general and administrative expenses of $46.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2006, included
$25.1 million in compensation and benefits, which includes $3.6 million in non-cash compensation, $4.1 million in
professional fees and technology services, $4.2 million in facility costs, $2.2 million in travel expenses, $2.0 in
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insurance and other corporate expenses, $0.3 million in product endorsement and marketing, $3.7 million in other,
which includes $2.2 million in recruitment and temporary help, and $4.8 miilion in depreciation and amortization.

Selling, general and administrative expenses for the year ended December 31, 2005, of $32.5 million consisted
of $17.1 million in compensation and benefits, which includes $1.2 million in non-cash compensation, $2.8 million
in professional fees and technology service costs, $3.3 million in facility costs, $2.2 million in travel expenses, $1.7
million in insurance and other corporate expenses, $0.2 million for product endorsement and marketing, $1.3 million
in other expenses, which includes $0.7 million in recruitment and temporary help, and $3.9 million in depreciation
and amortization.

Interest Income. Interest income increased to $5.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2006 from $2.3
million in the prior year. The increase was primarily due to an increase in the rate of return available in the
marketplace and increase in average funds available for investment.

Interest Expense. Interest expense decreased to $0.8 million in the year ended December 31, 2006 from $1.1
million in the year ended December 31, 2005. This decrease reflects a decrease in the average outstanding amount of
debt during the current year. In particular, in April 2003, we repaid $8.0 million outstanding on our line of credit and
have not borrowed against it since, and in September 2006 we fully repaid the balance outstanding on our term loan
facility.

Minority Interest. EBRx is majority owned by us and 20% owned by investors affiliated with EBRx’s former
parent. The minority interest for 2006 represents 20% of the earnings of EBRx for the year.

Income Tax Expense. The effective income tax rates of 39.1% in 2006 and 36.4% in 2005 represent the
combined federal and state income tax rates adjusted as necessary based on the particular jurisdictions where we
operate. The tax rate in 2005 was lower than in 2006, in particular due to interest income earned on federally tax
exempt investments and an increase in 2006 in our effective state income tax rate reflective of our expansion into
additional state jurisdictions.

Net Income, Net income for year ended December 31, 2006 increased by approximately $8.6 million over the
same period in 2005 to $31.6 million. The increase in net income was primarily a function of increased gross
margins in the PBM segment and an increase in interest income, reduced by an increase in selling, general and
administrative expenses. PBM segment gross margins increased to $79.9 million in 2006 from $56.7 million in
2005, largely attributable to the onset of new clients. Segment operating information for 2006 and 2005 is as follows
{in thousands):

Supplemental

PBM Benefits Total

December 31, 2006

REVETIUC.c...ecvveerieeies it sressnesesssesesessessessssesasesnnessnsssnes $1,229,144 $41,862 $1,271,006
Segment direct EXPenses ........ccceveeeevererereesesrerneeseriesesrssarnsarseanas 1,149,233 27,644 1,176,877
Segment gross MArZIN.......ccooeciniciinieiinieireresesisssesisirassessaes 79,911 14,218 94,129
December 31, 2005

REVENUE. .. ettt ettt et e et e et e e e e e eeeeene e e eemenne $ 650,911 $ 43,608 $694,519
Segment direct EXPENSES ...vviierivireriieecientinis it eeeeeeseeeeeneees 594,251 32,943 627,194
Segment Bross MAargin........oooeiveeeereeseeieseeseseeseesese e sre e 56,660 10,665 67,325

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended December 31, 2005 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2004

Revenue. Revenue from operations for year ended December 31, 2005 was $694.5 million, consisting of
£650.% million generated from the PBM segment and $43.6 million from the supplemental benefits segment. The
PBM revenue increased by $175.7 million, including: $165.1 million of revenue from increased prescription
volume,'which includes increases associated with a full year of activity on the State of Louisiana contract, a full year
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of MHS operations, and less than a month of EBRx operations; $8.7 million from an increase in the proportionate
amount of prescription costs paid by the plan sponsor; and $1.9 million of all other revenue increases. Total claims
processed increased to approximately 17.1 million in 2005 from approximately 12.8 million in 2004. A significant
contributor to the increase in revenue and prescription volume was a contract with the State of Louisiana, currently
covering about 145,000 members, which commenced on July 1, 2004. This contract generated 20.0% and 11.8% of
our totat revenue and 21.3% and 13.0% of our PBM revenue, in 2005 and 2004, respectively. Supplemental benefits
revenue decreased by $2.5 million, due to decreased membership. Revenue for the year ended December 31, 2004
was $521.3 million, consisting of approximately $475.2 million and $46.1 million attributable to the PBM and
supplemental benefits segments, respectively.

Direct Expenses. Direct expenses for year ended December 31, 2005 were $627.2 million, consisting of
$594.3 million in direct expenses from the PBM segment and $32.9 million in direct expenses from the
supplemental benefits segment. PBM segment direct expenses increased by $158.0 million, while the supplemental
benefits segment direct expenses decreased by approximately $2.7 million. The PBM segment’s increase in direct
expenses is related to the $175.7 million increase in PBM revenue. The decrease in direct expenses in the
supplemental benefits segment was largely a result of a modest decrease in membership and the negotiation of lower
costs for certain of the benefits in our programs.

Direct expenses for year ended December 31, 2004 were $471.9 million, consisting of $436.3 million and
$35.6 million attributable to the PBM and supplemental benefit segments, respectively. The direct expenses of
$627.2 million and $471.9 million for years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 represented %5.1% of operating
expenses for each of the respective periods.

Gross margins, calculated as segment revenue less segment direct expense, in the PBM segment are generally
predictable based on client contract terms and vendor/supplier contracts. Other factors that can result in changes in
gross margins include generic substitution rates, changes in the utilization of preferred drugs with higher discounts
and changes in the volume of prescription dispensing at lower cost network pharmacies. In 2005, gross margins
were improved by an increased level of generic substitution and an increased volume of higher margin workers
compensation business resulting from the acquisition of the MHS business. These increases were largely offset in
percentage terms by the addition of the State of Louisiana contract that has lower percentage margin contributions
than our historical averages.

Gross margins in the supplemental benefits segment are generally consistent on a per transaction basis. Gross
margin dollars remained relatively unchanged in 2005 from 2004.

Selling, General and Administrative. For the year ended December 31, 2005, selling, general and
administrative expenses increased by approximately $8.1 million over the prior year to $32.5 million or 4.9% of
operating expenses. This increase was primarily associated with PBM segment growth and the related sales and
marketing initiatives, and new client implementations.

Selling, general and administrative expenses for the year ended December 31, 2005, of $32.5 million consisted
of $17.1 million in compensation and benefits, which includes $1.2 million in non-cash compensation, $2.8 million
in professional fees and technology service costs, $3.3 million in facility costs, $2.2 million in travel expenses, $1.7
million in insurance and other corporate expenses, $0.2 million for product endorsement and marketing, $1.3 million
in other expenses, which includes $0.7 million in recruitment and temporary help, and $3.9 million in depreciation
and amortization.

Selling, general and administrative expenses for the year ended December 31, 2004, of $24.4 million consisted
of $9.4 million in compensation and benefits, $2.6 million in professional fees and technology service costs, $2.6
million in facility costs, $2.0 million in travel expenses, $1.7 million in insurance and other corporate expenses, $0.7
million for product endorsement and market research, $2.4 million in other expenses, which includes $0.6 million in
recruitment and temporary help,, and $3.0 million in depreciation and amortization.

Other Income. Other income was $87,000 for the year ended December 31, 2005. In the second quarter of
2004, we reached a legal settlement related to litigation initiated by us on December 3, 2002. The terms of the
settlement are confidential; however, the net proceeds from the settlement constitute the significant portion of the
$2.1 million in other income reported in the 2004 statement of operations.
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Interest Income. Interest income increased to $2.3 million in the year ended December 31, 2005 from
$383,000 in the prior year. The increase was primarily due to a substantial increase in funds available for investment
resulting from our sale of common stock in the fourth quarter of 2004,

Interest Expense. Interest expense of $1.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2005 was consistent with
the prior year expense. During 2004, we maintained higher average outstanding debt levels, particularly after the
MHS acquisition in June, compared to 2005, but the 2004 interest rates were also lower on average than 20035,
resulting in similar interest expense during both years. At the time of the MHS acquisition in June 2004 we entered
into a $20.0 million term loan and increased our line of credit. In the fourth quarter of 2004 we raised capital
through the sale of common stock and repaid the line of credit. The line of credit expired in June 2006. During 2005,
we continued to service the term loan.

Income Tax Expense. The effective income tax rate of 36.4% in 2005 and 37.7% in 2004 represent the
combined federal and state income tax rates adjusted as necessary based on the particular jurisdictions where we
operate. The tax rate in 2005 was lower than 2004, in particular, due to interest income earned on federally tax
exempt investments.

Net Income. Net income for year ended December 31, 2005 increased by $6.6 million over the same period in
2004 to $23.0 million. The increase in net income was primarily a function of increased gross margins in the PBM
segment and an increase in interest income. PBM segment gross margins increased to $56.7 million in 2005 from
$38.9 million in 2004, largely attributable to the $175.7 million increase in PBM revenues from the year ended
December 31, 2004 to the year ended December 31, 2005. Segment operating information for 2005 and 2004 is as
follows (in thousands):

Supplemental

PBM Benefits Total

December 31, 2005

RBVEIIUE....viivviresveecvnrreernirinrrrsinternressserssnresssessssaesssesesseessresernsesaseses $ 650,911 $43,608 $694,519
Segment direCt EXPENSES .......vvvivvrerrisersrssensssssessesssessesssssssssessses 594,251 32943 627,194
Segment gross MALGIT .....c.vevveeeereeeierereeereireere e sseeesnennesesnearass 56,660 10,665 67,325
December 31, 2004

REVEIIUE. ...oitieiiriiiiericet et esss s ae s e ssssesasssssesbasssres b e ons $475,229 $46,096 §$521,325
Segment direCt EXPENSESs ...oovvveivireeereeriereeier e 436,305 35,643 471,948
Segment Gross MATGIN . .....cvvvrrrversecresaaererssrrsressesomescceacsenes sosssens 38,924 10,453 49,377

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Our sources of funds are usually cash flows from operations. We have in the past raised funds by borrowing
on bank debt and selling equity in the capital markets to fund acquisitions. During the last several years we
generated positive cash flow from operations and anticipate similar results in 2007 and the foreseeable near-term
future. Cash and cash equivalents and marketable securities at December 31, 2006 were $91.7 million. At December
31, 2006, we had available a $50.0 million revolving credit facility with no outstanding borrowings.

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities. Qur operating activities generated $52.4 million of cash from
operations in 2006, a $24.1 million increase from the $28.3 million generated in 2005. This $52.4 million in cash
provided by operating activities in 2006 reflects $31.6 million in net income, plus $11.4 million in non-cash charges
and a net $9.4 million decrease in working capital and other assets and liabilities. The cash provided by operating
activities of $28.3 million in 2005 reflects net income of $23.0 million, plus $5.7 million in non-cash charges,
reduced by a $0.4 million increase in working capital and other assets and liabilities.

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities. Net cash used in investing activities for the year ended December 31,
2006 was $36.5 million compared to $62.7 million in 2005. During 2006, we had $5.7 million in capital
expenditures (net of proceeds from sales of property and equipment of $1.0 million), purchased $14.5 million in
marketable securities net of maturities and paid $16.3 million, net of cash acquired, for business acquisitions, of
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which $15.9 million was used to acquire R/x". Cash used for investing activities in 2005 primarily consisted of $27.7
million in purchases of marketable securities net of maturities and $33.2 million paid for business acquisitions.

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Financing Activities. Net cash provided by financing activities for the year
ended December 31, 2006 was $5.7 million compared to cash used in financing activities of $4.8 million in 2005. In
2006, we repaid $12.5 million in notes payable and received proceeds of $8.8 million from the exercise of options
and Employee Stock Purchase Plan purchases. In addition, we received an income tax payable benefit of $10.5
million from the exercise of stock options and restricted stock awards and incurred $1.1 million from all other
financing activities. In 2005, we repaid $14.0 million in notes payable and received proceeds of $9.2 million from
the exercise of options, warrants and ESPP purchases.

We anticipate continuing to generate positive operating cash flow which, combined with available cash
resources, should be sufficient to meet our planned working capital, capital expenditures and operating expenses for
the next year. However, there can be no assurance that we will not require additional capital. Even if such funds are
not required, we may seek additional equity or debt financing. We cannot be assured that such financing will be
available on acceptable terms, if at all, or that such financing will not be dilutive to our stockholders.

OBLIGATIONS AND CONTRACTUAL COMMITMENTS

The Company has no off-balance sheet transactions. The following table reflects cur current contractual
commitments as of December 31, 2006 (in thousands):

Payments Due by Period
Total <1 year 1-3years 4-Syears > 5years
Operating 1eases .....co.vvvrevveevesecnrernierereeseseeenes $17,050 $2,614 35,032  §4,500 $4,904

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of the Financial Condition and Results of Operations discusses our
consolidated financial statements. Preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results coutd
differ from those estimates. The most significant estimates included in these financial statements include the
following: the value of intangible assets acquired in business combinations and related amortization periods, and
rebates due from pharmaceutical manufacturing companies.

Revenue and direct expense recognition

We recognize revenues from PBM services, which include sales of prescription drugs by pharmacies in our
nationwide network and related claims processing fees, provided to our clients. Revenue is recognized when the
claims are adjudicated. Pharmacy claims are adjudicated at the point-of-sale using an on-line claims processing
system. When we have a contractual obligation to pay a network pharmacy provider for benefits provided to our
clients” members, total payments from these clients are recorded as revenue and payments to the network pharmacy
provider and the claim adjudication service costs are recorded as direct expenses. Generally, these contracts require
us to assume the credit risk of our clients’ abilities to pay. In addition, under the vast majority of our client contracts,
we are at risk for the difference between the payments we receive from our clients and the negotiated
reimbursements we pay to the pharmacies. When we administer pharmacy reimbursement contracts and do not
assume credit risk, we record only the net revenue and the administrative or processing fees. Rebates eamed under
arrangements with manufacturers are recorded as a reduction to direct expenses. The portion of such rebates.due to
our clients is recorded as a reduction of revenue. Manufacturers’ rebates are based on estimates, which are subject to
final settlement with the contracted party.

Member co-payments are not recorded as revenue. Under our client contracts, the pharmacy is solely obligated

to collect the co-payments from the members. Under client contracts, we do not assume liability for member co-
A
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payments in pharmacy transactions. As such, we do not include member co-payments to pharmacies in revenue or
direct expenses.

The primary determinant of revenue recognition for the supplemental benefits segment is monthly program
enrollment. In general, program revenue is recognized based on the number of members enrolled in each reporting
period multiplied by the applicable monthiy fee for their specific membership program. The program revenue we
recognize includes the cost of membership features supplied by others, including the insurance components. Direct
program expenses consist of the costs that are a direct function of a period of membership and a specific set of
program features. The coverage obligations of our benefit suppliers and the related expense are determined monthly,
as are the remaining direct expenses.

Revenue from supplemental benefit programs and related direct expenses, principally marketing and
processing fees and the cost of the benefits provided to program members, are initially deferred during the period in
which a program member is entitled to obtain a refund, generally 90 days. If a member requests a refund, we retain
any interest earned on funds held during the refunded membership period. Total revenue and direct expenses
attributable to the initia} deferral are recognized subsequent to the end of the initial deferral period. After the initial
deferral period, revenue is recognized as earned and direct expenses as incurred.

Pharmacy Benefit Management Rebates

Rebates earned under arrangements with manufacturers are recorded as a reduction of direct expenses. The
portion of such rebates due to clients is recorded as a reduction of revenue. Manufacturer rebates are based on
estimates, which are subject to final settlement with the contracted party on an annual basis. A contractual allowance
for manufacturer rebates is established and adjusted quarterly, if applicable, based on contractual terms with each
manufacturer. The contractual allowance is included in our allowance for accounts receivable.

Allowance for Accounts Receivable

Trade accounts receivable are recorded at the invoiced amount and do not bear interest. The allowance for
accounts receivable is our best estimate of the amount of probable credit losses in our existing accounts receivable.
We determine the allowance based on historical write-off experience by industry and regional economic data. We
review our allowance for accounts receivable monthly. Past due balances over 94 days and over a specified amount
are reviewed individually for collectibility. All other balances are reviewed on a pooled basis by type of receivable.
Account balances are charged off against the allowance when we feel it is probable the receivable will not be
recovered. We do not have any off-balance-sheet credit exposure related to our customers.

Assets Acquired and Liabilities Assumed in Business Combinations

In our acquisitions, we are required to make judgments regarding the fair values of the assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed. For significant acquisitions, management has engaged independent consultants to assist it in
estimating the fair values of acquired intangible assets.

Intangible Assets

We account for our intangible assets under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No, 142,
Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. Under SFAS No. 142, we do not have any intangible assets with indefinite
lives. We do have other intangible assets subject to amortization and these assets are amortized over 5 months to 20
years, depending on each intangible asset’s estimated useful life.

The estimated fair value and the weighted average useful-life of the intangible assets are based on income-
method valuation calculations. The remaining useful life of intangible assets is evaluated periodically and adjusted
as necessary to match the period that the assets are expected to provide economic benefits. We concluded that no
impairment of intangible assets existed at December 31, 2006 and 2005.

Goodwill

We account for our goodwill under SFAS No, 142, Under SFAS No. 142, goodwill is not amortized, but it is
tested for impairment at least annually. Each year, we test for impairment of goodwill according to a two-step
approach, In the first step, we test for impairment of goodwill by estimating the fair values of its reporting units
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using the present value of future cash flows approach, subject to a comparison for reasonableness to its market
capitalization at the date of valuation. For the purposes of performing this impairment test, our business segments
are our reporting units. If the carrying amount exceeds the fair value, the second step of the goodwill impairment test
is performed to measure the amount of the impairment loss, if any, In the second step the implied fair value of the
goodwill is estimated as the fair value of the reporting unit used in the first step less the fair values of all other net
tangible and intangible assets of the reporting unit. If the carrying amount of the goodwill exceeds its implied fair
market value, an impairment loss is recognized in an amount equal to that excess, not to exceed the carrying amount
of the goodwill. In addition, goodwill of a reporting unit is tested for impairment between annual tests if an event
occurs or circumstances change that would more likely than not reduce the fair value of a reporting unit below its
carrying value.

We account for contingent consideration according to EITF 95-8, Accounting for Contingent Consideration
Paid to the Shareholders of an Acquired Enterprise in a Purchase Business Combination, to determine whether
contingent consideration should be accounted for as an adjustment to the purchase accounting,

Commen Stock Warrants

From time to time we issue warrants to purchase shares of our common stock under arrangements with our
business partners or as consideration in acquisitions, We are required to estimate the fair value of such warrants for
purposes of recording these transactions in our financial statements upon achieving a measurement date. Such
estimates require judgments regarding, among other things, expected term, risk-free interest rates and common stock
volatility.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In July 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertain Tax Positions (“FIN 48™).
This interpretation clarifies the accounting for unicertain tax positions in accordance with FASB Statement No. 109,
Accounting for Income Taxes. The interpretation addresses the recognition and measurement of uncertain income tax
positions using a “more-likely-than-not” threshold and introduces a number of new qualitative and quantitative
disclosure requirements. The interpretation is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. We will
be required to adopt this interpretation as of January 1, 2007. The cumulative affect of adopting FIN 48 will be
recorded in retained earnings. We are evaluating the requirements of FIN 48 and expect adoption will not have a
material impact on our financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements (“SFAS 1577), which
addresses how companies should measure fair value when they are required to use a fair value measure for
recognition or disclosure purposes under generally accepted accounting principles. SFAS 157 applies to financial
statements that are issued for fiscal years beginning afier November 15, 2007 and to interim periods within those
fiscal years. We are currently evaluating the impact SFAS 157 may have on our financial condition, results of
operations or cash flows.

In September 2006, the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 108, Considering the Effects of Prior
Year Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements (“SAB 1087}, SAB 108
requires that public companies utilize a “dual-approach” to assessing the quantitative effects of financial
misstatements, This dual approach includes both an income statement focused assessment and a balance sheet -
focused assessment. The guidance in SAB 108 must be applied to annual financial statements for fiscal years ending
after November 15, 2006. The adoption of SAB 108 did not have a material impact on our financial condition,
results of operations or cash flows.

INTEREST RATE AND EQUITY PRICE SENSITIVITY

We are subject to interest rate risk on our short-term investments, We have determined that a 10% move in the
current weighted average interest rate of our marketable securities would not have a material effect in our financial
position, results of operations or cash flows.
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Included in Part I1, Item 7, Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations — Interest Rate and Equity Price Sensitivity.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Our audited Financial Statements are contained in a separate section of this Annual Report on Form 10-K on
pages F-1 through F-23 and Financial Statement Schedule on page S-1 attached hereto.

ITEM 9, CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.

ITEM9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Management’s Responsibility for Financial Statements

Qur management is responsible for the integrity and objectivity of all information presented in this annual
report. The consolidated financial statements were prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America and include amounts based on management’s best estimates and
judgments. Management believes the consolidated financial statements fairly reflect the form and substance of
transactions and that the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, our financial position, results of
operations and cash flows.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, which is composed solely of independent directors, meets
regularly with the independent auditors and representatives of management to review accounting, financial
reporting, internal control and audit matters, as well as the nature and extent of the audit effort. The Audit
Committee is responsible for the engagement of the independent auditors. The independent auditors have free access
to the Audit Committee.

Conclusion Regarding the Effectiveness of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, evaluated
the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures. Based on their evaluation, as of the end of the period
covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have
concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15{¢) and 15d-15(e) under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) were effective,

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Qur management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting, as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Our management, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, assessed
the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006. In making this
assessment, our management used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission in /nternal Control—Integrated Framework.

Based on its assessment, management has concluded that, as of December 31, 2006, our internal control over
financial reporting was effective based on those criteria.

Our management has excluded our wholly owned subsidiary, R/x* Pharmacy Solutions, Inc., from its
assessment of internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006 because it was acquired by usin a
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purchase business combination on November 2, 2006. R/x*’s total assets and total revenues were 5.1% and 0.4%,

respectively, of the related consolidated financial statement amounts as of and for the year ended December 31,
2006.

Our management’s assessment of the effectiveness of its internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2006 has been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered public accounting
firm, as stated in their report, which is inciuded herein.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

No change in our internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under
the Securities and Exchange Act) occurred during the quarter ended December 31, 2006 that has materially affecied,
or is reasonable likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

ITEM9B. OTHER INFORMATION
Not applicable.

38



PART III

ITEM 10, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

Information required under this item will be contained in our Proxy Statement for our 2007 Annual
Meseting of Stockholders under Proposal 1 - Election of Directors, Directors and Executive Officers, Corporate
Governance, Committees and Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance and is incorporated herein
by reference.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Information required under this item will be contained in our Proxy Statement for our 2007 Annual Meeting
of Stockholders under Executive Compensation, including Compensation Discussion and Analysis, Director
Compensation, Compensation Committee Report and Compensation Committee and is incorporated herein by
reference.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Information required under this item will be contained in our Proxy Statement for our 2007 Annual Meeting
of Stockholders under Stock Ownership and is incorporated herein by reference. Equity Compensation Plan
Information (share data in thousands):

Number of securities
remaining available for

Number of securities to Weighted average future issuance under
be issued upon exercise exerclse price of equity compensation plans
of outstanding options, outstanding options, {excluding securities
warrants and rights warrants and rights reflected in column (a))
Plan category {a) (b) (c)

Equity compensation plans approved by
security holders ....c.voveervemicrccccncceiiiins 3,091 $7.14 2,082
Equity compensation plans not approved by
security holders.........oooveveeececce
Total 3,091 $7.14 2,082

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

Information required under this item will be contained in our Proxy Statement for our 2007 Annual Meeting
of Stockholders under Transactions with Related Persons and Corporate Governance and is incorporated by
reference.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

Information required under this item will be contained in our Proxy Statement for our 2007 Annual Meeting
of Stockholders under Services Provided by the Independent Auditors and Policy Regarding Pre-Approval of
Services Provided by the Independent Auditors and is incorporated by reference.
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PARTIV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(a) Documents filed as part of this report

(1)Financial Statements
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2006 and 2005.........ccooooeeeeeicceneveseenene F-1
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005,

ANA 2004 rerrererrreeerrsserereresresisss e e a e st arss e ae et e s besertnteastbe b e ne e emensemens F-2
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders” Equity for the years ended December 31,

2006, 2005, and 2004 ...t ee et ers s se s sereesssnsessseresssnereons P73
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005

ANA 2004........coiiiiciiitecieee ettt et et s e et se bt b e en e ee F-4
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the years ended December 31,

2006, 2005 and 2004 .........vcvereriererecie et sa sttt s e e eens e ennnenn F-5
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements..........cocoviceeceneevererereesssseme oo eeeeeeeseemeseeeseeaens F-6

(2)Financial statement schedule:
Schedule [I—Valuation and Qualifying ACCOUNES ....coviviciveeeeceeec et sreeenas S-1

(b)  Exhibits

The following exhibits are filed as part of this report unless noted otherwise:

Exhibit No. Description

2.1 Catalyst Rx, Inc. Securities Purchase Agreement dated as of November 14, 2001 by and among
HealthExtras, Inc. as the Purchaser, Catalyst Rx, Inc. and Kevin C. Hooks as the Seller (1)

2.2 Catalyst Consultants, Inc. Securities Purchase Agreement dated as of November 14, 2001 by and
among HealthExtras, Inc. as the Purchaser, Catalyst Consultants, Inc. and Kevin C. Hooks as the Seller

2

23 Stock Purchase Agreement dated June 18, 2004 by and among HealthExtras, Inc, and Kenneth J. Sack
and The Sack Family Trust (3)

24 Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of December 6, 2005 by and among HealthExtras, Inc.,
HCEM Corp. and Managed Care of America, Inc. (4)

3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of HealthExtras, Inc. (5)
3.2 Bylaws of HealthExtras, Inc. (6)
4.1 Specimen Stock Certificate of HealthExtras, Inc. (7)

4.2 Amended and Restated Financing and Security Agreement dated September 15, 2006 by and between
HealthExtras, Inc. and Wachovia Bank, National Association *

43 Registration Rights Agreement dated June 18, 2004 by and among HealthExtras, Inc. and Kenneth J.
Sack and the Sack Family Trust (8)

10.1 Agreement dated July 8, 1997 by and among Cambria Productions, Inc. f/s/o Christopher Reeve and
HealthExtras, Inc. (9)

10.2 Form of HealthExtras, Inc. 1999 Stock Option Plan (10)
10.3 HealthExtras, Inc. 2000 Stock Option Plan (11)
10.4 HealthExtras, Inc. 2000 Directors’ Stock Option Plan (12)

10.5 Form of 2003 HealthExtras, Inc. Equity Incentive Plan (13)
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10.6 Amended Agreement dated March 2, 2000 by and among Cambria Productions, Inc. f/s/o Christopher
Reeve and HealthExtras, Inc. (14)

10.7 Form of 2003 HealthExtras, Inc. Equity Incentive Plan Restricted Stock Award Agreement. (15)

10.8 Form of Employment Agreements by and among HealthExtras, Inc. and David T. Blair and
HealthExtras, Inc. and Michael P. Donovan (16)

10.19 Form of Employment Agreement by and among HealthExtras, Inc. and Nick J. Grujich (17)
10.10 HealthExtras, Inc. 2006 Stock Incentive Plan (18)

10.11 Form of HealthExtras, Inc, 2006 Stock Incentive Plan Award Agreement (19)

10.12 Form of Employment Agreement by and among HealthExtras, Inc. and Richard W. Hunt (20)

10.13 Stock Purchase and Stockholder Agreement dated as of December 6, 2005, by and among
HealthExtras, Inc., HCEM Corp., APS Benefits Corporation and the Shareholders identified therein

21)

11.1 Statement re: Computation of Per Share Earnings (see Note 2 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements)

21.1 Subsidiaries*

23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm*

31.1 Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of Chief Executive Officer*
31.2 Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of Chief Financial Officer*
321 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350*

1)
(2}

(3)
4

&)
(6
M

®
®

(10)
(11)
(12)
(13)

(14)

Filed herewith.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Registrant’s Form 8-K Current Report filed on November 29,
2001.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.2 to the Registrant’s Form 8-K Current Report filed on November 29,
2001.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant’s Form 8-K Current Report filed on June 23, 2004.
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.4 to the Registrant’s Form 10-K Annual Report filed on March 16,
2006.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1(b) to the Registrant’s Form S-1/A Pre-Effective Amendment No. 1 to
Form S-1 Registration Statement (Registration No. 333-83761) filed on September 21, 1999,

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Registrant’s Form S-1/A Pre-Effective Amendment No. 1 to
Form S-1 Registration Statement (Registration No. 333-83761) filed on September 21, 1999,

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant’s Form S-1/A Pre-Effective Amendment No. 1 to
Form 8-1 Registration Statement (Registration No. 333-83761) filed on September 21, 1999.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Registrant’s Form 8-K Current Report filed on June 23, 2004,
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1(.6 to the Registrant’s Form S-1/A Pre-Effective Amendment No. 1 to
Form S-1 Registration Statement (Registration No. 333-83761) filed on September 21, 1999.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to the Registrant’s Form S-1/A Pre-Effective Amendment No. 2 to
Form S-1 Registration Statement (Registration No. 333-83761) filed on October 20, 1999,

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to the Registrant’s Form 10-K Annval Report for the Fiscal Year
Ended December 31, 2000 filed on April 2, 2001.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13 to the Registrant’s Form 10-K Annual Report for the Fiscal Year
Ended December 31, 2000 filed on April 2, 2001.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit A to the Registrant’s Schedule 14A Definitive Proxy Statement filed on
April 30, 2003.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to the Registrant’s Form 10-K Annual Report for the Fiscal Year
Ended December 31, 2000 filed on April 2, 2001.
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(15)
(16)
(17}
(18)
(19)
(20)

21)

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on February
28, 2006.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Form 10-Q Quarterly Report filed on November
9, 2005.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s Form 10-Q Quarterly Report filed on November
9, 2005.

Incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s Definitive Proxy Statement filed on May 1, 2006.

Incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 filed on June 22, 2006.
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Form 10-Q Quarterly Report filed on August 8,
2006.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10,12 to the Registrant’s Form 10-K Annual Report for the Fiscal Year
Ended December 31, 2005 filed on March 16, 2006.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Act of 1934, the registrant has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duty authorized.

HEALTHEXTRAS, INC.

February 28, 2007 By: /s/ Davip T. BLAIR

David T. Blair
Chief Executive Officer and Director

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
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Chairman of The Board
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David T. Blair
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Director
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Director
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Director
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To Board of Directors and Stockholders of HealthExtras, Inc.:
We have completed integrated audits of HealthExtras, Inc.’s consolidated financial statements and of its internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company

Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Our opinions, based on our audits, are presented below.

Consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements listed in the index appearing under Item 15{a)(1) present fairly,
in all material respects, the financial position of HealthExtras, Inc. and its subsidiaries at December 31, 2006 and
2005, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the pertod ended
December 31, 2006 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. In
addition, in our opinion, the financial statement schedule listed in the index under Item 15(a)(2) presents fairly, in all
material respects, the information set forth therein when read in conjunction with the related consolidated financial
statements. These financial statements and financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and financial statement
schedule based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with the standards of the
Public Company Accounting Qversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit of financial statements includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company adopted Statement of Financial
Accounting Standard No. 123(R), Share-Based Payment, as of January 1, 2006, using the meodified prospective
method.

Internal controt over financial reporting

Also, in our opinion, management’s assessment, included in Management's Report on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting appearing under ltem 9A, that the Company maintained cffective internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2006 based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COS0), is fairly stated, in all
material respects, based on those criteria. Furthermore, in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material
respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on criteria established in
Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the COSO. The Company’s management is responsible for
maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal
control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express opinions on management’s assessment and on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit
of internal control over financial reporting in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether effective interna! control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects.
An audit of internal control over financial reporting includes obtaining an understanding of internal control over
financial reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as we consider necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reftect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (i1) provide reasonable




assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (iii} provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

As described in Management's Report on Internal Contrel Over Financial Reporting under Item 9A, management
has excluded its wholly owned subsidiary, R/X”* Pharmacy Sclutions, Inc. ("R/X™) from its assessment of internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006 because it was acquired by the Company in a purchase
business combination during 2006, We have also excluded R/X* from our audit of internal control over financial
reporting, R/X™s total assets and total revenues represent 5.1% and 0.4%, respectively, of the related consolidated
financial statement amounts as of and for the year ended December 31, 2006

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
McLean, VA

February 26, 2007




HEALTHEXTRAS, INC.
and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
{In thousands, except per share data)

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash qUIVAIENTS........c.cooviriiiiiciicceenn et
MATKetable SECUMITIES .. .ovvieviivreeeieieee e ctressssaastessnnssranasnssessinsssbasaansssssrasaransanasesstes
Accounts receivable, net of allowances of $2,122 and $1,016 in 2006 and
2005, 1ESPECHIVELY..ocviriieiiciiiircimer e
Income taxes receivable.............. eeeaeeettesisbsessssirsseeereeeesateeseestisutsatisiirrrarasannsenes

Deferred Charges ..ot esarasa et s s g
Deferred INCOME LAXES .oovieevereieereeirrrrsaeaseeeeeantessssraeesaastessssrnsessssniatssssnrnresssanessions
CEET CUTTEIE BSSEES 1uvreeemeeeoeeeerersnersresssstsesrersrnsessetasaessnseesansssinrroransessseesssesnsnanns

TOtal CUITENE ASSELS 1veeuviisievesseeeiemreeeearntsisreearmrssssresransressmmerstssssssassrnssansssanens
Property and eqQUIPTNENL, MET .. ..o
Intangible aSSets, NEL..... ..ot isiriesss s s
FaTi T T 21| IO OO OO P PP OO PP PP PPPP TSP R PPTPY
RESHTICTEA CASH. ..o eotiissieeeeeeeeeeeseseseeseeeesteiseeneeseeesesasaer e e eesed i bd i b s ran b nan e s e e e e g s e e s b e b aens
T ASSS . c.uverreiseseeeeeeeetirussnesseeesaer e e s aanasenneesbebbbabanabaessh b b e s bt s e e s EE R R AL e R RS e

O] BESEES . oeeieverreeeeeeeseseseranrneetesssassrnrrrrreesaeaasstnsarresaesaa bt aretnseenasabarernsnaan,

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY

Current liabilities:
AccoUNtS PAYADIE ..ot
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities. ...
NOte PAaYADIE ..o
Income taxes PAYADIE ..o
Deferred IMCOME TAXES ...uvvveveeeeerirerssresesesesissssssessesssbs s s se s sassrers s sisisbsnsess
DEfeITed FEVEIUE .....ccervierercreeeeeeseeesess e s srrs e s bbb s s b s e

Total current HabiliIES ..vvirvveeeeierieer e reererieriesrar e eicasisre s s st
Deferred FENt EXPENSE ....covovririiiiiis e rarrrarres et ettt s b b
Deferred iNCOME tAXES ....oiiiererrereierse e st s s e
NOLES PAYABLE ..ottt

oAl L ABI IS eeeeerneeee ettt tecrereesre e e ssssbas s s em e e e e be e s sarsrsnsersrnnans s rroncarnrnsesasanes

Commitments and contingencies (Notes 11 and 12)

MINOTILY INEEIESL......vuieceicuiriiriir ittt b

Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value, 5,000 shares authorized, none issued.........
Common stock, $0.01 par value, 100,000 shares authorized, 41,379 and 39 830

shares issued at December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005, respectively....

Additional paid-in Capital ...
Treasury stock, at cost, 36 shares at December 31, 2006...........ccoviiiiniininnn.
Accumulated other comprehensive iNCOME ......coovvveieeeieein
Retained Earmings.........ooceeriiiiiiiiimineen e s

Total stockholders’ QUILY -...cceeeeeerrmesirsre ettt e
Total Liabilities and stockholders’ €qUity.......ccvuvrresreesrinnicensiicnrmisriraenens

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

F-1

December 31,

2006 2005

$49,501  $27,900
42,200 27,725
169,432 86,229
— 1,173
1,506 1,497

60 —
4,875 2,506
267,574 147,030
12,859 9,577
34,362 26,442
118,055 101,591
1,000 1,000
2,174 372
$436,024  $286,012
$167,066 S 69,520
8,721 3,967
— 5,000

2,208 —
— 948
3,802 4,932
181,797 84,367
1,478 1,443
11,454 7,410
— 7,500
194,729 100,720

1,248 —
414 398
170,552 146313

(930) —
— 144
70,011 38,437
240,047 185,292
$436,024  $286,012




HEALTHEXTRAS, INC.
and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(In thousands, except per share data)

For the years ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004

Revenue (excludes member co-payments of $476,983, $279,238 and $213,014
in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively)..........ccovnmrecccceenincriceiesensereneen.. 91,271,006 $ 694,519 $521.325

DITECT @XPEIISES 1veverersieiiirresirisstessnrescassese s e s bar e e sesseasasss e e sesbaassenre e s sm e enessssens 1,176,877 627,194 471,948
Selling, general and adminiStrative EXPENSES ...viuicieiiersse e errsesse s rreseseesensans 46,414 32,501 24418
Total OPErating EXPENSES ..c..cccvieevierererrisrenererirsesesene s sssesessesssesesesseas 1,223,291 659,695 496,366
OPETATING INCOMIE .ovvvoeeesvereceeeecertee s b e e seneste e ssesteeeennrees 47,715 34,824 24,959

INEEFESE IMCOMIE 1.vuvviaiiiceariiie e rer b ere e e st st e e e et eneres st sbensne s seseensna 5,143 2,281 383
INtEIESE EXPEIISE cvivvieeeeireeis o ertesteee e s arbts e ee st ssbe e emeesb et ennemseretbneneenrastsabesnere (769) (1,050) (1,145)
OthET INCOMIE ....vvvecees ettt et sesbes s st et as st esses et ee 141 87 2,100
Income before minority interest and income taxes......coveeeevinnnnene, 52,230 36,142 26,297

MUNOTIEY INEETESE. ...c.corvemecr et sttt ettt e et ebese 248 - -
Income before iNCOME LAXES ..ovovenmicveiiieecvirteeceeee et 51,982 36,142 26,297

INCOME LAX EXPEIISE ...c.vveveeeieriieieee st ss ettt ss e e r s e e s b et s sanseresbsseasesranes 20,408 13,162 9,914
INEE ITICOIIIE L.ttt eeeeee et e e e et s e ee e ee s st eneeenessseeeeseessessneneesens $31,574 $ 22,980 $ 16,383

Net income per share, basic.........ccooooeiioiice e $0.78 $0.59 5049
Net income per share, diluted.........ccoooiiiniiicicin e, $0.75 $0.356 $045
Weighted average shares of common stock outstanding, basic.....cecoeoeeveeeeene. 40,270 38,648 33,642
Weighted average shares of common stock outstanding, diluted....................... 42,319 41,353 36,407

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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HEALTHEXTRAS, INC,
and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

(In thousands)
Accumulated Retained
Additional Other Earnings
Paid-in Treasury  Comprehensive {(Accumulated
Shares Amount Capital Stock Income Deficit) Total

Balance at December 31, 2003...........cc..es, 32,603 $326  $71,578 $— $— $(926) $70,978
Shares issued in public offering 4,025 40 54,742 —_ —_— — 54,782
Exercise of stock options, including tax

BENETIS. . evvrvrrenrereerieeeeecenereeeerenseenneene e 300 3 1,832 — —_ — 1,835
Exercise of stock warrants..... 584 6 1,009 — N — 1,015
Shares issued pursuant to acquisition.......... 175 2 2,248 -— — — 2,250
Expense related to stock options granted to

employee.......ovens . — — 41 — — — 4]
Expense related to stock and stock opnons

granted in exchange for services............ 15 — 158 — — — 158
Shares issued pursuant to employee stock

purchase plan .........comveceemeeccrecesiieanen. 12 — 148 —_ -— — 148
Valuation of interest rate swap, net of tax... — — —_ — 60 — 60
Net income for the YEar........wveverineereens — — — — — 16,383 16,383
Balance at December 31, 2004 37,714 $377 $131,756 $— 560 $15457 § 147,650
Exercise of stock options, including tax

DENETIS. ..o s 794 8 7,173 — — — 7,181
Exercise of stock warrants... 875 9 4,654 — — — 4,003
Warrants issued pursuant to acqulsmon ...... — — 993 —_ — - 993
Expense related to acceleration of option

VESHINE . cvcericnrcsemensriesesimnas s sesssssissenns — — 751 — — — 751
Expense related to restricted stock granted

10 emplOYees ..o 385 4 472 — — — 476
Expense related to stock options granted to

EMPIOYEL..cccvireerceieisera b n e — - 4] — — — 41
Expense related to stock and stock options

granted in exchange for services............ 40 — 131 — — _— 131
Shares issued pursuant to employec stock

purchase plan ... 22 — 342 — — — 342
Valuation of interest rate swap, net of tax . - — — — 84 — 84
Net income for the year.........cc..oviiiiinan, — - — — _— 22,980 22,980
Balance at December 31, 2005....miivennns 39,830 $398 $ 146,313 55— $ 144 $38,437 §185292
Exercise of stock options, including tax

BENETHS st 1,297 13 18,533 — — — 18,546
Warrants issued pursuant to acquisition...... -— — 993 — — — 993
Expense related to restricted stock granted

10 EMPlOYEES .vovrrrrcrcrrcncrrcmmiessniesnniane 203 2 3412 — — — 3414
Expense related to stock options granted to

EMPLOYEES ..ot — — 424 — — — 424
Expense related to stock and stock options

granted in exchange for services............ 25 i 134 — — — 135
Tax benefits of restricted stock vesting ....... — —_ 174 — —_ — 174
Shares issued pursuant to employee stock

purchase plan ... 24 — 569 — —_ — 569
Purchases of treasury stock — — — (930) — — {930)
Valuation of interest rate swap, net of tax ... — — — — (144) — (144)
Net income for the YEar.......ovreeeeeeeermererseny — — — — — 31,574 31,574
Balance at December 31, 2006 41,37% $414 $§5170,552 $ (930) $— $70,011  $ 240,047

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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HEALTHEXTRAS, INC.
and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands)

For the years ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
Cash flows from operating activities:
INEL IHCOITIE 1eeeeeereereiet ettt enene e bbb s bt nenees $31,574 $22980  $16,383
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating
activities: .
Depreciation EXPENSE......oivirieiirrerseeeeeseeeiesiristsissssssssssssssssssssssssresesesns 2,626 2,005 1,538
Amortization of intangible and other aSSets .........covivieiiciessiec e, 3,045 1,921 1,550
(Gain) loss on disposal of property and equipment.........ccccccecvivveersennnne (150) 14 38
Allowances on accounts Teceivable........oovorveveeerver e cnsranaesneserens 1,504 (62) 210
Deferred INCOMIE LAXES ....coveeiierieieee e e et restsessseessesasesssssbeeeeeeesossnsnns 177 402 4,521
Equity based compensation charges .........ooanevnnnesemneneesesess 3,973 1,398 199
Minority interest in earnings of a subsidiary ...........cccoeviinnevcivnecnen, 248 — —
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effects from acquisitions:
ACCOUNLS TECEIVADIE ........ovverriricis et es s sesas eneerns (81,853) (10,696) (15,847)
Income tax receivable .............c..ov vt 3,380 3,862 (1,671)
OMhEr @SSETS ...oviiie et cieeetenene st et eaes st st s st e e e s easens s e aessasas (7,025) 109 (240)
Deferred Charges ..ottt e 9 374 (36)
Accounts payable, accrued expenses, and other liabilities.............cccoveee. 96,076 5,613 5,502
DEfETTER TEVEMLE. ......vvvvoivoevssssseassiees st ssssssnssssssse s ssess (1,130 352 (137)
Net cash provided by operating activities ...................oooveeureerns 52,436 28,272 12,010
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property and equipPMent.........cccoceviirercreinnenieniennnnes e srereenes (6,784) (1,715) (9,655)
Business acquisitions and related payments, net of cash acquired................. (16,325) (33,224) (37,650)
Purchases of marketable SECUNILIES.........ccccoceecrrri v (81,850) (45,586) —
Maturities of marketable SECUTTHES ...vvireiicrneeeee s 67,375 17,861 —_—
Proceeds from sale of property and eGUIPMENt ............ovvvveeveivecernrrrennssseessenns 1,046 — 1,045
Net cash used in investing aCHVItIES.......covvurverrveresrernrnnreneiesenens (36,538) (62,664) _ (46,260)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds frOm DOITOWIILES ....cvcvemeviceieeveie ettt ebns — — 37,338
Repayments of notes payable............ocveiinnnnnnennee e (12,500) (13,954) (21,838)
Deferred fiNancing COStS......ovivrinirine v ssenes (157) — —
Proceeds from exercise of stock options and warrants............ceeeeeeveiiieeeeens 8,179 8,836 2,011
Excess tax benefits due to option exercises and restricted stock vesting ....... 10,542 — —
Proceeds from shares issued under employee stock purchase plan................ 569 342 148
Purchases of treasury SIOCK .....cccovivecrivie ot sens (930) —_ —
Net proceeds from sale of cOMMON StOCK ........vvvrerrrmremrenrinnerseesseessssisessenenns — — 54,782
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities .................. 5,703 (4,776) 72,441
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ..........ococeeeoveceeiieecrvneenen, 21,601 (39,168) 38,191
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of Year......co.coovvveeririecireereceeeceseins 27,900 67,068 28,877
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year......occinees $ 49,501 527,900 5 67,068
Supplemental disclosure:
Cash paid fOr INTETEST...........coommeieeecee ettt aasserenes $ 683 $ 1,056 $ 968
Cash paid Tor TAXES ..o as b e anarsesenas $6,309 $ 8,900 $ 7,063

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,




HEALTHEXTRAS, INC.
and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(In thousands)

For the years ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
Comprehensive income:
INEEIMCOMIE ......oiviviviverere s isss e s e s s p e e $31,574 $22980 $16,383
Other comprehensive income, net of tax:
Unrealized (1oss) gain on interest rate SWap .......cccooeeeeens 3% 84 60
Less: reclassification adjustment for gains on mterest rate swap
realized N Nt INCOME.......o.evereeecerseererses e ssessessnesesnssesenncnmeerensssnes (105} — —
Total coMPreNensive IMCOIME .....ove vttt $31,430 323,064 $16,443

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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HEALTHEXTRAS, INC.
and Subsidiaries

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. COMPANY

HealthExtras, Inc. and subsidiaries (the “Company”} is a provider of pharmacy benefit management services,
referred to as PBM, and supplemental benefit programs. The Company’s PBM segment, which operates primarily
under the brand name “Catalyst Rx,” accounted for approximately 97%, 94% and 91% of the Company’s revenue in
2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The Company’s PBM clients include more than 1,000 self-insured employers,
including state and local governments, third-party administrators, and managed care organizations, who contract
with the Company to administer the prescription drug component of their overall health benefit programs. The PBM
segment provides its clients access to a contracted, non-exclusive national network of more than 58,000 pharmacies.
The PBM segment’s services provide its clients’ members with timely and accurate benefit adjudication, while
controlling pharmacy spending trends through customized plan designs, physician orientation programs and member
education. The Company maintains an electronic point-of-sale system of eligibility verification and plan design
information, and offers access to rebate arrangements for certain branded pharmaceuticals.

The Company also offers supplemental benefit programs developed by it under the brand name
“HealthExtras,” which include lump sum accidental disability benefits, accidental death and dismemberment
benefits, and emergency accident and sickness medical benefits. HealthExtras generally contracts with insurance
companies to underwrite the insurance components of these programs. As a result, the financial responsibility for the
payment of claims resulting from a qualifying event covered by the insurance features of its programs is borne by
the third-party insurers. The supplemental benefits segment accounted for approximately 3%, 6% and 9% of the
Company’s revenue in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Individuals are the major purchasers of these programs.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Principles of consolidation

The accompanying conselidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and alt of our
subsidiaries. All intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications were made to prior year amounts to conform to current year presentation.
Specifically, certain selling, general and administrative expenses, such as third-party commissions, client and
member services costs, and information technology costs have been reclassified to direct expenses. Amounts
reclassified from selling, general and administrative expense to direct expense were $13.9 million and $11.2 million
for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. This reclassification was made to better reflect the
nature of these costs as being more indicative of the direct effort to manage and process our client revenue. These
changes have no impact on the previously reported revenue, total operating expenses or operating income of the
Company.

Use of estimates

Preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the
consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The
most significant estimates included in these financial statements include accounting for: rebates due from
pharmaceutical manufacturing companies, the value of intangible assets acquired in business combinations and
related amortization periods, impairment assessments of goodwill and allowance for accounts receivable.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to significant concentrations of credii risk consist
principally of cash and cash equivalents, marketable securities and accounts receivable.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)

The Company maintains its cash and cash equivalents and marketable securities in financial institutions with
high credit ratings; however, at times the balances may exceed federally insured amounts. The Company has not
experienced any losses related to its cash or cash equivalents and marketable securities and believes it is not exposed
to any significant credit risk on its cash or cash equivalents and marketable securities.

Accounts receivable consists principally of amounts due from the Company’s PBM customers. The
Company’s top ten clients generated approximately 54.5% of PBM revenue in 2006, including approximately 13.9%
of PBM revenue from Wellmark Blue Cross Blue Shield of lowa and 12.1% of PBM revenue from the State of
Louisiana. The Company holds no collateral for accounts receivable. Concentration of risks with respect to
receivables is mitigated based on the geographical dispersion of clients, the Company’s communications with
clients, and the Company’s continuous review of outstanding receivables. Management also performs ongoing credit
evaluations of its clients and provides allowances as deemed necessary. The Company has not experienced
significant losses related to receivables in the past. The Company’s collection experience indicates limited loss
exposure due to the nature of the benefits involved and the necessity of benefit continuity for plan sponsor
employees.

Cash and cash equivalents

All highly liquid investments purchased with an original maturity date of three months or less when purchased
are classified as cash and cash equivalents. At December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Company had $1.0 million on
deposit in a restricted account with the State of Nevada as security for performance of its pharmacy benefit
management obligations and this amount is excluded from cash and cash equivalents.

Muarketable Securities

Marketable securities are classified as available-for-sale and are recorded at fair market value with unrealized
gains and losses, net of taxes, reported as a separate component of sharcholders’ equity. Realized gains (losses) and
declines in market value judged to be other than temporary, of which there were none in 2006 and 2005, are
included in other income. Marketable securities consist primarily of short-term auction rate notes. At December 31,
2006 and 2005, the accumulated unrealized gains (losses) on marketable securities, net of tax, included in
accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), was zero.

Accounts Receivable

Based on the Company’s direct expense recognition policies discussed below, certain rebates are estimated
and unbilled at the end of the period. Receivables for rebates are calculated monthly based on an estimate of
rebatable prescriptions and the rebate per prescription. These estimates are adjusted to actual on a quarterly basis
when the number of rebatable prescriptions and the rebate per prescription have been determined and the
manufacturers are billed for the rebates.

The allowance for accounts receivable is determined based on historical write-off experience. Account
balances are charged off against the allowance when the Company determines it is more than likely that the
receivable will not be recovered. The Company does not have any off-balance-sheet credit exposure related to our
clients.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is stated at cost and depreciated over their estimated useful lives using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives range from 3-5 years for the Company’s equipment and computer software
while leaschold improvements are amortized over the shorter of the estimated lives of the assets or the lease term.

Internally developed software

The Company capitalizes costs associated with software developed or obtained for internal use in accordance
with American Institute of Certified Public Accountants Statement of Position 98-1, Accounting for the Costs of
Computer Software Developed or Obtained for Internal Use. Capitalized internal use software development costs
include only (1) external direct costs of materials and services consumed in developing and obtaining software,
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(2) payroll and payroli-related costs for employees who are directly associated with and who devote time to the
project, and (3} interest costs incurred, when material, while developing the software, Capitalization of these costs
ceases when the project is substantially complete and ready for its intended purpose. Internally developed software
is reported in the “property and equipment” line on the balance sheet.

Impairment of long-lived assets

The Company investigates potential impairments of its long-lived assets when evidence exists that events or
changes in circumstances may have made recovery of an asset’s carrying value unlikely. Long-lived assets are
measured for impairment when the sum of the expected undiscounted future net cash flows is less than the carrying
amount of the asset. Any related impairment loss is calculated based upon comparison of the fair value to the
carrying value of the asset. No such impairment existed as of December 31, 2006 and 2005.

Intangible Assets

The Company accounts for its intangible assets under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS™)
No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. Under SFAS No. 142, the Company’s other intangible assets with
indefinite lives are not amortized, but are tested for impairment annually. Currently, the Company does not have any
intangible assets with indefinite lives.

The Company does have other intangible assets subject to amortization and these assets are amortized over 5
months to 20 years, depending on each intangible asset’s estimated useful life. The estimated fair value and the
weighted average useful-life of the intangible assets are based on income-method valuation calculations. The
remaining useful life of intangible assets is evaluated periodically by the Company and adjusted as necessary to
match the period that the assets are expected to provide economic benefits. The Company concluded that no
impairment of intangible assets existed at December 31, 2006 and 2005.

Goodwill

The Company accounts for its goodwill under SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. Under
SFAS No. 142, goodwill is not amortized, but it is tested for impairment at least annually as of December 31st. Each
year, the Company tests for impairment of goodwill according to a two-step approach. In the first step, the Company
tests for impairment of goodwill by estimating the fair values of its reporting units using the present value of future
cash flows approach, subject to a comparison for reasonableness to its market capitalization at the date of valuation.
For the purposes of performing this impairment test, the Company’s business segments are its reporting units. If the
carrying amount exceeds the fair value, the second step of the goodwill impairment test is performed to measure the
amount of the impairment loss, if any. In the second step the implied fair value of the goodwill is estimated as the
fair value of the reporting unit used in the first step less the fair values of all other net tangible and intangible assets
of the reporting unit. If the carrying amount of the goodwill exceeds its implied fair market value, an impairment
loss is recognized in an amount equal to that excess, not to exceed the carrying amount of the goodwill. In addition,
goodwill of a reporting unit is tested for impairment between annual tests if an event occurs or circumstances change
that would more likely than not reduce the fair value of a reporting unit below its carrying value.

The Company accounts for contingent consideration according to EITF 95-8, Accounting for Contingent
Consideration Paid to the Shareholders of an Acquired Enterprise in a Purchase Business Combination, to
determine whether contingent consideration should be accounted for as an adjustment to the purchase accounting or
expensed as incurred.

Revenue and direct expense recognition

The Company recognizes revenue from PBM services provided to its clients for sales of prescription drugs by
pharmacies in the Company’s nationwide network and related claims processing fees. Revenue is recognized when
the claims are adjudicated. Pharmacy claims are adjudicated at the point-of-sale using an on-line claims processing
system. When the Company has a contractual obligation to pay its network pharmacy providers for benefits
provided to its clients’ members, total payments from these clients are recorded as revenue and payments to the
network pharmacy provider and the claim adjudication service costs are recorded as direct expenses. Generally,
these contracts require the Company to assume the credit risk of its clients” abilities to pay. In addition, under a vast
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majority of its client contracts, the Company is at risk for the difference between the payments the Company
receives from its clients and the negotiated reimbursements the Company pays to its pharmacies. When the
Company administers pharmacy reimbursement contracts and does not assume credit risk, the Company records
only the net revenue and the administrative or processing fees.

Rebates earned under arrangements with drug manufacturers are a reduction of direct expenses. The portion of
such rebates due to clients is a reduction of revenue. Manufacturers’ rebates are based on estimates, which are
subject to final settlement with the contracted party. A contractual allowance for manufacturer rebates is established
and adjusted quarterly, if applicable, based on contractual terms with each manufacturer.

Member co-payments are not recorded as revenue. Under the Company’s pharmacy network contracts, the
pharmacy is solely obligated to collect the co-payments from the members. Under client contracts, the Company
does not assume liability for member co-payments in pharmacy transactions. As such, the Company does not
include member co-payments to pharmacies in revenue or direct expenses.

The primary determinant of revenue recognition for the supplemental benefits segment is monthly program
enrollment. In general, program revenue is recognized based on the number of members enrolled in each reporting
period multiplied by the applicable monthly fee for their specific membership program. The program revenue
recognized by the Company includes the cost of membership features supplied by others, including the insurance
components. Direct program expenses consist of the costs that are a direct function of a period of membership and a
specific set of program features. The coverage obligations of our benefit suppliers and the related expense are
determined monthly, as are the remaining direct expenses.

Revenue from supplemental benefit programs and related direct expenses (principally marketing and
processing fees and the cost of the benefits provided to program members) are initially deferred during the period in
which a program member is entitled to obtain a refund (generally 90 days). If a member requests a refund, the
Company retains any interest earned on funds held during the refunded membership period. Total revenue and direct
expenses attributable to the initial deferral are recognized subsequent to the end of the initial deferral period. After
the initial deferral period, revenue is recognized as earned and direct expenses as incurred.

Other income

In April 2004, the Company reached a legal settlement related to litigation initiated by the Company on
December 3, 2002. The terms of the settlement are confidential; however, the net proceeds from the settlement
constitute the significant portion of the $2.1 million of other income reported in the consolidated statement of
operations for the year ended December 31, 2004,

Income taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the expected future tax consequences of events that have
been included in the financial statements or tax returns. Deferred income taxes reflect the net effects of timing
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts
used for income tax purposes measured using the enacted tax rates and laws that will be in effect when the
differences are expected to reverse.

Net income per share

Basic net income per common share excludes dilution and is computed by dividing net income available to
common stockholders by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding for the period. Diluted net
income per common share reflects the potential dilution that could occur (using the treasury stock method) if options
and warrants to issue comnmon stock were exercised.
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The following represents a reconciliation of the number of shares used in the basic and diluted net income per
share computations (amounts in thousands except per share data):

2006 2005 2004
$31,574 $22,980 $16,383

Net income available to common stockholders........ceevneveenneiee,

Calculation of shares:

Weighted average common shares outstanding, basic........ 40,270 38,648 33,642
Dilutive effect of stock options and warrants ..................... 2,049 2,705 2,765
Weighted average common shares outstanding, diluted..... 42,319 41,353 36,407
Net income per common share, basic.........co.ccoiiiivviincncrannenne. $0.78 $0.59 $0.49
Net income per common share, diluted.........ccccorervnrernrernnns $0.75 $0.56 5045

In 2004, 412,000 options and warrants were not included in the computation of diluted net income per share
because the exercise prices were greater than the average market price of the common shares:

Comprehensive income

The Company recorded comprehensive income for its interest rate swap arrangement. The interest rate swap
was terminated in 2006. See Footnote 7.

Stock-based compensation

Prior to January 1, 2006, the Company accounted for its stock-based compensation plans using the intrinsic
value method in accordance with the provisions of Accounting Principle Board (APB) Opinion No. 25, Accounting
Jfor Stock Issued to Employees, and related Interpretations, as permitted by Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (SFAS) No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation. Effective January 1, 2006, the Company
adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 123(R), Share-Based Payment, using the modified-prospective-transition
method.

Under the modified-prospective-transition method, compensation cost recognized in the year ended
December 31, 2006 included (i) compensation cost for all share-based payments granted prior to but not yet vested
as of January 1, 2006, based on the grant date fair value estimated in accordance with the original provisions of
SFAS No. 123, and (ii) compensation cost for all share-based payments granted subsequent to January 1, 2006,
based on the grant date fair value estimated in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 123(R). Results for prior
periods have not been restated.

In December 2005, in anticipation of the requirements of SFAS 123(R), the Company accelerated, effective
December 31, 2005, the vesting of 1.1 million outstanding stock options. The acceleration of vesting was undertaken
so that compensation expense that otherwise would have been required to be recognized with respect to these
unvested stock options would not be reported in future periods. Based on the Company’s historical option forfeiture
rate, the Company incurred a charge of approximately $0.8 million or approximately $0.6 million after taxes.

As a result of adopting SFAS No. 123(R) on January 1, 2006, the Company’s income before income taxes
for the year ended December 31, 2006 was approximately $0.4 million lower than if the Company had continued to
account for share-based compensation under APB Opinion No. 25. Net income for the year ended December 31,
2006 was approximately $0.3 million lower than if the Company had continued to account for share-based
compensation under APB Opinion No. 25. The impact of adoption of SFAS No. 123(R) on the Company's basic and
diluted earnings per share for the year ended December 31, 2006 is not material.

The following table illustrates the effect on net income and earnings per share if the Company had applied
the fair value provisions of SFAS No. 123 to stock-based compensation for the periods prior to adoption of SFAS
No. 123(R). Amounts are in thousands, except per share data.
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December 31,
2005 2004
$22,980 $16,383

Net income, as reported ......ooeerecvrerneeens

Add: Stock option-based compensation expense included in reported net

INCOME, NEL OF LAXES ....veiiiieeviiereececceeerserrereeesssneerensssssessanssstossants sanassanannes 580 26
Deduct: Total stock option-based employee and director compensation expense

determined under fair value based method for all awards, net of taxes.... (3,373) (2,673)
Net Income, pro forma ... s § 20,187 $ 13,736
Eamings per share:
Basic — a5 TEPOIEG . ..cviiieiii s sessenene e e e et ese b peaeasas s $0.359 $0.49
ST Lo 13 (o3 (07 11V DO STV $0.52 $0.41
Diluted — 88 reported.. ...ttt $£0.56 3045
Diluted ~ Pro fOIMa....cciererivererererereseieereneseserestcseas s ses s reresseessss s snsssans $0.49 $0.38

The fair value for these options was estimated at the date of grant using the modified American Black-
Scholes economic option pricing method with the following assumptions for the years ended 2005 and 2004, There
were no options granted in 2606.

2005 2004
EXPECed tEIMM c..cvteeeerereeeeneee et 5 years 5 years
Volatility factOr......cocieeee et s 71.81 — 74.65% 74.65-70.87%
Risk free interest Tate........covvviivriereisrisssese s sse s sasessnssases 3.57-4.09%  2.76-4.04%
Dividend yield .....cccovviniinin s - -
Weighted average fair value .........coooovvveeecnnnsceeessneneins $10.31 $8.20

3. RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In July 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertain Tax Positions (“FIN 487},
This interpretation clarifies the accounting for uncertain tax positions in accordance with FASB Statement No. 109,
Accounting for Income Taxes. The interpretation addresses the recognition and measurement of uncertain income tax
positions using a “more-likely-than-not” threshold and introduces a number of new qualitative and quantitative
disclosure requirements. The Interpretation is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. The
Company is required to adopt this interpretation as of January 1, 2007. The cumulative affect of adopting FIN 48
will be recorded in retained eamings. The Company is evaluating the requirements of FIN 48 and expects adoption
will not have a material impact on its financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements (“SFAS 157”), which
addresses how companies should measure fair value when they are required to use a fair value measure for
recognition or disclosure purposes under generally accepted accounting principles. SFAS 157 applies to financial
statements that are issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007 and to interim periods within those
fiscal years. The Company is currently evaluating the impact SFAS 157 may have on its financial condition, results
of operations or cash flows.

In September 2006, the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 108, Considering the Effects of Prior
Year Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements ("SAB 108”). SAB 108
requires that public companies utilize a “dual-approach” to assessing the quantitative effects of financial
misstatements. This dual approach includes both an income statement focused assessment and a balance sheet
focused assessment. The guidance in SAB 108 must be applied to annual financial statements for fiscal years ending
after November 15, 2006. The adoption of SAB 108 did not have a material impact on the Company’s financial
condition, results of operations or cash flows.
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4, PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Property and equipment consists of the following (in thousands):

2006 2005

Computer hardWare .........oovvvreeineieninienniesessss s sesesssesessesesns e $2,984 $ 3,975
Computer SORWATE ..o e ereees 3,627 1,334
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment...............ccoovvevininecrinecrernens 4,183 3,499
Leasehold improvements........coireeiieiinesenesines st ste e 3,774 3,560
Transportation SQUIPIMENT ... ciivereeeeeeerareerirareasiassereseesssseseeseeresres 2916 2,256
Assets not yet placed i SEIVICE. ..o vrwrier v rercvcvseererensiss o 1,324 664

Total property and eqUIPMENL..........ccocoviviiniinnieneree e s 18,808 15,288
Accumulated depreciation ... oo (5,949) (5,711)

Total property and equipment, NEt...........ovceevesrmmreinnrneneereeeseeens $12,859 $9,577

Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004 was $2.6 million, $2.0
million and $1.5 million, respectively.

5. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The following table sets forth the components of intangible assets at December 31, 2006 and 2005 (in
thousands):

2006 2005 Amortization period

Catalyst CustOMEr CONITACES .......cooveereercrerararincnne $ 5,700 35,700 20 years
PNNC customer CONtractS.......ocovierreereeenmererernnens 8,000 8,000 20 years
MHS customer coOntractS.......ccoevvvivivecinneeineennne. 8,289 8,289 15 years
EBRx customer contracts..........ocourvrereereenenennn 7,393 6,000 11 years
R/X™ customer CONtracts ........covvvveorerureninieresnens 5,600 - 12 years
Non-compete agreements ........occvvvvvimersisessennes 298 118 2 -3 years
Other PBM CONAacts ..oevveervvienvenvrivsvssivissanins. 6,755 2,980 5 months — 20 years
Total intangible assets.........oooviiinnnnnineciniee. 42035 31,087
Accumulated amortization...........coocieiecnnne (7,673) {4,645)

§ 34,362 $ 26,442

Catalyst Rx (“Catalyst™), Pharmacy Network National Corporation (“PNNC”), Managed Healthcare
Systems, Inc. (“MHS™), EBRx, Inc. (“EBRx"} and R/x* Pharmacy Solutions, Inc. (“R/x*") customer contracts
represent the estimated fair value of customer contracts held by Catalyst, PNNC, MHS, EBRx and R/x* at the dates
of acquisition. This estimated fair value and the weighted average useful-lives are based on income—method
valuation calculations. Other PBM contracts allow the Company to provide PBM services, which are amortized over
the future cash flow, based on the Company’s best ¢stimate.

Amortization expense of intangible assets for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 was $3.0
million, $1.9 million and $1.5 million, respectively, The estimated aggregate amortization expense of intangible
assets for the years ending December 31, 2007, 2008, 2009, 2010 and 2011, is $3.3 million, $3.0 miilion, $2.8
million, $2.4 million and $2.0 million, respectively.
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6. GOODWILL

The changes in goodwill for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 are as follows (in thousands):

2006 2005
Balance as of JANUAIY 1 ...ccvovvvveiennneeicerere s svens $101,591 $ 68,947
Goodwill acquired in acquisitions ... 13,366 25,169
Adjustments to a previous acquisition purchase price ........ccoouvvnvniesesenencs (295) 326
Contingent consideration incurred related to a previous acquisition........... 3,393 7,149
Balance as of December 31 ..o e $118,055 $101,591

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the net assets of acquired
businesses. The Company performed its annual impairment testing at December 31, 2006 and 2005 and concluded
that no impairment of goodwill exists. For the purposes of impairment testing, the Company considers its two
business segments to be its reporting units. All goodwill is recorded in the PBM segment.

7. NOTES PAYABLE

In September 2006, the Company entered into a new $50.0 million revolving credit facility with its primary
commercial bank. The new facility is for a three-year term expiring September 2009 and bears interest at LIBOR
plus a variable margin based on funded debt to earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization
expense (“EBITDA”), payable in arrears on the first day of each month. There was no outstanding balance at
December 31, 2006 on the new credit facility. The new credit facility is collateralized by substantially all of the
Company’s assets. The facility contains affirmative and negative covenants including those related to indebtedness
and EBITDA.

This new credit facility replaced an expiring $30.0 million revolving credit facility that originated in June
2004. The prior facility bore interest at LIBOR plus 1.25%, as reduced from LIBOR plus 2.0% when the facility was
extended in June 2006, and provided for interest to be payable in arrears on the first day of each month. The prior
facility was collateralized by substantially all of the Company’s assets and contained affirmative and negative
covenants related to indebtedness and EBITDA. There was no outstanding balance on the prior revolving credit
facility at December 31, 2005,

In June 2004, the Company also entered into a $20.0 million, forty-cight month term loan facility with its
primary commercial bank. Commencing July 1, 2004, principal was payable monthly in equal installments, together
with accrued interest on the outstanding balance. The term loan bore interest at LIBOR plus 2.00% and the effective
interest rate at December 31, 2005 was 6.29%. The outstanding balance on the term loan facility at December 31,
2005 was $12.5 million, of which $5.0 million was current. In September 2006, concurrent with entering into the
new revolving credit facility, the Company repaid the then outstanding balance of $8.8 million on the term loan
facility with its primary commercial bank and terminated a related interest rate swap. Termination of the interest rate
swap resulted in a nominal gain recorded in interest income.

Interest expense for notes payable for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005and 2004 was $0.8 million,
$1.1 million and $1.1 million, respectively.
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8. INCOME TAXES

The components of income tax (benefit} expense at December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 are as follows (in
thousands}):

2006 2005 2004

Current:  Federal ...ttt $17,378 $11,723 $ 4,457
LG - rb s 2,672 1,033 936

TOAL ..o 20,050 12,756 5,393

Deferred: Federal ..ot (3) 225 3,867
AL ettt 361 181 654

TOtAl eieieiiiir e enrees 358 406 4,521

Total: FOABTAL...oeoeoeeeeeeeeeeeerer e eere et esseneseesesesessnenenes 17,375 11,948 8,324
1o 721 (PR 3,033 1,214 1,590

TOLAL ..ottt $ 20,408 $13,162 $9,914

A summary of the components of deferred income taxes at December 31, 2006 and 2005 is as follows (in
thousands):

2006 2005
Deferred tax assets (liabilities):

Allowance for doubtful accounts ..........coovveeeieiinircreece e, $ 355 $83
Deferred ChAaIZES .........c.cuevieiieiiceeeie e (59%) (592)
Deferred TENT.......covivvevirrerirnesrsrreeeere e e s nn e s nan e 620 609
Rebates receivable, NEt.......cocveeveicieriecsesesss et er s ssa e seees (185) (354)
Property and eqUIPIMENT .......ccverieeereirereriemnermmee s eescrmseneeeseeans (1,157) (1,208)
Customer-based and other intangibles ..., (9,401 (6,730)
L Ta T L | (2,310) (1,305)
Equity based cOmpensation.........c.cccoeoeieiiiiiiieieieiiveseseee s ssssssenesenns 794 439
Federal and state net operating loss carryforwards ..........coooceenennnnne 485 785
ORET <.t e b a e b aa e b b rae e ares — (8%)

Net deferred tax ability.......ccccoiieiiciieniirreee e see, $(11,394) $(8,358)

At December 31, 2006 the Company had net operating loss carryforwards of $0.5 million and $7.3 million,
which are available to offset future federal and state taxable income, respectively. The federal carryforwards are
subject to an annual limitation of $467,000 under Internal Revenue Code Section 382. The carryforwards expire at
various times between 2010 and 2021.

The effective tax rate varies from the U.S. Federal Statutory tax rate principally due to the following:

2006 2005 2004
U.S. Federal Statutory taX TS .....cccoeveeeeeeseeesesee e rerevers e vses e resnnnes 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
State taxes, net of federal benefits ..o veeieecreecccccr e 3.6 2.8 3.2
Non-deductible eXpenses. ... 0.2 0.4 0.1
NOD-taXable IMCOIME .....oooeiiiieeicicee e eecevsscres s e s e s sssassssssensens — (1.1} —
(01T OO OO 03 0.7) (0.6
EfTeCtiVe AKX TATE .ovvieivi e ceneseestareessesaesrannesrrenssnes e seeerenmssasesesnes 39.1% 36.4% 3.7%
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9. STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Stock Option Plans

In 1999, the Company established the HealthExtras, Inc. 1999 Stock Option Plan (“1999 SOP™). The 1999
SOP provides for a maximum of 4,000,000 common shares of the Company to be issued as option grants. A
Committee of the Board of Directors determines award amounts, option prices and vesting periods, subject to the
provisions of the 1999 SOP. All option grants expire in ten years. All officers, employees and independent
contractors of the Company are eligible to receive option awards at the discretion of the Committee.

In 2000, the shareholders approved and the Company adopted the HealthExtras, Inc. 2000 Stock Option
Plan (2000 SOP™). The 2000 SOP provides for a maximum of 1,000,000 common shares of the Company to be
issued as option grants. A Committee of the Board of Directors determines award amounts, option prices and vesting
periods, subject to the provisions of the 2000 SOP. All option grants expire in ten years. All officers, employees and
independent contractors of the Company are eligible to receive option awards at the discretion of the Committee.

In 2000, the shareholders approved and the Company adopted the HealthExtras, Inc. Directors’ Stock
Option Plan (“Directors’ SOP™). The Directors’ SOP, as subsequently amended, provided for a maximum of
400,000 common shares of the Company to be issued as option grants. The Board of Directors determines award
amounts, option prices and vesting periods, subject to the provisions of the Directors® SOP. All option grants expire
in ten years. All non-employee Directors of the Company are eligible to receive option awards at the discretion of
the Board of Directors, The Directors’ SOP provided for an option grant of 15,000 shares to each non-Employee
Director upon approval of the plan and subsequent annual grants of 5,000 shares.

In 2003, the shareholders approved and the Company adopted the HealthExtras, Inc. 2003 Equity Incentive
Plan (“2003 EIP”). The 2003 EIP provides for a maximum of 1,500,000 common shares of the Company to be
issued as option grants or restricted shares. A Committee of the Board of Directors determines award amounts,
option prices, vesting periods, and restrictions, subject to the provisions of the 2003 EIP. All option grants expire in
ten years. All officers, employees and independent contractors of the Company are eligible to receive option and
restricted stock awards at the discretion of the Committee.

[n 2006, the shareholders approved and the Company adopted the HealthExtras, Inc. 2006 Stock Incentive
Plan (“2006 SIP”). The 2006 SIP provides for a maximum of 1,500,000 common shares of the Company to be
issued as option grants or restricted shares. A Committee of the Board of Directors determines award amounts,
option prices, vesting periods, and restrictions, subject to the provisions of the 2006 SIP. All option grants expire in
ten years. All employees, outside directors and independent contractors of the Company are eligible to receive
option and restricted stock awards at the discretion of the Committee.

For the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Company granted 209,800 and 385,000 restricted
shares, respectively, pursuant to the 2003 EIP and the 2006 SIP with vesting periods ranging between 12 and 60
months,

A summary of the Company’s stock option activity for the three years ended December 31, 2006 is as
follows (in thousands, except price per share and weighted-average exercise price):
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Weighted -
Average
Number of Price Exercise
Options Per Share Price

Balance, December 31, 2003 .......ooviiiioiiinieeeirree e e 4,658 $2.42-9.65 $5.19
GIANTEA e eveiee e eeeeeee e eeetse e beeebassesbbasabs st ranssaearsbasnsaesrasesnsnesranen: 981 9.15-16.36 12.57
EXCITISEA . ..uiieieviiicreeecrereersrreseieresberssasaaseassesesansensessesen e embebesasaasbasatabasas (308) 2.42-9.65 3.87
FOrfeited .......cooiiiiiiiniein e e et e ra s sesesanasssesaene e eemeeane e neemnen: (67  3.57-13.55 7.96
Balance, Decemnber 31, 2004 ..........ccooiciiieenieicnnecerninesenssescerasnssnssasacscsrasce. 5264 $242-1636 $6.65
GTANTEA. .. veeveecseee e eee et e s be s b s er e b e s basbea s sstassasbasseberaresesmrasesns 155 15.96-17.64 16.44
EXETCISEA . oeicviiereiieiireris i sire s ieeecreeteeeesmsenseemseensesasssaesssesasssassssnsnsnsans (794) 2.42-16.36 5.27
FOITRItE ....oeiiececee ettt et e s e eneeen e e e e ens s e a s b s sssasssansnas (191)  3.60-16.36 14.46
Balance, December 31, 2005 .......c.ovvveermrreee e e 4434 §£2.42-17.64 £6.89

L -1y L1 FO SR - - -
LR T 3 11 = (1,297) 242-17.61 6.32
3 (=1 2=+ DO (46) 3.93-11.81 6.49
Balance, December 31, 2006 ............coviniminmininie e, 3,091 $242-17.64 $7.14
Exercisable, December 31, 2004.........ccommieeeeeectnstesir s 2,763 $2.42-16.36 $529
Exercisable, December 31, 2005......coeririionenreeeeree e et 4,348 $242-16.51 $ 6.80
Exercisable, December 31, 2006........cccovircierrerenesreesisiaesreesrsreseseeseee e 3,091 $242-17.64 $7.14

The following table summarizes information about the outstanding options at December 31, 2006 (in
thousands, except for weighted-average exercise price):

Options Qutstanding
Weighted
Average
Remaining Weighted
Number of Contractual Average
Range of Exercise Prices Option Life (years) Exercise Price
BOLO-6.62 ... s e 1,551 5.48 $ 6.61
BT 1 - T T i 6 6.18 $ 7.68
B9.65 - 1034 o.veeeriirrereesrrrrn e e e e s 276 7.13 $10.10
B11.03 - T1BI oo b s 79 7.37 $11.40
B12.40 - 13,90 o ) 80 7.80 $13.43
14, 2] - 18,57 e 33 7.49 $15.20
B15.96 - 17.69 ..iriisisereee ettt 161 R.16 $16.36
$2.82 < 1764 coooooooo et 3,091 5.52 $ 714

The aggregate intrinsic value of exercisable stock options at December 31, 2006 was approximately $52.4
million with a weighted average remaining life of 5.5 years. The total intrinsic value of stock options exercised
during the year ended December 31, 2006 was approximately $30.9 million. The total fair value of stock options
which vested during year ended December 31, 2006 was approximately $0.3 million. As of December 31, 2006,
there was no remaining unrecognized compensation cost related to stock options.

A summary of the Company’s restricted share activity for the three years ended December 31, 2006 is as
follows (in thousands, except for fair market value per share):
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Falr Market
Value Per
Shares Share
Non-vested shares outstanding at December 31,2004 ... — —
GrANEA .....oeeeece et et sssne e e resesnssnsneseresasasanessasssnssseeseseses s e seseces 385 $22.28
VESEE ..ottt s s — —
Forfeited or expired ..ot — —
Non-vested shares outstanding at December 31, 2005.....ccciiiniinniiinnn 385 22.28
L] 101 = POV 210 30.06
VSR et st seem sttt (106) 22.06
Forfeited or @Xpired ........c.covciveniiinisnciesie et ) 30.04
Non-vested shares outstanding at December 31, 2006 ...........cooninvciiincnncnes 482 25.61

As of December 31, 2006, the total remaining unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested
restricted shares was approximately $10.7 million with a weighted average period over which it is expected to be
recognized of 3.1 years.

Prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R), the Company presented all tax benefits of deductions resulting
from the exercise of stock options and vested restricted stock awards as operating cash flows in the consolidated
statement of cash flows. SFAS No. 123(R) requires the cash flows resulting from the tax benefits generated from tax
deductions in excess of the compensation costs recognized for those options or awards (excess tax benefits) to be
classified as financing cash flows.

The Company has elected to adopt the alternative transition method provided in FASB Staff Position
No. FAS 123R-3, Transition Election Related to Accounting for Tax Effects of Share-Based Payment Awards
(“SFAS 123(R)-3") for catculating the tax effects of equity-based compensation pursuant to SFAS 123(R). The
alternative transition method includes simplified methods to establish the beginning balance of the Additional Paid-
In Capital Pool (“APIC Pool”) related to the tax effects of employee equity-based compensation, and to determine
the subsequent impact on the APIC pool and consolidated statement of cash flows of the tax effects of employee
equity-based compensation awards that were outstanding upon the implementation of SFAS 123(R).

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

The Company offers an employee stock purchase plan (“ESPP”) that allowed eligible employees to
purchase shares of the Company’s common stock each quarter at 85% of the market value on the first or last day of
the quarter. The ESPP was considered compensatory under the provisions of SFAS No. 123(R) and for the year
ended December 31, 2006, the Company incurred $0.2 million in related stock-based compensation expense.

Effective January 1, 2007, the ESPP was modified, allowing eligible employees to purchase shares of the
Company’s common stock each quarter at 95% of the market value on the last day of the quarter. The ESPF as
modified will not be considered compensatory under the provisions of SFAS No. 123(R) and therefore, subsequent
to December 31, 2006 no portion of the costs related to ESPP purchases will be included in the Company’s stock-
based compensation expense.

Common Stock Warrants

In January 2004, pursuant to an exchange agreement entered into between a distributor and the Company,
the distributor surrendered the 750,000 warrants in exchange for 394,773 shares of common stock to be issued by
the Company. The Company agreed to accept such surrender and exchange and issued the 394,773 shares of
common stock to be registered in the name of the distributor. In 2004, the distributor sold the 394,773 shares
through a broker transaction.

In September 2001, the Company issued warrants 1o third parties to acquire 845,816 shares of the
Company’s common stock in a private placement with an exercise price of $5.37, which were vested immediately
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and expired on September 26, 2005. In 2004, 188,916 of these warrants were exercised, in 2005, 625,414 were
exercised and the remaining 31,486 expired.

During 2002, the Company issued common stock warrants to a customer granting the right to purchase
250,000 shares of the Company’s common stock for $5.22 per share. The warrants were exercisable at any time after
the grant date, with a conditton that the Company must be the exclusive provider of PBM services to the customer
on the date of exercise. The term of the PBM contract was from July 1, 2002, to September 30, 2009. Using an
equity-pricing model, the 250,000 warrants were valued at $400,000, a charge that was being recognized on a
straight-line basis over the life of the seven-vear contract beginning July 2002. The Company recorded $57,000 of
contra-revenue related to amortization of the cost of the warrants in each of 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. All
250,000 of these warrants were exercised in 2003,

Effective July 15, 2005 and 2006, the Company issued 100,000 common stock warrants at an exercise price
of $15.45 per share pursuant to the MHS acquisition. These warrants were issued subject to the successful
satisfaction of certain performance based revenue and gross profit targets. Each of these warrant issuances were
valued at $1.0 million and were recognized as additional goodwill as a component of the acquisition accounting,
These 200,000 common stock warrants remain issued and outstanding at December 31, 2006,

Treasury Stock

Recipients of restricted stock grants are provided the opportunity to sell a portion of those shares to the
Company at the time the shares vest, in order to pay their withholding tax obligations. The Company accounts for
these share purchases as treasury stock transactions using the cost method. For the year ended December 31, 2006,
approximately 36,000 shares were used for this purpose at a value of approximately $0.9 million.

10. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS
Acquisition of R/ix"

On November 3, 2006, the Company purchased all of the outstanding common stock of R/x™ Pharmacy
Solutions, Inc. (“R/x™), an Atizona corporation, for $16.0 million in cash and $0.7 millien in related transaction
costs. The acquisition provides for an additional cash consideration payment of $2.0¢ million subject to certain client
retention criteria. R/x" is a provider of pharmacy benefit management services with a strategic focus on clients in the
Arizona, Nevada and Hawaii markets. The Company has also established a business development marketing
relationship with an R/x* affiliate, Pharmacy Benefit Consultants, Inc. (“PBC”), and has agreed to purchase PBC if
requested by its shareholder on terms determined by PBC’s success in generating new business.

The acquisition of R/x” resulted in goodwill of $13.4 million and intangible assets of $5.6 million. The
allocation of the purchase price to the net assets acquired is preliminary and may be adjusted upon completion of a
valuation study which is currently in progress. Consequently, the allocation of purchase price to intangibie assets is
subject to adjustment. Additionally, the cost of the acquisition may be increased depending on the resolution of the
contingent consideration.

The following table summarizes the estimated fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at
the date of acquisition. The acquisition was accounted for as a purchase. Amounts are in thousands.
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At November 3,

Description 2006
Current assets, including cash of $802........ccccoiivevniinv i $3,871
INtANEIBLE BSSEES ..viiiiiiriieriictiiiti ittt se st b e e e e 5,600
GOOAWIL ..ot e se e et e s e 13,366

Total assets ACQUITED .........coveeerirer e a s e aenes 22,837
Liabilities aSSUME ...ooovviiiiiiiniirrriirisiisrir s ssiae v e sssies s e css e s s seat s eestie e e e smsee e ssrnenenan (6,161)
Net as5e1s ACAUITEA. .....cvevreveerirerereerecrese s ere s sar s essarssasssarssnsssenson $16,676

Acquisition of EBRx

On December 16, 2005, the Company acquired the common stock of EBRx, Inc. (“EBRx"). The
acquisition was structured as a merger between a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, HCEM Corp., and the
parent company of EBRx, with the former parent as the surviving entity following the merger. Consideration
consisted of a cash payment of $27.9 million and $0.8 million in related transaction costs. HCEM was funded by the
Company with a $4.0 million equity investment and the remaining consideration was provided in the form of
subsidiary debt. As contemplated by the original structure and terms of the transaction, a separate entity owned by
former owners of EBRx and its management team, purchased a 20% ownership interest in the parent of EBRx
through a $1.0 million equity investment, on January 3, 2006. This equity investment was made in the form of a note
receivable and is recorded in the current “other assets™ category in the Company’s consolidated balance sheet. The
note receivable was collateralized by certificates of deposit having an aggregate principal amount of $1.0 million.
The note bore interest of 4.38% per annum and had an indefinite due date. In addition, the transaction provided that
the Company may purchase the remaining 20% interest beginning after twelve months and ending after fifteen
months from closing at specified amounts based on the financial performance of EBRx. Moreover, EBRx had the
right to require the Company to purchase the 20% interest beginning after fifteen months and ending after eighteen
months from closing at specified amounts based on the financia! performance of EBRx. See Note 17 - Subsequent
Events.

The acquisition also provided for an additional contingent consideration payment of up to $3.0 million
subject to performance based standards including certain specified client retention and gross profit criteria for the
twelve months ended December 31, 2006. The contingent consideration earned in 2006 was approximately $2.4
million. Based on a valuation report of the allocation of the purchase price to the net assets acquired, the acquisition
of EBRx resulted in goodwill of $27.3 million, inclusive of the $2.4 million additional contingent consideration
payment, and customer relationship intangibles of $7.4 million and non-competition agreements of $0.2 million. The
customer relationship intangibles are being amortized on a straight-line basis over an | 1-year life and the non-
competition agreements are being amortized on a straight-linc basis over a 3-year life.

The following table summarizes the fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of
acquisition. The acquisition was accounted for as a purchase. Amounts are in thousands.

Al December 15,

Description 2005
Current assets, including cash of $1,270 ..o $ 8,297
O ASSELS .ottt ee e ee e e ettt e st e e e et bs st aessbssabbbaes bt e bt aassss s bsbansses 20
Intangible assets.......oooiieeei e 7,573
GOOAWIIL.....co ittt r e e e b b st se s savs s b sesnsessernsesesnssensanns 24,874
Total aSSELS ACQUITEM........cc.cvreeererrreiereees st sses st s s sressnseres 40,764
Liabilities asSUMEd ......ccvvviiiiiiii e n e ane e (12,054)
Net aSSELS ACGUITEA 1.vvvvvvvnvesresresrsrerssessenessnrsseseressrssssessesssessmsasnsasnssenssensaenssas 528,710

The following table sets forth certain unaudited pro forma financial data assuming the acquisition of EBRx
had been completed as of the beginning of the period presented, after giving effect to purchase accounting
adjustments. Amounts are in thousands, except for per share data,
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Year ended Year ended
December 31, December 31,
2005 2004
REVEILE ..ottt bbb e s ne s e esa e e nronsronnt st besssene $757,526 $567,279
INEE HICOINIE. ..t ettt eetee st e ees e e s e seeasaensesasaensaennesnserntssnnerasserses 24260 16,925
Net income per share, Basic.........coovvvviicriee e e ene s $0.63 $0.50
Net income per share, dilUted .......c.ccoeieieievieierie e ese s srsasasanenes $0.59 $046
Weighted average per share, DasicC.........oovveiviiiiiiner e e 38,648 33,642
Weighted average per share, diluted...........cccocoiiiiiiminnii e 41,353 36,407

The pro forma results of operations are not necessarily indicative of the results that would have occurred
had the Company owned 80% of EBRx at Japuary 1, 2005 and 2004.

Acquisition of MHS

On June 18, 2004, the Company acquired 100% of the common stock of MHS. Total consideration consisted
of a cash payment of $37.3 million, 100,379 shares of the Company’s common stock valued at $1.5 million, and
$1.5 million in related transaction costs. In addition, the Company also issued:

*  two non-negotiable promissory notes, having an aggregate maximum principal amount of $4.0 million
payable pursuant to and subject to certain revenue and gross profit criteria attributable to MHS for the
twelve months ending June 30, 2005;

«  warrants to purchase, for up to ten years, up to an aggregate of 300,000 shares of the Company’s common
stock at a purchase price of $15.45 per share, subject to the provisions in the warrant, including
performance-based standards;

*  acontingent earn-out provision which could require an additional payment of up to $2.0 million, subject
to certain revenue and gross profit criteria attributable to MHS for the twelve months ending June 30,
2005.

The acquisition resulted in the recording of goodwill of approximately $30.4 million and intangible assets
(customer contracts and non-compete agreements) of $8.4 million.

in July 2005, subject to the various revenue and gross profit performance requirements, the Company paid the
additional contingent cash consideration in a total amount of $6.2 million and issued 100,000 common stock
warrants at an exercise price of $15.45 per share. Also, in July 2006, subject to the various revenue and gross profit
performance requirements, the Company issued an additional 100,000 common stock warrants at an exercise price
of $15.45 per share. Each of these warrant issnances were valued at $1.0 million and were recognized as additional
goodwill as a component of the acquisition accounting.

The remaining 100,000 warrants remain potentially issuable subject to future revenue and gross profit
performance based requirements.

In addition, to support its geographic expansion and growth, the Company has periodically completed various
insignificant business acquisitions to secure local operating assets, new pharmacy network contracts and local
market executive offices. None of these transactions has had any significant impact on the Company’s reported
revenues, assets or results of operations.

i11. LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Company maintains non-cancelable lease agreements for office space in its 11 main operating locations.
These agreements provide for annual escalations and payment by the Company of its proportionate share of the:
increase in the costs of operating the buildings. The Company also leases certain office equipment. The Company
recognizes rent expense on a straight-line basis over the terms of the leases.
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The future minimum payments due under non-cancelable leases are as follows (in thousands):

2007 et eeereteeaear—rtea et eaaeteteeaea—aeeiaresaeieskstsisiateeeiantere et e eaaareeeeenreeeabaeeasaarerennnreeeins $2,614
2008 e eeerreeeesasees ey s e enteaea—aetea et eeeaateteeeaesteieiateteiatetsreaaatsesenneeeeareeeeaaateeeennaresins 2,571
2000 oot eeeeer e evaeea—rtettet e et taa e ettt a ———retteeianban———sbateietatatabeeeeeverenrnrreneeansaaas 2,461
D L O RO UPPPOTRPR 2,403
200 L oot r e s e e s e e rerera e et bant et ta s e —— eyt eera e ——r e st e e oaseeammnmanteieie A b et et aeesesamrrenenannaaas 2,097
TRETRATIEL c.cve v eeeeeeeeeeeeseeeeeerees e e eeereeeseeeessseme s essase et se e esmsees e seeeeasemeeemeeemesasssstasassssires 4,504

$ 17,050

Rent expense for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 was $2.4 million, $1.8 million and $1.5
million, respectively.

12, COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

During the routine course of securing new clients, the Company is sometimes required to provide
performance bonds to cover the client transition. The terms of these performance bonds are typically focused on the
first several months of operation for the new client when service is being implemented.

The Company has entered into formal arbitration proceedings to recover funds owed to the Company by a
former service provider. The Company is confident that the amount it has recognized in the financial statements
represents the true and valid amount due from this service provider. Nonetheless, the counter party is contesting the
amount due and there is risk that a determination resulting from the arbitration process could differ from the
amounts recognized in the financial statements. Management does not expect the ultimate outcome of this
proceeding to have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial condition, results of operations or cash
flows,

13. SEGMENT REPORTING

The Company operates in two business segments, PBM and Supplemental Benefits. The Company measures
the performance of its operating segments through segment gross margin, defined as segment revenue less segment
direct expenses. Selling, general and administrative expenses are reported as corporate expenses. In addition, interest
and other income (expense), which includes interest income, interest expense and other income, is reported in the
corporate category. Corporate assets consist of all cash, marketable securities, income tax receivable and deferred
income taxes.

Segment information for 2006, 2005 and 2004 is as follows (in thousands):

Supplemental
PBM Benefits Corporate Total

December 31, 2006

REVEIUE......oooeeeeeerereeriesresreiesseesssesseeseeneeeeeeeeeeeeeseeeeeseesenns 31,229,144 $41,862 $— $£1,271,006
DEFECE EXPEINSES ...ovovveerreerereeesssesesssrssessresssssssssssssmennnens 11149233 27,644 — 1,176,877
Segment EroSS MATZIN .....cueverereeeerrrarrrersssresrermseresssssareseses 79,911 14,218 — 94,129
Selling, general and administrative eXpenses.......covererurenee 46,414 46,414
Interest and other income (expense), Nel.......ccocorminrererrenas 4,267 4,267
Income before INCOME tAXES. ....cvvvwveverciiriorireinieriseenseerees 51,982
TOLA] BSSELS 1uvuvrereucuracrnererereresenssesssesese s s s s vevevenenas 341,400 2,923 91,701 436,024
Goodwill and intangible assets.......vvveccereeormvncieiencieeeeees 152,417 — — 152,417
ACCOUNLS TECEIVADIE ...oovevreevereeresrrrreeeeeeeeeeeeieeeeeimeeeeeveeeeeanes 168,785 647 — 169,432
AcCCOUnts PAYable ..........ooveeirorenrin e 166,873 193 — 167,066
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Supplemental

PBM Benefits Corporate Total

December 31, 2005

REVEIUE. ........veeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseseeeememsr s nsen s sss st eseasans $650,911 $ 43,608 $— $ 694,519
DIFECE EXPEINSES .......e.ceeeceecerrseminsessesserrssessese s sssessesseeenne 594,251 32,943 — 627,194
Segment gross MAargil.........ccocerveeemsinerersnoneessenesesssessaneans 56,660 10,665 — 67,325
Seiling, general and administrative expenses..........c.ccece... — — 32,501 32,501
Interest and other income (expense), Net...........ccc.evvrvrneen. — — 1,318 1,318
Income before INCOME tAXES......coveveieeiiecnnrcr e 36,142
TOAl ASSEIS ....oeoeeeeeece ettt e 226,233 2,981 56,798 286,012
Goodwill and intangible assets......cceeevencnceennniiinicnee 128,033 — — 128,033
ACCOUNtS TECEIVADIE ..ot 86,023 206 —_ 86,229
Accounts payable ... s 68,752 768 — 69,520
December 31, 2004

REVEIUE ...t eeee et ee e s e e s eresats st st sansreasnenanen $475,229 $ 46,096 $— §521,325
DHIECE EXPENSES..ovvvieoeoeoereosrisieesis s ssesss e sasssaestssteins 436,305 35,643 — 471,948
Segment Sross MArgin .......cocovreemecereieriereeeniere et eeeaseens 38,924 10,453 — 49,377
Selling, general and administrative exXpenses.........o.cecvevveenene — — 24,418 24418
Interest and other income (expense), net.........c.coceeeeecevvrenann, — — 1,338 1,338
Income before INCOME tAXES vvvii it eanees 26,297
TOtAl ASSELS .....ooeeeeeeeeeeeee et e 171,309 3.850 69,093 244252
Goodwill and intangible assets.........coviiiincinnnenincne 91,254 — — 91,254
ACCOUNIS TECEIVADIC. ....oeeeeecviverererete e verssaerreeessaranarerereseas 68,082 156 — 68,238
Accounts payable ... e 54,292 1,399 — 55,691

14. 401(k) SAVINGS PLAN

In April 2000, the Company authorized the establishment of an employee 401(k) Savings Plan (the “Plan™).
The Plan benefit is available to all Company employees, subject to certain service requirements. Since the Plan’s
inception, the Company has matched the first $1,000 of the employee’s contribution and 50% thereafier on the first
ten percent of the employee’s pre-tax deferral subject to statutory limits. The Company’s matching contribution
vests ratably over 5 years for each employee. For the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, the Company
incurred expense of $731,000, $554,000 and $377,000 respectively, under the Plan.

15. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During 2006, 2005 and 2004, the Company paid legal fees of $439,000, $331,000 and $157,000, respectively,
to a law firm in which a member of the Company’s Board of Directors is a shareholder and member of the law
firm’s executive committee.

In February 2006, the Company entered into a sublease with United Medical Bank, FSB (“UMB”) for 4,364
square feet of finished office space on the third floor of 800 King Farm Boulevard. A member of the Company’s
Board of Directors and parent of its chief executive officer control the holding company of UMB. Pursuant to the
sublease, UMB passes through the actual lease rental costs to the Company at approximately $10,400 per month
with annual escalator of approximately 3% per year thereafter through May 14, 2015. Either the holding company of
UMB or the Company can terminate the lease with a 90 day written notice at anytime. The Company paid $115,000
to UMB in 2006,

In March of 2004, the Company entered into an agreement to purchase all of the assets of Diabetic Sense, a

company specializing in diabetes management programs, from an executive vice president of the Company in
exchange for 74,250 shares of the Company’s common stock. The 74,250 shares of stock were valued at $749,925
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on the date of the agreement. Diabetic Sense provides specialty services to certain enrolled members who participate
in arrangements for discounted purchasing of diabetes test meters, insulin and other related supplies. The programs
are offered to existing client groups of HealthExtras, as well as to other clients who do not otherwise contract with
HealthExtras or its affiliates for pharmacy benefit management services. The transaction closed on June 24, 2004,

16. SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF QUARTERLY RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED)
Quarterly results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 (in thousands, except per

share amounts):

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

2006 Quarterly Operating Results
Revenue {excludes member co-payments of $98,634, $96,990,

$138,550, and $142,809 for the four quarterly periods ended

March 31, June 30, September 30, and December 31, 2006)..... $238,671  $273,006 $363,121 §$396,208
OPETating INCOME ...o.vvveeicceenenesir e seremcmcn e e sasbninns 8,797 8,445 13,093 17,380
Income before INCOME AXES ....o.ecvevieiiieecreecreererrerrvarsnesnnssansescessean: 9,411 9,428 14,386 18,757
N ITICOMNIC oo eee e et b bbb et bass s b absesesrs s e e anenrereenens $5,762 $ 5,780 $8764 §11,268
Net income per common share, basic ... $0.14 $£0.14 $022 $0.28
Net income per common share, diluted ... $0.14 $0.14 $0.21 $0.27
2005 Quarterly Operating Results
Revenue (excludes member co-payments of $72,435, $67,060,

$69,475, and $70,268 for the four quarterly periods ended

March 31, June 30, September 30, and December 31, 2005)..... $169,003 $177,258 §166,783 § 181,475
OPErating iNCOME .......coeiiiiiiiinmii s 8.075 8,801 9,684 8,264
Income before INCOME LAXES ......ccceviviiiiieeiere s e eerneenaereene 8,166 9,102 9.997 8,877
NELITICOMIC. . .eevveeeeeeeeeeee e e e e e e e e e e e e e et e s b s she s sae s s s sanesanrsbeanraerrrenreenss $ 5,145 $5,734 $6,298 $ 5,803
Net income per common share, basic ..., $0.14 $0.15 $0.16 $0.15
Net income per common share, diluted ..........ocooerneiicniinns, $0.13 $0.14 £0.15 $0.14

17. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On February 6, 2007, the Company acquired the remaining 20% minority ownership interest in the parent of
EBRx through the acquisition of a separate entity and transferred the shares in the operating subsidiary to HCEM
Corp., a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. The transaction resulted in a cash payment of $30.3 million prior

to the repayment of related transaction debt and accrued interest.
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HEALTHEXTRAS, INC.
SCHEDULE II-—VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
(In thousands)
Additions/

(Reductions) Additions/

Balance Charged to  (Reductions)
Beginning of Costs and Due to Balance End

Description Perlod Expense Acquisitions  Deductions of Perlod
Deduction from asset account:
Allowance for accounts receivable:

Year ended December 31, 2006..........coovvceinne. $1,0i6 $ 1,504 $ (60) $(338) $2,122
Year ended December 31, 2005.........ccoceevinnn, 917 (62) 300 (139) 1,016
Year ended December 31, 2004.........ccovvvvrnnn. 889 210 199 (381) 917

S-1
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SUBSIDIARIES
Name State of Incorporation
R/X* Pharmacy SoIUtIoNS, INC. ..vvvveiiiniiiririiiiiis s sesssssss s srasanes Arizona
HealthExtras Benefits Administrator, INC.........ccocoe e iin e iicececsrecseesnnsrnreermesrmseseesenns Delaware
HCEM COTPOTALION ...o..ooetevereeeetrenteienmrnnens e seese e seessrese e sresrese e s e s et sbs s st st asansnssesseses Delaware
ULS. Seripts, INC.ooei e Delaware
Managed Healthcare Systems, INC. ..o Florida
Catalyst CONSUILANLS .....covvvrrreereerrireenerernesarsnerasnerterermrt e s soes e ortresacsbibssssbssssssanssssssassanssnsnens Nevada
CALALYST RX 1ovvvieecermereresese ettt bbb bR bbb Nevada
Catalyst Rx Government Services, INC. .....ccviviuiirinercimmomesrms e sissssesssssssnsienns Nevada
Catalyst RX IPA, INC. ...cviiiceecee ettt re s e esesesere s benebarns New York

EBRX, INC. ittt escese s e eets s e be st e sane e s sane e soss s nsae s sm s st samemanomsatin Pennsylvania
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CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements on Form S-8 (Nos. 333-106113, 333-
75994, 333-61694, 333-116619, 333-116618, and 333-135235) of HealthExtras, Inc. of our report, dated February 26, 2007,
relating to the consolidated financial statements, financial statement schedule, management’s assessment of the effectiveness
of internal control over financial reporting and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting of HealthExtras,
Inc., which appears in this Form 10-K.

{s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
McLean, Virginia

February 26, 2007




Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION

I, David T. Blair, certify that:

1. Ihave reviewed this report on Form 10-K of HealthExtras, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material
fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not
misleading with respect fo the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present
in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the
periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer[s] and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15)(e)) and internal control over financial reporting
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)} for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared,

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to
be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles;

(c}  Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered
by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual
report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting; and

5.  The registrant’s other certifying officerfs] and [ have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control
over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or
persons performing the equivalent functtons):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakness in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize
and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in
the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting,

February 28, 2007 /si Davip T, BLAIR

David T, Blair
Chief Executive Officer and Director




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION

I, Richard W. Hunt, certify that:

L.

I have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of HealthExtras, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material
fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not
misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present
in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the
periods presented in this report;

4.  The registrant’s other certifying officerfs] and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15)(e)) and internal control over financial reporting
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal contro! over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to
be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles;

() Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered
by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscat quarter in the case of an annual
report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer[s] and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control
over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or
persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a)  Allsignificant deficiencies and material weakness in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize
and report financial information; and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in
the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting,

February 28, 2007 /s/  RICHARD W.HUNT

Richard W. Hunt
Chlef Financial Officer and Chief Accounting Officer




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of HealthExtras, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the period ended
December 31, 2006 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Report”™), the undersigned hereby certify,
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as added by Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and
results of operations of the Company as of and for the period covered by the Report.

February 28, 2007 /s/  Davip T. BLAIR
David T. Blair
Chief Executive Officer and Director

/s/  RICHARD W.HUNT
Richard W. Hunt
Chief Financial Officer and
Chief Accounting Officer




PERFORMANCE GRAPH

The following graph compares the performance of our common stock with the cumulative total return of
companies in the Nasdaq Stock Market (U.S. Companies) Index and the Russell 2000 Index. All indices shown in
the graph have been reset to a base of 100 as of December 31, 2001 and assume an investment of $100 on that date
and the reinvestment of dividends paid since that date. We have never paid cash dividends on our commaon stock.

Comparative Returns
HealthExtras, Inc., Nasdaq Stock Market Index & Russell 2000 Index
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—&— HealthExtras, Inc. —ll—Nasdaq Stock Market Index —&— Russel] 2000 Index
Summary
12/31/01 12/31/02 12/31/03  12/31/04  12/31/05 12/31/06
HealthExtras, InC...cocccovniere i $ 10000 $§ 7093 $ 23468 §$ 28546 $ 43958 § 42207
Nasdaq Stock Market Index.............. 100.00 68.47 102.72 111.54 113.07 123.84
Russell 2000 IndeXx........ooecervvvernnnns 100.00 78.42 114.00 133.38 137.81 161.24

(1) The lines represent the index levels as of the dates set forth.

(2)  If a specified date is not a trading day, the preceding trading day is used.

(3) The index level for all series was set to $100.00¢ on December 31, 2001, Qur common stock closed at $5.71
per share on that date.
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Corporate Information

Annual Meeting

The Company's annual meeting will be held at
10:00 a.m. (Eastern Time) on Tuesday, June 5, 2007
at The Ritz-Carlton, Tysons Corner, 1700 Tysons
Boulevard, McLean, VA 22102

Transfer Agent and Registrar

American Stock Transfer & Trust Company
59 Maiden Lane
New York, NY 10038

Independent Accountants

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
1800 Tysons Boulevard
McLean, VA 22102-4261

Contact HealthExtras, Inc.
www, healthextras.com

Corporate, product, program, financial and shareholder
information, including press releases and quarterly earnings

announcements, can be found on HealthExtras' Web site.

Customer Information

HealthExtras’ customer care team provides information on
the Company's products, programs and services. Call
1-800-323-6640 or e-mail info@healthextras.com.

Financial information Requests

HealthExtras” Annual Report to Shareholders, SEC filings,
earnings announcements and other {inancial information
are available online in the Company's Investor Relations
area at www.healthextras.com. Individuals may also

subscribe to e-mail alerts that are issued concurrently

with all Company announcernents. Copies of the
Company's Annual Fieport on Form 10-K and other
financial materials can be obtained from HealthExtras
by calling 301-548-2900 or e-mailing the Company at

info@healthextras.com.

Investor Relations
www.healthextras.corm

HealthExtras, Inc.

800 King Farm Beulevard
Fourth Floor

Rockville, MD 20850
301-548-2900

Board of Directors

Edward S. Civera, Chairman
David T. Blair

Thomas L. Blair

William E. Brock

Steven B. Epstein

Daniel J. Houston

Michael R. McDonnell
Kenneth A. Samet

Dale B. Wolf

Statement on Forward-Looking Information

This report may contain forward-looking information.

The forward-looking statements are made pursuant to
the safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation
Reform Act of 1995. Forward-looking statements may be
significantly impacted by certain risks and uncertainties
described in HealthExtras' filings with the U.S. Securities

and Exchange Commission.
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